
Monday, February10, 2020 AGENDA Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING 

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2020 

2:30 P.M. 

2180 Milvia Street, 6th Floor, Berkeley, CA – Redwood Room 

Committee Members:  

Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Ben Bartlett 

AGENDA 

Roll Call 

Public Comment 

Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: January 27, 2020

2. Review and Approve Draft Agendas:

a. 2/25/20 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal

4. Adjournments In Memory

Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling

7. Land Use Calendar

1



Monday, February 10, 2020 AGENDA Page 2 

 Referred Items for Review 

8. Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder 
Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 (Item contains supplemental material) 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Referred: February 4, 2020 
Due: June 23, 2020 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first 
reading of an ordinance amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 
18531.62. Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair 
Political Practices Commission). 
Council Referral: To refer a discussion of Officeholder Accounts and Council 
District (D-13) accounts to the Agenda and Rules Committee, to consider a 
reasonable set of limitations and rules for such accounts and bring back 
recommendations to the full Council, for the Council to consider referring to the Fair 
Campaign Practices Committee. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 

9. Discussion of Potential Revisions to the City Council Rules of Procedure and 
Order 

 

Unscheduled Items  
 
These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting.  The Committee may schedule 
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting. 

  
10. Updating Berkeley Telecom Ordinances and BMC codes (Item contains 

revised material) 
From: Councilmember Davila 
Referred: November 25, 2019 
Due: May 24, 2020 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution directing the City Manager to include the 
attached sample language and contained hyperlinked references to update the 
City’s Telecom Ordinances and BMC codes.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 

  

2



Monday, February 10, 2020 AGENDA Page 3 

Unscheduled Items  

11. Referral: Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery 
From: Councilmembers Robinson and Hahn 
Referred: November 25, 2019 
Due: May 24, 2020 
Recommendation: Refer to the Zero Waste Commission to develop a plan, in 
consultation with the public and key stakeholders, to achieve timely compliance 
with Senate Bill 1383 (Lara, 2016) including: 1. An ordinance making composting 
compulsory for all businesses and residences in the City of Berkeley. The 
Commission should also consider the inclusion of compulsory recycling. 2. An 
edible food recovery program for all Tier 1 and 2 commercial edible food 
generators.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170 

 

 

Items for Future Agendas 

 Discussion of items to be added to future agendas 

Adjournment – Next Meeting Monday, February 24, 2020 
 

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

Additional items may be added to the draft agenda per Council Rules of 
Procedure. 

Rules of Procedure as adopted by Council resolution, Article III, C3c - Agenda - Submission of Time Critical 
Items 

Time Critical Items.  A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor 
and that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report 
prepared by the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or council member is received by the City Clerk after 
established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda Committee’s published agenda.   

The City Clerk shall bring any reports submitted as Time Critical to the meeting of the Agenda Committee.  
If the Agenda Committee finds the matter to meet the definition of Time Critical, the Agenda Committee 
may place the matter on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar.  

The City Clerk shall not accept any item past the adjournment of the Agenda Committee meeting for which 
the agenda that the item is requested to appear on has been approved. 

Written communications addressed to the Agenda Committee and submitted to the City Clerk Department 
by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting, will be distributed to the Committee prior to the 
meeting.  After the deadline for submission, residents must provide 10 copies of written communications 
to the City Clerk at the time of the meeting. 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  
Members of the City Council who are not members of the standing committee may attend a standing 
committee meeting even if it results in a quorum being present, provided that the non-members only act 
as observers and do not participate in the meeting. If only one member of the Council who is not a 
member of the committee is present for the meeting, the member may participate in the meeting because 
less than a quorum of the full Council is present. Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  

3



 

Monday, February 10, 2020 AGENDA Page 4 

Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. 

 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please 
contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) at 
least three business days before the meeting date. Attendees at public meetings are reminded 

that other attendees may be sensitive to various scents, whether natural or manufactured, in products and 
materials. Please help the City respect these needs. 

 

* * * 

 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther King 
Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on February 6, 2020. 

 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 
 
 

Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA. 

4



Monday, January 27, 2020 MINUTES Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, JANUARY 27, 2020 

2:30 P.M. 

2180 Milvia Street, 6th Floor, Berkeley, CA – Redwood Room 

Committee Members:  

Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Kate Harrison and Susan Wengraf 

 
Roll Call: 2:31 p.m. All present. 

Public Comment: 2 speakers 
 

Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: January 13, 2020 
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Harrison) to approve the Minutes of 1/13/20. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 

2. Review and Approve Draft Agendas: 

a. 2/11/20 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Harrison) to approve the Agenda of 2/11/20 with the 
changes noted below. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 
 Ceremonial Items – Mansour Id-Deen; Berkeley Community Media 

 Item Added – Excused Absence for Councilmember Hahn (Arreguin) 

 Item Added – Wage Theft Prevention (Arreguin) 

 Item 8 HR 5038 (Arreguin) – Councilmember Bartlett added as a co-sponsor 

 Item 9 HR 5609 (Arreguin) – Councilmembers Bartlett and Harrison added as co-sponsors 

 Item 10 Moped Ride-Share (Robinson) – Councilmembers Bartlett and Harrison added as co-
sponsors 

 
Policy Committee Track 

 Item 15 Additional Fees (Arreguin) – Councilmembers Harrison, Hahn, and Robinson added 
as co-sponsors; referred to Land Use, Housing & Economic Development Committee 

 Item 16 Rumford Plaque (Bartlett) – moved to 2/11/20 Consent Calendar 

 Item 17 Adeline Street (Bartlett) – moved to 2/11/20 Action Calendar 

 Item 18 Permit Service Center (Harrison) – removed from the agenda by author 
 
Order of Action Items 
Item 11 Code Enforcement 
Item 12 Ballot Measures 
Item 13 Electric Bike Share 
Item 14 Use of Cell Phones 
Item 17 Adeline Street 
 

5

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
01



Monday, January 27, 2020 MINUTES Page 2 

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal 
- None selected 

4. Adjournments In Memory 
- Ove Wittstock, Berkeley Commissioner and Activist 

 

Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule – received and filed 

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling 
- Item 3 Wage Theft removed and scheduled for 2/11/20 

7. Land Use Calendar – received and filed 
 

 

Referred Items for Review 
 Following review and discussion of the items listed below, the Committee may continue an item to a future 

committee meeting, or refer the item to the City Council. 

 

8. Updating Berkeley Telecom Ordinances and BMC codes (Item contains 
revised material) 
From: Councilmember Davila 
Referred: November 25, 2019 
Due: May 24, 2020 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution directing the City Manager to include the 
attached sample language and contained hyperlinked references to update the 
City’s Telecom Ordinances and BMC codes.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 
 
Action: Item held in committee pending scheduling of amendments on 3/10/20. 

 

  

6



Monday, January 27, 2020 MINUTES Page 3 

Unscheduled Items  
 
These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting.  The Committee may schedule 
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting. 

9. Referral: Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery 
From: Councilmembers Robinson and Hahn 
Referred: November 25, 2019 
Due: May 24, 2020 
Recommendation: Refer to the Zero Waste Commission to develop a plan, in 
consultation with the public and key stakeholders, to achieve timely compliance 
with Senate Bill 1383 (Lara, 2016) including: 1. An ordinance making composting 
compulsory for all businesses and residences in the City of Berkeley. The 
Commission should also consider the inclusion of compulsory recycling. 2. An 
edible food recovery program for all Tier 1 and 2 commercial edible food 
generators.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170 
 
Action: Item held in committee pending presentation to Council on 2/25/20. 

 

10. Discussion of Potential Revisions to the City Council Rules of Procedure 
and Order 

 

Action: No action taken 
 

Items for Future Agendas 

 None 

Adjournment 
 

Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Harrison) to adjourn the meeting. 
 Vote: All Ayes. 

   
  Adjourned at 3:00 p.m. 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee meeting held on January 27, 2020. 
 
________________________________ 
Mark Numainville 
City Clerk 
 
 

Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 

7



 

Monday, January 27, 2020 MINUTES Page 4 

2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA. 

8



 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 1 

D R AF T  AG E N D A  

 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 
6:00 PM 

SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702 
 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 

Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI  DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – CHERYL DAVILA  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

 

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.   
Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. 

The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda. The Mayor may exercise a 
two minute speaking limitation to comments from Councilmembers.  Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - 
any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time to be specified. 

 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional 

ceremonial matters. 

1. Presentation from StopWaste on SB 1383 

City Manager Comments:  The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to 

the City Council in the form of an oral report.  The Council will not take action on such items but may 
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion. 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected by lottery to address 

matters not on the Council agenda.  If five or fewer persons submit speaker cards for the lottery, each 
person selected will be allotted two minutes each.  If more than five persons submit speaker cards for the 
lottery, up to ten persons will be selected to address matters not on the Council agenda and each person 
selected will be allotted one minute each. Persons wishing to address the Council on matters not on the 
Council agenda during the initial ten-minute period for such comment, must submit a speaker card to the 
City Clerk in person at the meeting location and prior to commencement of that meeting. The remainder 
of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end of the 
agenda. Speaker cards are not required for this second round of public comment on non-agenda matters.

9

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 2 

 The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the 
“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Items that remain on the “Consent 
Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted upon at 
the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”. 

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At 
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any 
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will 
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.  

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons 
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time 
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar. 

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will 

take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information 
Calendar.  Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent 
Calendar and Information Items.  A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment 
on Consent Calendar and Information items. 

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees 
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such, 
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official 
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops. 

 

Consent Calendar 
 

1. 
 

Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act; Amending BMC Chapter 
2.12 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,691-N.S. amending 
the Berkeley Elections Reform Act, BMC Chapter 2.12, regarding the public 
financing program. 
First Reading Vote: All Ayes. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 

 

2. 
 

Minutes for Approval 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the Council meetings of January 14, 
2020 (special closed and special), January 21, 2020 (special closed and regular) and 
January 28, 2020 (special and regular).  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900 

 

10



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 3 

3. 
 

Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible 
Issuance After Council Approval on February 25, 2020 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached 
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the 
requesting department or division.  All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold 
will be returned to Council for final approval.  
Financial Implications: General Fund - $12,440,000 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

4. 
 

Contract: Worldwide Travel Staffing for Nurse Registry Services 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute a contract and any amendments with Worldwide Travel Staffing 
for nurse registry services for a total contract limit of $313,800 for the period 
beginning March 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2023.  The contract will serve the 
needs of both the Mental Health and Public Health Divisions, providing fill-in nursing 
services as necessary at both the Mental Health clinics and the Berkeley High 
School Health Center.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

5. 
 

Contract: Van Meter Williams Pollack for Professional Planning Services to 
Prepare Zoning Standards and an Environmental Impact Report for the Ashby 
and North Berkeley BART Stations 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
contract and any amendments with Van Meter Williams Pollack to perform 
professional planning services to prepare Zoning Standards and an Environmental 
Impact Report and conduct associated community outreach for the Ashby and North 
Berkeley Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) Stations, in an amount not to exceed 
$500,000 for the period from March 1, 2020 to July 31, 2021.  
Financial Implications: See report. 
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

6. 
 

Amendment to the Agreement for Maintenance of State Highways in the City 
between the California Department of Transportation and City of Berkeley 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
amendment to the Agreement with the California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans) for maintenance of the State highways within the City of Berkeley. The 
amendment will address roadway and traffic signal improvements from the City’s 
Ninth Street Bicycle Boulevard Pathway Extension Phase II project. 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

11



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 4 

7. 
 

Contract: APB General Engineering for Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation and 
Replacement - Urgent Sewer Repair Project FY 2020 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving plans and specifications for the 
Urgent Sewer Repair Project FY 2020 with sites located throughout the City; 
accepting the bid of the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, APB General 
Engineering; and, authorizing City Manager to execute a contract and any 
amendments, extensions, or change orders until completion of the project in 
accordance with the approved plans and specifications, in an amount not to exceed 
$388,489 which includes a 10% contingency of $35,317.  
Financial Implications: Sanitary Sewer Fund - $388,489 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

8. 
 

Permit Fee Waiver for Pacific Gas and Electric Company for the 
Undergrounding of Existing Overhead Electrical Facilities and Electrical 
Service Conversions within Utility Undergrounding District No. 48 – Grizzly 
Peak/Summit 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to waive all 
permit fees for Pacific Gas and Electric Company for the undergrounding of existing 
overhead electrical facilities and electrical service conversions in Utility 
Undergrounding District No. 48. 
Financial Implications: General Fund - $100,000 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

9. 
 

Resolution: Condemn the Federal Government’s Administrative Decision 
Undermining Asylum Protection for Survivors of Domestic Violence 
From: Peace and Justice Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution affirming Berkeley’s commitment to our 
asylum-seeking residents and condemning the Federal government’s administrative 
decision undermining asylum protection for survivors of domestic violence.  
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Nina Goldman, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-7000 

 

 
 

12



Council Consent Items 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 5 

10. 
 

LifeLong Medical Care’s March 7, 2020 Annual Gala Fundraiser: 
Relinquishment of Council Office Budget Funds to General Fund and Grant of 
Such Funds 
From: Councilmember Davila 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not 
to exceed $250 per Councilmember including $100 from Councilmember Cheryl 
Davila, to LifeLong Medical Care for their Annual Gala Fundraiser on March 7, 2020 
with funds relinquished to the City's general fund for this purpose from the 
discretionary Council Office Budgets of Councilmember Davila, the Mayor and any 
other Councilmembers who would like to contribute.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 

11. 
 

Luna Dance Institute March 7, 2020 Moon Dance Fundraising Gala: 
Relinquishment of Council Office Budget Funds to General Fund and Grant of 
Such Funds 
From: Councilmembers Davila and Hahn 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not 
to exceed $250 per Councilmember including $100 from Councilmembers Cheryl 
Davila and Sophie Hahn, to Luna Dance Institute for their March 7, 2020 Moon 
Dance Fundraising Gala, with funds relinquished to the City's general fund for this 
purpose from the discretionary Council Office Budgets of Councilmember Davila, the 
Mayor and any other Councilmembers who would like to contribute.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 

12. 
 

Support for S.2012 (Feinstein) 
From: Councilmember Wengraf 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution in support of S.2012, “Restoring Local 
Control Over Public Infrastructure Act of 2019” (Feinstein) and send copies to 
Senators Dianne Feinstein and Kamala Harris, and Congresswoman Barbara Lee.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, (510) 981-7160 

 

13



Council Consent Items 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 6 

13. 
 

Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 (McGuire and Glazer) 
From: Councilmember Wengraf 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution in support of three bills which aim to protect 
people whose lives could be endangered without use of needed electrical resources 
during PG&E’s Public Safety Power Shut-offs. Send the resolution to California 
Senators Mike McGuire, Steve Glazer, Nancy Skinner and Buffy Wicks. The bills are: 
1. SB-431 Mobile telephony service base transceiver station towers: performance 
reliability standards (McGuire & Glazer); 2. SB-801 Electrical corporations: wildfire 
mitigation plans: deenergization: public safety protocol (McGuire & Glazer); 3. SB-
802 Emergency backup generators: health facilities: permit operating condition 
exclusion (Glazer) 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, (510) 981-7160 

 

Action Calendar 

 The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items 
moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on 
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is 
taken up during the Action Calendar. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak line up at the podium to determine the 
number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. 
If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public 
comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other 
speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may, with the 
consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to present 
their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 

 

Action Calendar – Public Hearings 

 Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-minute 
presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing 
to speak, line up at the podium to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in 
speaking at that time. 

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in 
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. 
Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more 
than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an 
issue allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the 
hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement 
of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

14



Action Calendar – Public Hearings 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 7 

14a. 
 

Public Hearing: Landmarks Preservation Commission Appeal: Conversion of 
the Hillside School to Residential Use at 1581 Le Roy Avenue 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing on the appeal of the Landmarks 
Preservation Commission (LPC) decision to approve Structural Alteration Permit 
#LMSAP2019-0004 to modify and rehabilitate a City Landmark and National Register 
building and site.   
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

14b. 
 

Public Hearing: Zoning Adjustments Board Appeal: Conversion of the Hillside 
School to Residential Use at 1581 Le Roy Avenue 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing on the appeal of the Zoning 
Adjustments Board (ZAB) decision to approve Use Permit #ZP20190061, to convert 
the Hillside School to residential use.  
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

14c. 
 

Appeals of Landmarks Preservation Commission and Zoning Adjustments 
Board Actions -- Conversion of the Hillside School to Residential Use at 1581 
Le Roy Avenue 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Upon conclusion of the agendized public hearings, adopt a 
Resolution affirming the Landmarks Preservation Commission (LPC) decision to 
approve Structural Alteration Permit #LMSAP2019-0004 and the Zoning Adjustments 
Board (ZAB) decision to approve Use Permit #ZP20190061, to rehabilitate and 
convert the Hillside School to residential use, and dismiss the appeals.  
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

15. 
 

ZAB Appeal: 2422 Fifth Street, Use Permit #ZP2018-0108 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a 
Resolution affirming the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) decision to approve Use 
Permit #ZP2018-0108 to construct a three-story, 4,806-square-foot mixed-use 
building containing 967 square feet of medical office space and two dwelling units on 
the rear of a lot with an existing duplex, including a request to waive two residential 
parking spaces and establish two joint use commercial/residential spaces, and 
dismiss the appeal.  
Financial Implications: None. 
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, (510) 981-7400 

 

 
 

15



Action Calendar – Old Business 
 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 8 

16. 
 

Surveillance Technology Report, Surveillance Acquisition Report, and 
Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic License Plate Readers, GPS Trackers, 
and Body Worn Cameras (Continued from January 28, 2020.  Item contains 
supplemental materials.) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting the Surveillance Technology 
Report, Surveillance Acquisition Report, and Surveillance Use Policy for Automatic 
License Plate Readers and Body Worn Cameras submitted pursuant to Chapter 2.99 
of the Berkeley Municipal Code.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Andrew Greenwood, Police, (510) 981-5900; Dave White, City Manager's 
Office, (510) 981-7000 

 

Action Calendar – New Business 
 

17. 
 

Issuance of $38,000,000 General Obligation Bonds for Measure O – Affordable 
Housing 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of general 
obligation bonds to finance acquisition and improvement of affordable housing and 
authorizing actions related thereto.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

18. 
 

Refinancing of 2009 and 2010 General Obligation Bonds (Measure FF) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt two Resolutions authorizing the issuance and sale of 
general obligation bonds to refund outstanding 2009 and 2010 bonds and authorizing 
actions related thereto.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

19. 
 

Refinancing of 2010 Certificates of Participation Originally Issued to Finance 
Animal Shelter Project 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of lease 
revenue bonds to refinance outstanding 2010 certificates of participation and 
approving related documents and official actions.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

 

 
 

16



Council Action Items 
 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 9 

20. 
 

Ronald V. Dellums Fair Chance Access to Housing Ordinance; Adding BMC 
Chapter 13.106 (Reviewed by Land Use, Housing, and Economic Development 
Committee) 
From: Mayor Arreguin, Councilmember Davila, Councilmember Harrison, 
Councilmember Bartlett 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt a first reading of the Ronald V. Dellums Fair Chance Access to Housing 
Ordinance, adding Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.106 and; 
2. Direct the City Manager to take all necessary steps to implement this chapter 
including but not limited to developing administrative regulations in consultation with 
all relevant City Departments including the Rent Stabilization Board, preparing an 
annual implementation budget, designating hearing officers and other necessary 
staffing for administrative complaint, exploring the development of a compliance 
testing program similar to that used by the Seattle Office of Civil Rights, developing 
timelines and procedures for complaints, conducting outreach and education in 
partnership with the Alameda County Fair Chance Housing Coalition, and referring 
program costs to the June budget process.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100 

 

Action Calendar – Policy Committee Track Items 
 

21. 
 

Referral to Schedule a Special City Council Meeting on Ohlone History and 
Culture 
From: Councilmembers Hahn and Davila 
Recommendation: Refer to the Agenda & Rules Policy Committee to schedule a 
Special City Council Meeting of at least one hour in duration immediately prior to a 
Regular City Council Meeting for representatives of the Ohlone community to present 
on Ohlone history and culture to provide additional context for the placement of signs 
stating "Welcome to the City of Berkeley Ohlone Territory” at entrances to our City.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, (510) 981-7150 

 

17



Action Calendar – Policy Committee Track Items 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 10 

22. 
 

Referral: Street Lighting Near Campus 
From: Councilmembers Robinson, Droste, Harrison, and Wengraf 
Recommendation: Refer to the Public Works Commission to include the following in 
the Street Lighting Subcommittee Work Plan, for the purposes of seeking input from 
key stakeholders and bringing together work that happens through parallel 
processes. The Subcommittee should: 1. Invite input from representatives from the 
UC Berkeley administration, UC Berkeley undergraduate and graduate students, 
UCPD and BPD, the Department of Public Works, and other relevant groups. 2. 
Develop a streamlined and accessible process for requesting street lights that 
includes neighborhood and campus input, while recognizing the overriding public 
safety concern posed by substandard lighting. 3. Develop a plan for expeditiously 
installing new streetlights near campus that prioritizes high-crime areas, high-injury 
pedestrian corridors, and student-priority areas as determined by student input.  
Financial Implications: Staff time 
Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170 

 

Information Reports 
 

23. 
 

Audit Status Report Response: Code Enforcement Resources Significantly 
Constrained and Improvements Needed in Case Management and Oversight 
from April 17, 2019 – December 13, 2019 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Erin Steffen, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000 

 

24. 
 

Report on Regional Leadership and Goals for 2020 
From: Mayor Arreguin 
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100 

 

Public Comment – Items Not Listed on the Agenda 

Adjournment 

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to 
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of 
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be 
barred.  2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use 
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally 
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx 

and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 

18

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


 

Tuesday, February 25, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 11 

addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
or in person to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact 
information included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. 
Please contact the City Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the City Clerk Department located on 
the first floor of City Hall located at 2180 Milvia Street as well as posted on the City's website at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

and may be read at reference desks at the following locations: 

City Clerk Department Libraries: 
2180 Milvia Street Main - 2090 Kittredge Street 
Tel:  510-981-6900 Claremont Branch – 2940 Benvenue 
TDD:  510-981-6903 West Branch – 1125 University 
Fax:  510-981-6901 North Branch – 1170 The Alameda 
Email:  clerk@cityofberkeley.info South Branch – 1901 Russell 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.  
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 
 
Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various scents, 
whether natural or manufactured, in products and materials.  Please help the City respect these needs. 
 

 
 

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet.  In addition, assisted 
listening devices for the hearing impaired are available from the City Clerk prior to the meeting, and are to 
be returned before the end of the meeting. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

 

19

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


20



Office of the City Manager

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Berkeley Peace & Justice Commission

Submitted by: Igor Tregub, Chairperson

Subject: Resolution: Condemn the Federal Government’s Administrative Decision 
Undermining Asylum Protection for Survivors of Domestic Violence

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a resolution affirming Berkeley’s commitment to our asylum-seeking residents and 
condemning the Federal government’s administrative decision undermining asylum 
protection for survivors of domestic violence.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
In his June 11, 2018 decision in the asylum case Matter of A-B- (27 I&N Dec. 316 (A.G. 
2018)), former Attorney General Sessions declared that asylum seekers presenting 
claims based on domestic violence will “generally” no longer qualify for relief. His decision 
included sweeping pronouncements undermining protections for individuals fleeing other 
forms of persecution perpetrated by nongovernment actors, including gangs and 
organized crime groups.

At its regular meeting on November 4, 2019, the Peace and Justice Commission 
recommended that the Council of the City of Berkeley adopt a resolution affirming 
Berkeley’s commitment to our asylum-seeking residents and condemning the Federal 
government’s administrative decision undermining asylum protection for survivors of 
domestic violence.  The vote for the attached resolution was as follows:

M/S/C: Bohn/Rodriguez
Ayes: Askary, Bohn, Lippman, Maran, Meola, Morizawa, Pancoast, Pierce, 

Rodriguez
Noes: None
Abstain: None
Absent: al-Bazian, Gussman, Tregub
Excused: None

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental impacts or opportunities associated with the 
subject of this report. 

Page 1 of 6

21

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.09



Resolution: Condemn the Federal Government’s Administrative Decision February 25, 2020
Undermining Asylum Protection for Survivors of Domestic Violence

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The Berkeley City Council has repeatedly affirmed its commitment to protecting our 
immigrant communities, and since January 2017 has consistently condemned actions of 
the Trump Administration that target our immigrant and asylum-seeking residents. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position.

CONTACT PERSON
Igor Tregub, Chairperson, Peace and Justice Commission

Nina Goldman, Commission Secretary, City Manager’s Office (510) 981-7537

Attachment: 
1. Resolution Affirming Berkeley’s Commitment to our Asylum-Seeking Residents and Condemning 

the Federal Government’s Administrative Decision Undermining Asylum Protection for Survivors 
of Domestic Violence

Page 2 of 6

22



Resolution: Condemn the Federal Government’s Administrative Decision February 25, 2020
Undermining Asylum Protection for Survivors of Domestic Violence

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.
AFFIRM BERKELEY’S COMMITMENT TO OUR ASYLUM-SEEKING RESIDENTS 
AND CONDEMN THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT’S ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION 

UNDERMINING ASYLUM PROTECTIONS FOR SURVIVORS OF DOMESTIC 
VIOLENCE

WHEREAS, the Peace and Justice Commission advises the City Council on all matters 
relating to the City of Berkeley's role in issues of peace and social justice (Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 3.68.070); and 

WHEREAS, the Berkeley City Council has repeatedly affirmed its commitment to 
protecting our immigrant communities, and since January 2017 has consistently 
condemned actions of the Trump Administration that target our immigrant and asylum-
seeking residents; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley has a long history and proud legacy of leading the fight 
to advance women's rights and combat gender-based violence;i and

WHEREAS, former U.S. Attorney General Jefferson B. Sessions, on June 11, 2018, 
issued a sweeping decision in the asylum case Matter of A-B- (27 I&N Dec. 316 (A.G. 
2018)), involving a domestic violence survivor from El Salvador, which vacated the 
Board of Immigration Appeals’ landmark decision in Matter of A-R-C-G- (26 I&N Dec. 
388 (BIA 2014), which had recognized domestic violence as a basis for asylum; and

WHEREAS, in his decision then-Attorney General Sessions declared that asylum 
seekers presenting claims based on domestic violence will “generally” no longer qualify 
for relief, and his decision included sweeping pronouncements undermining protections 
for individuals fleeing other forms of persecution perpetrated by nongovernment actors, 
including gangs and organized crime groups; ii and

WHEREAS, in Grace v. Whitaker (344 F. Supp. 3d 96 (D.D.C. 2018)), the U.S. District 
Court for the District of Columbia found the heightened standards articulated by 
Sessions in Matter of A-B- to be inconsistent with existing legal precedents and 
congressional intent behind the Refugee Act of 1980, holding that there can be no 
blanket rule barring domestic violence asylum claims, and although the Grace decision 
has halted the implementation of Matter of A-B- in initial credible fear proceedings, the 
Departments of Homeland Security and Justice have instructed adjudicators that Matter 
of A-B- must continue to be used in deciding asylum claims on their merits. Berkeley’s 
East Bay Sanctuary Covenant was a lead plaintiff in successful lawsuit challenging the 
Trump Administration in this matter;iii and

WHEREAS, the majority of women and girls seeking asylum at the U.S. southern border 
hail from the Northern Triangle countries of Central America, El Salvador, Guatemala, 

Page 3 of 6

23



Resolution: Condemn the Federal Government’s Administrative Decision February 25, 2020
Undermining Asylum Protection for Survivors of Domestic Violence

and Honduras, where rates of femicide (gender motivated killings of women) are among 
the highest in the world, and which are currently experiencing epidemic levels of 
violence, including widespread domestic violence and other forms of gender-based 
violence, which is perpetrated with virtual impunity;iv and

WHEREAS, according to data from the Syracuse University Transactional Records 
Access Clearinghouse (TRAC), in the 12 months following the issuance of the Matter of 
A-B- decision national asylum grant rates for applicants from El Salvador, Guatemala, 
and Honduras fell to an average of 15 percent, compared to a 24 percent grant rate in 
the year prior to the decision; and the Matter of A-B decision has put countless women, 
children, LGBTQ people, and families at heightened risk of removal to perilous 
situations where their lives are in danger;v and

WHEREAS, United Nations guidance and international law reflect that domestic 
violence can form the basis of asylum protection when all other elements of the refugee 
definition are met, and the United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees (UNHCR) 
has asserted that the Matter of A-B- ruling stands at odds with the United States’ 
international treaty obligations by creating a high barrier to women fleeing domestic 
violence;vi and

WHEREAS, in 2018, 84 members of Congress, including Congresswoman Barbara 
Lee, cosponsored Congresswoman Jan Schakowsky’s (D-Ill.) resolution (H. Res. 987) 
condemning the former Attorney General’s decision in Matter of A-B;vii and

WHEREAS, Senators Feinstein and Harris have decried the Matter of A-B- ruling and 
called for its reversal;viii and

WHEREAS, 118 members of Congress, including Barbara Lee, signed a letter sent on 
September 12, 2018 to then-Attorney General Sessions requesting that he rescind his 
decision in Matter of A-B-.ix

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Berkeley declare 
its condemnation of former Attorney General Sessions’ decision in Matter of A-B- 
seeking to close the door to women and others seeking asylum on the basis of domestic 
violence. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Council of the City of Berkeley recognize the 
decision as a shameful attempt to eviscerate protections for women, children, LGBTQ 
people, and families fleeing harrowing violence.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Berkeley call on the U.S. 
Department of Justice to rescind the Matter of A-B- decision.

Page 4 of 6

24



Resolution: Condemn the Federal Government’s Administrative Decision February 25, 2020
Undermining Asylum Protection for Survivors of Domestic Violence

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Berkeley urge 
congressional appropriators to instruct the Departments of Justice and Homeland 
Security that they may not use appropriated funds to implement Matter of A-B.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Berkeley urge our 
representatives in Congress to enact laws that address the issues created by Matter of 
A-B- and restore justice and fairness to our asylum system.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Berkeley urge the federal 
courts of appeals to overturn Matter of A-B- and affirm that domestic violence may be a 
basis for asylum. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Council of the City of Berkeley ask the City Clerk 
to send a copy of this resolution to Congresswoman Barbara Lee, Senators Dianne 
Feinstein and Kamala Harris, the Chairs of the Congressional Appropriations 
Committees, and the Chairs of the Committees on the Judiciary.

i “Adopt the Operative Principles of the UN Convention on the Elimination of All Forms of Discrimination Against 
Women,” BMC Chapter 13.20,  https://www.codepublishing.com › CA › Berkeley › Berkeley1320020.html

ii  “Attorney General issues precedent decision, Matter of A-B-, seeking to limit protection for asylum seekers,” 
Reena Arya: https://cliniclegal.org/resources/attorney-general-issues-precedent-decision-matter-b-seeking-limit-
protection-asylum
And:  Grace v. Whitaker (344 F. Supp. 3d 96 (D.D.C. 2018)), the U.S. District Court for the District of Columbia 
found the heightened standards articulated by Sessions in Matter of A-B- to be inconsistent with existing legal 
precedents and congressional intent: https://casetext.com/case/grace-v-whitaker 
and: https://www.aclu.org/legal-document/grace-v-whitaker-opinion

i i i “East Bay Sanctuary Covenant v. Trump,” February 7, 2019, ACLU, 
https://www.aclu.org/cases/east-bay-sanctuary-covenant-v-trump
And:
“Groups file a federal lawsuit challenging new Trump Asylum restrictions,” Feb 7, 2019 , ACLU, 
https://www.aclu.org/press-releases/groups-file-federal-lawsuit-challenging-new-trump-asylum-restrictions
and: 
“East Bay Sanctuary Covenant v. Trump. Restrictions on Asylum,” Aug 13, 2019,  https://www.ca9.uscourts.gov › 
content › view

iv “Central America’s Turbulent Northern Triangle,” October 1, 2019, Center on Foreign Relations, 
https://www.cfr.org/backgrounder/central-americas-turbulent-northern-triangle 

v “Asylum Representation Rates Have Fallen Amid Rising Denial Rates,”  Transactional Records Access 
Clearinghouse (TRAC), https://trac.syr.edu/immigration/reports/491/

vi  “Why domestic abuse and anti-gay violence qualify as persecution in asylum law,” June 15, 2018, 
http://theconversation.com/why-domestic-abuse-and-anti-gay-violence-qualify-as-persecution-in-asylum-law-98354

Page 5 of 6

25

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/Berkeley/?Berkeley13/Berkeley1320/Berkeley1320020.html&?f
https://cliniclegal.org/resources/attorney-general-issues-precedent-decision-matter-b-seeking-limit-protection-asylum
https://cliniclegal.org/resources/attorney-general-issues-precedent-decision-matter-b-seeking-limit-protection-asylum
https://casetext.com/case/grace-v-whitaker
https://www.aclu.org/legal-document/grace-v-whitaker-opinion
https://www.aclu.org/cases/east-bay-sanctuary-covenant-v-trump
https://www.ca9.uscourts.gov/content/view.php?pk_id=0000000962
https://www.ca9.uscourts.gov/content/view.php?pk_id=0000000962
https://www.cfr.org/backgrounder/central-americas-turbulent-northern-triangle
https://trac.syr.edu/immigration/reports/491/
http://theconversation.com/why-domestic-abuse-and-anti-gay-violence-qualify-as-persecution-in-asylum-law-98354


Resolution: Condemn the Federal Government’s Administrative Decision February 25, 2020
Undermining Asylum Protection for Survivors of Domestic Violence

vii “H.Res.987 - Condemning the Attorney General's decision in "Matter of A-B-" seeking to declare domestic 
violence and gang violence as invalid grounds for seeking asylum,”  https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-
congress/house-resolution/987/all-info

vii i “Feinstein Statement on Asylum Law Changes,” June 11, 2018, Sen. Dianne Feinstein, 
https://www.feinstein.senate.gov/public/index.cfm/press-releases?ID=51182C79-CC38-4A12-9395-
10404C2C0044
and https://twitter.com/SenKamalaHarris/status/1017481406866444288

ix  “118 House Democrats to AG Sessions: Reverse Decision Ending Asylum for Victims of Domestic, Gang, and 
Gender-Based Violence,” September 13, 2018, Rep. Jim McGovern, 
https://mcgovern.house.gov/news/documentsingle.aspx?DocumentID=397246

Page 6 of 6

26

https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/house-resolution/987/all-info
https://www.congress.gov/bill/115th-congress/house-resolution/987/all-info
https://www.feinstein.senate.gov/public/index.cfm/press-releases?ID=51182C79-CC38-4A12-9395-10404C2C0044
https://www.feinstein.senate.gov/public/index.cfm/press-releases?ID=51182C79-CC38-4A12-9395-10404C2C0044
https://twitter.com/SenKamalaHarris/status/1017481406866444288
https://mcgovern.house.gov/news/documentsingle.aspx?DocumentID=397246


Cheryl Davila
Councilmember 
District 2

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020
 

To:           Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
 
From:      Councilmember Cheryl Davila
    
Subject:   LifeLong Medical Care’s March 7, 2020 Annual Gala Fundraiser: Relinquishment of 
                Council Office Budget Funds to General Fund and Grant of Such Funds
 
RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not to exceed $250 per 
Councilmember including $100 from Councilmember Cheryl Davila, to LifeLong Medical 
Care for their Annual Gala Fundraiser on March 7, 2020 with funds relinquished to the 
City's general fund for this purpose from the discretionary Council Office Budgets of 
Councilmember Davila, the Mayor and any other Councilmembers who would like to 
contribute.

BACKGROUND
LifeLong Medical Care has been committed to serving the community for over 40 years with 
compassion. LifeLong has a number of robust programs offering quality care including medical, 
dental and social services throughout Alameda and Contra Costa Counties for all ages. They 
have provided services to over 61,000 underserved individuals, many with complex health 
conditions every year.

LifeLong will hold their Annual Gala Fundraiser on Saturday, March 7, 2020, at 5:30 PM at the 
Claremont Club and Spa, 41 Tunnel Road in Berkeley.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
No General Fund impact. $100 is available from Councilmember Cheryl Davila's Council 
Office Budget discretionary account (011-11-102-000-0000-000-411).
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Protecting low income residents and people who experience homelessness is itself an act of 
environmental sustainability.
 
CONTACT PERSON
Cheryl Davila
Councilmember District 2                                                                                      
510.981.7120/ cdavila@cityofberkeley.info
 
ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution
2. LifeLong Medical Care’s March 7, 2020 Annual Gala Fundraiser Information:
https://www.lifelongmedical.org/news-a-events/annual-fundraiser/2020-annual-gala.html

Page 1 of 3

27

https://www.lifelongmedical.org/news-a-events/annual-fundraiser/2020-annual-gala.html
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.10



RESOLUTION NO. ##, ###-N.S.
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BERKELEYS AUTHORIZING 
THE EXPENDITURE OF SURPLUS FUNDS FROM THE OFFICE EXPENSE ACCOUNTS OF 
THE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS FOR A GRANT TO PROVIDE PUBLIC SERVICES 
FOR A MUNICIPAL PUBLIC PURPOSE

WHEREAS, Councilmember Cheryl Davila has surplus funds in her office expenditure account 
(budget code 011-11-102-000-0000-000-411); and
 
WHEREAS,  LifeLong Medical Care, a California non-profit tax-exempt corporation, is seeking 
donations for their First Annual Fundraiser on Saturday, March 7, 2020 at 5:30 PM at the 
Claremont Club and Spa, 41 Tunnel Road in Berkeley; and
 
WHEREAS, LifeLong Medical Care has been committed to serving the community for over 40 
years with compassion. LifeLong has a number of robust programs offering quality care 
including medical, dental and social services throughout Alameda and Contra Costa Counties 
for all ages; and

WHEREAS, LifeLong Medical Care provides services to over 61,000 underserved individuals, 
many with complex health conditions every year; and
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that funds 
relinquished by the Mayor and Councilmembers from their Council Office Budget up to $250 per 
Councilmember, including $100 from Councilmember Cheryl Davila, shall be granted to 
LifeLong Medical Care for their Annual Gala Fundraiser on March 7, 2020.
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 3

28



https://www.lifelongmedical.org/news-a-events/annual-fundraiser/2020-annual-gala.html

 

Page 3 of 3

29

https://www.lifelongmedical.org/news-a-events/annual-fundraiser/2020-annual-gala.html


30



Cheryl Davila
Councilmember 
District 2

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020
 

To:           Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
 
From:      Councilmember Cheryl Davila and Councilmember Sophie Hahn

Subject:   Luna Dance Institute March 7, 2020 Moon Dance Fundraising Gala: Relinquishment 
    of Council Office Budget Funds to General Fund and Grant of Such Funds.

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not to exceed $250 per 
Councilmember including $100 from Councilmembers Cheryl Davila and Sophie Hahn, to 
Luna Dance Institute for their March 7, 2020 Moon Dance Fundraising Gala, with funds 
relinquished to the City's general fund for this purpose from the discretionary Council Office 
Budgets of Councilmember Davila, the Mayor and any other Councilmembers who would 
like to contribute.

BACKGROUND
Luna Dance Institute is a community based 501(c)3 organization non-profit organization, whose 
mission is to bring creativity, equity and community to every child’s life through the art of dance. 

Luna Dance Institute exists as an example of what is possible when an organization seeks to 
defend and further children’s freedom through the art of dance. Luna Dance Institute works with 
allies to champion systemic change in arts, education, and social justice.

Since 1992, Luna Dance Institute has grown from a local children’s dance program to a 
nationally recognized dance education organization that develops future choreographers, 
leaders, and visionaries. Berkeley is proud to be the home of Luna Dance Institute who each 
year brings dance to more than 20,000 children and 300+ artists, teachers, and social service 
providers. 

Luna Dance Institute will hold their Moon Dance Fundraising Gala on Saturday, March 7, 2020 
from 7-10 PM at Emerytech Building (Clif Bar Theater), 1370 65th Street, Emeryville. The event 
features music from the Left Coast Sextet (an all women Jazz band), and auction items 
donated by local restaurants and performance venues. 
 
FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
No General Fund impact. $100 is available from Councilmember Cheryl Davila's Council 
Office Budget discretionary account (011-11-102-000-0000-000-411).
 
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Supporting our youth is itself an act of environmental sustainability.

CONTACT PERSON
Cheryl Davila,
Councilmember District 2                                                                                      
510.981.7120
cdavila@cityofberkeley.info

Page 1 of 4

31

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.11



 
ATTACHMENT:
1. Resolution
2. Luna Dance Institute March 7, 2020 Moon Dance Fundraising Gala Information: 
http://lunadanceinstitute.org/2020-gala/

Page 2 of 4

32

http://lunadanceinstitute.org/2020-gala/


RESOLUTION NO. ##, ###-N.S.
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BERKELEYS AUTHORIZING 
THE EXPENDITURE OF SURPLUS FUNDS FROM THE OFFICE EXPENSE ACCOUNTS OF 
THE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS FOR A GRANT TO PROVIDE PUBLIC SERVICES 
FOR A MUNICIPAL PUBLIC PURPOSE

WHEREAS, Councilmember Cheryl Davila has surplus funds in her office expenditure account 
(budget code 011-11-102-000-0000-000-411); and
 
WHEREAS, Luna Dance Institute, a California non-profit tax-exempt corporation, is seeking 
donations for their Moon Dance Fundraising Gala on March 7, 2020 from 7PM-10 PM at 
Emerytech Building (Clif Bar Theater),1370 65th Street, Emeryville; and

WHEREAS, Luna Dance Institute mission is to bring creativity, equity and community to every 
child’s life through the art of dance; and
 
WHEREAS, Since 1992, Luna Dance Institute has grown from a local children’s dance program 
to a nationally recognized dance education organization that develops future choreographers, 
leaders, and visionaries. Each year, Luna Dance Institute brings dance to more than 20,000 
children and 300+ artists, teachers, and social service providers; and
 
WHEREAS, Luna Dance Institute exists as an example of what is possible when an 
organization seeks to defend and further children’s freedom through the art of dance. They work 
with allies to champion systemic change in arts, education, and social justice; and
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that funds 
relinquished by the Mayor and Councilmembers from their Council Office Budget up to $250 per 
Councilmember, including $100 from Councilmember Cheryl Davila, shall be granted to Luna 
Dance Institute for their March 7, 2020 Moon Dance Fundraising Gala. 

 
 

Page 3 of 4

33



http://lunadanceinstitute.org/2020-gala/

Page 4 of 4

34

http://lunadanceinstitute.org/2020-gala/


Susan Wengraf
Councilmember District 6

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7160 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7166
E-Mail: swengraf@cityofberkeley.info 

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmember Susan Wengraf

Subject: Support for S.2012 (Feinstein) 

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a Resolution in support of S.2012, “Restoring Local Control Over Public 
Infrastructure Act of 2019” (Feinstein) and send copies to Senators Dianne Feinstein 
and Kamala Harris, and Congresswoman Barbara Lee.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None

BACKGROUND

S.2012, the Restoring Local Control Over Public Infrastructure Act proposes to restore 
local government control over how wireless carriers deploy small cell and other wireless 
equipment on utility poles.

The legislation is in response to a pair of recent FCC rules that revoke local authority to 
regulate telecommunications equipment deployment. The FCC rules also determine 
how much wireless carriers would pay to use public phone and utility poles, without any 
local input.

Senator Feinstein's bill would overturn the new FCC rules and restore local control 
concerning the placement of small cell and other wireless equipment on phone and 
utility poles.

S.2012 would also overturn the FCC’s 60 to 90 day limits for local governments to 
review applications to use public infrastructure before being automatically approved.

The bill is cosponsored by Senators Charles E. Schumer (D-N.Y.), Michael Bennet (D-
Colo.), Kamala D. Harris (D-Calif.), Ron Wyden (D-Ore.), Ben Cardin (D-Md.) and 
Richard Blumenthal (D-Conn.).

The bill is supported by the U.S. Conference of Mayors, National Association of 
Telecommunications Officers and Advisors, American Public Power Association, 

Page 1 of 8

35

https://www.feinstein.senate.gov/public/index.cfm?a=files.serve&File_id=58AC06FA-D10E-4091-904F-8CB53EA81E56
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.12



Support for S.2012 (Feinstein) CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 2

Communications Workers of America, National Association of Counties, League of 
California Cities and American Public Works Association.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Local control over telecommunication equipment placement supports the city’s efforts to 
provide a safe community.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Wengraf Council District 6 510-981-7160

Attachments: 
1: Resolution
2: Bill S-2012
3: FCC Press Release about its September 26, 2018 Declaratory Ruling
4: Link to FCCs 116 page Declaratory Ruling and Third Report and Order

Page 2 of 8

36

https://docs.fcc.gov/public/attachments/FCC-18-133A1.pdf


Support for S.2012 (Feinstein) CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

City of Berkeley Support for S.2012 (Feinstein)

WHEREAS, The FCC passed the Declaratory Ruling and Third Report and Order, 
in September 2018 that allow telecom providers to install heavy equipment on local 
infrastructure with little input from the impacted local jurisdictions ; and

WHEREAS, These rules, ostensibly intended to fast-track the 5G rollout, supersede 
local and state regulations, taking away local control over how wireless companies 
may attach small cell and other wireless transmission devices to utility poles, light 
poles and traffic lights; and

WHEREAS, The rules dictate how much local governments can charge wireless 
companies for permits and use of public infrastructure. The fee allowed is far less 
than it costs to the City of Berkeley to process; and

WHEREAS, The FCC Rules give jurisdictions just 60 days to review a wireless 
corporation’s application for installation of small cell equipment, which is hardly 
enough time to consider the safety and aesthetic effects of the deployment. 
Applications that aren’t processed within the 60 day period are automatically 
approved; and

WHEREAS, Wireless companies won’t bear the responsibility when things go wrong 
from the weight of their equipment. Attaching small cells that are the size of a mini-
refrigerator to utility poles will make them more vulnerable to falling, posing danger 
to residents and property, including the increased potential of fires; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Berkeley shouldn’t be asked to subsidize private 
commercial development without local oversight. In order to prevent big wireless 
companies from sidelining local jurisdictions, Congress must act. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Berkeley that it fully supports 
S.2012 “Restoring Local Control Over Public Infrastructure Act of 2019” (Feinstein)

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Berkeley City Council appreciates Senator 
Feinstein’s leadership on this item and Senator Harris’ co-sponsorship.

Page 3 of 8

37



Support for S.2012 (Feinstein) CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 4

116TH  CONGRESS
1ST SESSION

To provide that certain regulatory actions by the Federal Communications 
Commission shall have no force or effect.

IN  THE  SENATE  OF  THE  UNITED  STATES
JUNE  27, 2019
Mrs. FEINSTEIN (for herself, Mr. SCHUMER, Ms. HARRIS, Mr. BENNET, Mr.
WYDEN, Mr. CARDIN, and Mr. BLUMENTHAL) introduced the following bill; which 
was read twice and referred to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and 
Transportation

A BILL
To provide that certain regulatory actions by the Federal Communications 
Commission shall have no force or effect.

1 Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-
2 tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,
3 SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.
4 This Act may be cited as the ‘‘Restoring Local Con-
5 trol Over Public Infrastructure Act of 2019’’.
6 SEC. 2. DEFINITION.
7 In this Act, the term ‘‘Commission’’ means the Fed-
8 eral  Communications Commission.

S. 2012

Page 4 of 8

38



Support for S.2012 (Feinstein) CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 5

2
1 SEC. 3. PRESERVATION OF RIGHTS OF STATE AND LOCAL
2 GOVERNMENTS.
3 The following regulatory actions of the Commission
4 shall have no force or effect:
5 (1) The Declaratory Ruling in the ‘‘Third Re-
6 port and Order and Declaratory Ruling in the mat-
7 ter of Accelerating Wireline Broadband Deployment
8 by Removing Barriers to Infrastructure Investment
9 and  Accelerating  Wireless  Broadband Deployment
10 by Removing Barriers to Infrastructure Investment’’
11 adopted  by  the  Commission  on  August  2, 2018

12 (FCC  18–111).
13 (2) The ‘‘Declaratory Ruling and Third Report
14 and Order in the matter of Accelerating Wireless
15 Broadband Deployment by Removing Barriers to In-
16 frastructure  Investment  and  Accelerating Wireline
17 Broadband Deployment by Removing Barriers to In-
18 frastructure Investment’’ adopted by the Commis-
19 sion on September 26, 2018 (FCC 18–133).
20 (3) The rule adopted by the Commission enti-
21 tled ‘‘Accelerating Wireless and Wireline Broadband
22 Deployment by Removing Barriers to  Infrastructure
23 Investment’’ (83 Fed. Reg. 51867 (October 15,

24 2018)).
Æ

Page 5 of 8

39



Support for S.2012 (Feinstein) CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 6

Media Contact:
Cecilia Sulhoff, (202) 418-0587 
cecilia.sulhoff@fcc.gov

For Immediate Release

FCC FACILITATES DEPLOYMENT OF WIRELESS 
INFRASTRUCTURE FOR 5G CONNECTIVITY

Action Removes Regulatory Barriers to Infrastructure 
Investment

--

WASHINGTON, September 26, 2018—Today, the Federal Communications 
Commission took another important step in its ongoing efforts to remove 
regulatory barriers that inhibit the deployment of infrastructure necessary for 5G 
and other advanced wireless services. This action, which builds upon those 
already taken by states and localities to streamline deployment, underscores the 
FCC’s commitment to ensuring that the United States wins the global race to 5G.

The first part of the Commission’s decision, a Declaratory Ruling, focuses 
primarily on local fees for the authorizations necessary to deploy small wireless 
facilities. Specifically, the Declaratory Ruling:

1 Explains when a state or local regulation of wireless infrastructure deployment 
constitutes an effective prohibition of service prohibited by Sections 253 or 
332(c)(7) of the Communications Act;

2 Concludes that Section 253 and 332(c)(7) limit state and local governments to 
charging fees that are no greater than a reasonable approximation of objectively 
reasonable costs for processing applications and for managing deployments in 
the rights-of-way.

3 Removes uncertainty by identifying specific fee levels for small wireless 
facility deployments that presumably comply with the relevant standard; 
and

4 Provides guidance on when certain state and local non-fee requirements that 
are allowed under the Act—such as aesthetic and undergrounding 
requirements—may constitute an effective prohibition of service.

The second part of the Commission’s decision, the Third Report & Order in the 
Wireless Infrastructure Docket:

Page 6 of 8

40

mailto:cecilia.sulhoff@fcc.gov


Support for S.2012 (Feinstein) CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 7

5 Establishes two new shot clocks for small wireless facilities (60 days for 
collocation on preexisting structures and 90 days for new builds);

6 Codifies the existing 90 and 150 day shot clocks for wireless facility deployments 
that do not qualify as small cells that were established in 2009;

7 Concludes that all state and local government authorizations necessary for the 
deployment of personal wireless service infrastructure are subject to those shot 
clocks; and

8 Adopts a new remedy for missed shot clocks by finding that a failure to act 
within the new small wireless facility shot clock constitutes a presumptive 
prohibition on the provision of services.

Action by the Commission September 26, 2018 by Declaratory Ruling and Report 
and Order (FCC 18-133). Chairman Pai, Commissioners O’Rielly and Carr 
approving. Commissioner Rosenworcel approving in part and dissenting in part. 
Chairman Pai, Commissioners O’Rielly, Carr, and Rosenworcel issuing separate 
statements.

WT Docket No. 17-79; WC Docket No. 17-84

###

Office of Media Relations: (202) 418-0500

ASL Videophone: (844) 432-2275

TTY: (888) 835-5322

Twitter: @FCC 
www.fcc.gov/office-media-relations

This is an unofficial announcement of Commission Action. Release of the full text of a Commission order 
constitutes official action. See MCI v. FCC, 515 F.2d 385 (D.C. Cir. 1974)

Page 7 of 8

41

http://www.fcc.gov/office-media-relations


Support for S.2012 (Feinstein) CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 8

Page 8 of 8

42



Susan Wengraf
Councilmember District 6

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7160 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7166
E-Mail: swengraf@cityofberkeley.info 

CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmember Susan Wengraf

Subject: Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 (McGuire and Glazer)

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt a resolution in support of three bills which aim to protect people whose lives could 
be endangered without use of needed electrical resources during PG&E’s Public Safety 
Power Shut-offs. Send the resolution to California Senators Mike McGuire, Steve 
Glazer, Nancy Skinner and Buffy Wicks. The bills are:

1) SB-431 Mobile telephony service base transceiver station towers: performance 
reliability standards (McGuire & Glazer)

2) SB-801 Electrical corporations: wildfire mitigation plans: deenergization: public safety 
protocol (McGuire & Glazer)

3) SB-802 Emergency backup generators: health facilities: permit operating condition 
exclusion (Glazer)

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None

BACKGROUND
PG&E and other utilities are working to improve their ability to provide power without fire 
risk during high wind and low moisture conditions. In the meantime, PG&E will continue 
to impose the Public Safety Power Shut-off program. These bills are vital to help 
residents deal with power outages. 

SB–431 will require mobile phone companies to provide at least 72 hours of back-up 
power on their towers. Cell phones are lifelines in emergencies. Californians learned 
during the Public Safety Power Shut Offs that many cell towers were inoperable, leaving 
large numbers of people without access to receiving emergency notifications, or the 
ability to call for help. 

Page 1 of 18

43

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB431
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB801
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB802
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.13



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 2

SB-801 will require that utilities provide back-up battery packs to all customers whose 
lives would be endangered by an extended, deliberate power outage. PG&E alone has 
over 10,000 people signed up for the “medical baseline” designation, meaning they 
depend on electricity for their health. However PG&E had only about 500 back-up 
battery packs to distribute to their medical baseline customers during last years’ Public 
Safety Power Shut-offs, just a tiny percentage of the need. This legislation will mandate 
PG&E to provide emergency power to those whose lives depend on it. 

SB-802 clarifies state laws and regulations so that hospitals don’t need to shut down 
generators during an extended outage. Hospitals are currently allowed to run their 
diesel-powered generators without limits during a declared disaster.  But most local air 
pollution districts have limits on how many hours a generator can run. Many hospitals 
are concerned that those limits apply even during a Public Safety Power Shut-off. 
Hospitals need to run their generators so they can take care of patients without fearing 
fines or other air quality regulation penalties.  

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Protecting people whose lives could be endangered without use of needed electrical 
resources supports the city’s efforts to provide a healthy and environmentally 
sustainable community.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Wengraf Council District 6 510-981-7160

Attachments: 
1: Resolution
2: SB-431
3: SB-801
4: SB-802

Page 2 of 18

44



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

City of Berkeley Supports SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 

WHEREAS, PG&E’s Public Safety Shut-offs have demonstrated the need for legislation to 
protect lives that could be endangered without access to electrical resources: and 

WHEREAS, SB-801 requires all California utility companies to provide back-up battery 
packs to all customers whose lives would be endangered by an extended, deliberate power 
outage; and

WHEREAS, SB-802 clarifies that hospitals can run back-up diesel generators for the 
duration of a planned utility power shut-off even if the governor has not declared a disaster 
or state emergency; and 

WHEREAS, SB-431 requires mobile phone companies to provide at least 72 hours of back-
up power on their towers, and

WHEREAS, SB 801, SB 802 and SB 431 are critical state bills that will help protect Berkeley 
residents during PG&E’s Public Safety Shut-offs and during other emergencies. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that it fully 
supports Senators Steve Glazer and Mike McGuire’s bills: SB-801 Electrical corporations: 
wildfire mitigation plans: deenergization: public safety protocol; SB-802 Emergency backup 
generators: health facilities; permit operating condition exclusion; and SB-431 Mobile 
telephony service base transceiver station towers: performance reliability standards. 

Page 3 of 18

45



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 4

AMENDED IN ASSEMBLY JUNE 12, 2019

SENATE BILL No. 431

Introduced by Senator McGuire

February 21, 2019

An act to amend Section 2146 of the Elections Code, add Section

776.2 to the Public Utilities Code, relating to elections. communications.

legislative counsel’s digest

SB 431, as amended, McGuire. Elections: voter registration 
forms. Mobile telephony service base transceiver station towers: 
performance reliability standards.

Under existing law, the Public Utilities Commission has 
regulatory authority over public utilities, including telephone 
corporations. Existing law requires the commission to develop 
and implement performance reliability standards for backup 
power systems installed on the property of residential and small 
commercial customers by a facilities-based provider of telephony 
services upon determining that the benefits of the standards 
exceed the costs.

This bill would require the commission, in consultation with the 
Office of Emergency Services, to develop and implement 
performance reliability standards, as specified, for all mobile 
telephony service base transceiver station towers, commonly 
known as “cell towers,” located within a commission-designated 
Tier 2 or Tier 3 High Fire Threat District.

Under existing law, a violation of the Public Utilities Act or any 
order, decision, rule, direction, demand, or requirement of the 
commission is a crime.

Because the provisions of this bill would be a part of the act 
and because a violation of an order or decision of the 
commission

98

SB 431 — 2 —

Page 4 of 18

46



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 5

implementing its requirements would be a crime, the bill would 
impose a state-mandated local program by creating a new 
crime.

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse 
local agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated 
by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for 
making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by 
this act for a specified reason.

Existing law requires the Secretary of State to annually provide 
every high school, community college, and California State 
University and University of California campus with voter 
registration forms, and to provide additional forms to a school, 
free of charge, if so requested by the school.

This bill would require the Secretary of State to provide 
additional forms requested by a school within 30 days.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: no yes.

State-mandated local program: no yes.

The people of the State of California do enact as 
follows:

1 SECTION 1. Section 776.2 is added to the Public Utilities
2 Code, to read:
3 776.2. (a) The commission, in consultation with the Office of
4 Emergency Services, shall develop and implement performance
5 reliability standards for all mobile telephony service base
6 transceiver station towers located within a commission-designated
7 Tier 2 or Tier 3 High Fire Threat District. Those standards shall
8 do both of the following:
9 (1) Establish a minimum operating life for backup power systems

10 of no less than 48 hours.
11 (2) Establish means to warn a customer when the backup power
12 system is low or when the transceiver system can no longer be
13 supported by the backup power system.
14 (b) In developing and implementing any standards pursuant to
15 subdivision (a), the commission shall consider current best
16 practices and technical feasibility for establishing backup power
17 system requirements.
18 (c) The commission shall collect data necessary to identify the
19 mobile telephony service base transceiver station infrastructure

Page 5 of 18

47



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 6

98

— 3 — SB 431

1 that shall be subject to the performance reliability standards
2 adopted pursuant to subdivision (a).
3 (d) The commission may require a mobile telephony services
4 provider to collect and forward to the commission any relevant
5 information that may be useful to the commission’s development
6 or implementation of performance reliability standards pursuant
7 to this section.
8 SEC. 2. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to
9 Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because

10 the only costs that may be incurred by a local agency or school
11 district will be incurred because this act creates a new crime or
12 infraction, eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penalty
13 for a crime or infraction, within the meaning of Section 17556 of
14 the Government Code, or changes the definition of a crime within
15 the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California
16 Constitution.
17 SECTION 1. Section 2146 of the Elections Code is amended
18 to read:
19 2146. (a) The Secretary of State shall annually provide every
20 high school, community college, and California State University
21 and University of California campus with voter registration forms.
22 The Secretary of State shall provide additional forms to a school,
23 free of charge, within 30 days of receiving a request for additional
24 forms.
25 (b) The Secretary of State shall provide a written notice with
26 each registration form describing eligibility requirements and
27 informing each student that they may return the completed form
28 in person or by mail to the elections official of the county in which
29 the student resides or to the Secretary of State.
30 (c) (1) (A) Every community college and California State
31 University campus that operates an automated class registration
32 system on or before January 1, 2008, shall, through an automated
33 program, in coordination with the Secretary of State, permit
34 students, during the class registration process, to apply to register
35 to vote online by submitting an affidavit of voter registration
36 electronically on the internet website of the Secretary of State.
37 (B) A community college or California State University campus
38 that does not operate an automated class registration system on or
39 before January 1, 2008, shall, within two years of implementing
40 an automated class registration system, through an automated

98

Page 6 of 18

48



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 7

1 program in coordination with the Secretary of State, permit
2 students, during the class registration process, to apply to register
3 to vote online by submitting an affidavit of voter registration
4 electronically on the internet website of the Secretary of State.
5 (2) As soon as a community college or California State
6 University or University of California campus complies with
7 paragraph (1), the Secretary of State may continue, at their
8 discretion, to provide the campus with voter registration forms
9 unless the campus requests not to receive the voter registration

10 forms.
11 (3) The University of California is encouraged to comply with
12 this subdivision.
13 (d) The Secretary of State shall submit to the Legislature, on or
14 before January 1 of each year, a report on its student voter
15 registration efforts pursuant to this article. This report shall include
16 estimates as to how many voter registration forms were sent to
17 high schools, community colleges, and California State University
18 and University of California campuses; how many voter registration
19 forms were submitted; and how many electronic affidavits of voter
20 registration were submitted by students pursuant to subdivision 
21 (c).
22 (e) It is the intent of the Legislature that every eligible high
23 school and college student receive a meaningful opportunity to
24 apply to register to vote. It is also the intent of the Legislature that
25 every school do all in its power to ensure that students are provided
26 the opportunity and means to apply to register to vote. This may
27 include providing voter registration forms at the start of the school
28 year, including voter registration forms with orientation materials;
29 placing voter registration forms at central locations, including voter
30 registration forms with graduation materials; or providing
31 hyperlinks to, and the internet website address of, the Secretary
32 of State’s electronic voter registration system in notices sent by
33 electronic mail to students and placed on the internet website of
34 the high school, college, or university.

O

98

SB 431 — 4 —

Page 7 of 18

49



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 8

SENATE BILL No. 801

Introduced by Senators Glazer and McGuire
(Principal coauthor: Assembly Member Bauer-Kahan)

(Coauthors: Senators Dodd, Hill, Nielsen, Stern, and Wilk)

January 7, 2020

An act to amend Section 8386 of the Public Utilities Code, 
relating to electricity.

legislative counsel’s digest

SB 801, as introduced, Glazer. Electrical corporations: wildfire 
mitigation plans: deenergization: public safety protocol.

Under existing law, the Public Utilities Commission has 
regulatory authority over public utilities, including electrical 

corporations. Existing law requires each electrical corporation to 
annually prepare and submit a wildfire mitigation plan to the 
commission for review and approval, as specified. Following 
approval, the commission is required to oversee compliance 

with the plans. Existing law requires a wildfire mitigation plan of 
an electrical corporation to include, among other things, 

protocols for deenergizing portions of the electrical distribution 
system that consider the associated impacts on public safety. 

As part of these protocols, an electrical corporation is required 
to include protocols related to mitigating the public safety 

impacts of deenergizing portions of the electrical distribution 
system that consider customers that receive medical baseline 

allowances. Existing law authorizes an electrical corporation 
to deploy backup electrical resources or provide financial 
assistance for backup electrical resources to a customer 

receiving a medical baseline allowance if the customer meets 
specified conditions. This bill would require an electrical 

corporation to deploy backup electrical resources or provide 
financial assistance for backup electrical

99

SB 801 — 2 —

Page 8 of 18

50



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 9

resources to a customer receiving a medical baseline 
allowance if the customer meets those conditions.

Under existing law, a violation of any order, decision, rule, 
direction, demand, or requirement of the commission is a 
crime.

Because this bill would add additional requirements to an 
electrical corporation’s wildfire mitigation plan that would be 
approved and overseen by the commission and because a 
violation of an order or decision of the commission implementing 
its requirements would be a crime, the bill would impose a state-
mandated local program by creating a new crime.

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse 
local agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated 

by the state. Statutory provisions establish procedures for 
making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by 
this act for a specified reason.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes.

State-mandated local program: yes.

The people of the State of California do enact as 
follows:

20 SECTION 1. Section 8386 of the Public Utilities Code is
21 amended to read:
22 8386. (a) Each electrical corporation shall construct, maintain,
23 and operate its electrical lines and equipment in a manner that will
24 minimize the risk of catastrophic wildfire posed by those electrical
25 lines and equipment.
26 (b) Each electrical corporation shall annually prepare and submit
27 a wildfire mitigation plan to the Wildfire Safety Division for review
28 and approval. In calendar year 2020, and thereafter, the plan shall

29 cover at least a three-year period. The division shall establish a
30 schedule for the submission of subsequent comprehensive wildfire
31 mitigation plans, which may allow for the staggering of compliance
32 periods for each electrical corporation. In its discretion, the division
33 may allow the annual submissions to be updates to the last
34 approved comprehensive wildfire mitigation plan; provided, that
35 each electrical corporation shall submit a comprehensive wildfire
36 mitigation plan at least once every three years.
37 (c) The wildfire mitigation plan shall include all of the
38 following:

Page 9 of 18

51



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 10

99

— 3 — SB 801

41 (1) An accounting of the responsibilities of persons responsible
42 for executing the plan.
43 (2) The objectives of the plan.
44 (3) A description of the preventive strategies and programs to
45 be adopted by the electrical corporation to minimize the risk of its
46 electrical lines and equipment causing catastrophic wildfires,
47 including consideration of dynamic climate change risks.
48 (4) A description of the metrics the electrical corporation plans
49 to use to evaluate the plan’s performance and the assumptions that

50 underlie the use of those metrics.
51 (5) A discussion of how the application of previously identified
52 metrics to previous plan performances has informed the plan.
53 (6) Protocols for disabling reclosers and deenergizing portions
54 of the electrical distribution system that consider the associated
55 impacts on public safety. As part of these protocols, each electrical
56 corporation shall include protocols related to mitigating the public
57 safety impacts of disabling reclosers and deenergizing portions of
58 the electrical distribution system that consider the impacts on all
59 of the following:
60 (A) Critical first responders.
61 (B) Health and communication infrastructure.
62 (C) Customers who receive medical baseline allowances
63 pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 739. The electrical
64 corporation may shall deploy backup electrical resources or provide
65 financial assistance for backup electrical resources to a customer
66 receiving a medical baseline allowance for a customer who meets
67 all of the following requirements:
68 (i) The customer relies on life-support equipment that operates
69 on electricity to sustain life.
70 (ii) The customer demonstrates financial need, including through
71 enrollment in the California Alternate Rates for Energy program
72 created pursuant to Section 739.1.
73 (iii) The customer is not eligible for backup electrical resources
74 provided through medical services, medical insurance, or
75 community resources.
76 (D) Subparagraph (C) shall not be construed as preventing an
77 electrical corporation from deploying backup electrical resources
78 or providing financial assistance for backup electrical resources
79 under any other authority.

99

Page 10 of 18

52



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 11

SB 801 — 4 —

21 (7) Appropriate and feasible procedures for notifying a customer
22 who may be impacted by the deenergizing of electrical lines,
23 including procedures for those customers receiving a medical
24 baseline allowance as described in paragraph (6). The procedures
25 shall direct notification to all public safety offices, critical first
26 responders, health care facilities, and operators of
27 telecommunications infrastructure with premises within the
28 footprint of potential deenergization for a given event.
29 (8) Plans for vegetation management.

30 (9) Plans for inspections of the electrical corporation’s electrical
31 infrastructure.
32 (10) Protocols for the deenergization of the electrical
33 corporation’s transmission infrastructure, for instances when the
34 deenergization may impact customers who, or entities that, are
35 dependent upon the infrastructure.
36 (11) A list that identifies, describes, and prioritizes all wildfire
37 risks, and drivers for those risks, throughout the electrical
38 corporation’s service territory, including all relevant wildfire risk
39 and risk mitigation information that is part of the Safety Model
40 Assessment Proceeding and the Risk Assessment Mitigation Phase
41 filings. The list shall include, but not be limited to, both of the
42 following:
43 (A) Risks and risk drivers associated with design, construction,
44 operations, and maintenance of the electrical corporation’s
45 equipment and facilities.
46 (B) Particular risks and risk drivers associated with topographic
47 and climatological risk factors throughout the different parts of
48 the electrical corporation’s service territory.
49 (12) A description of how the plan accounts for the wildfire risk
50 identified in the electrical corporation’s Risk Assessment
51 Mitigation Phase filing.
52 (13) A description of the actions the electrical corporation will
53 take to ensure its system will achieve the highest level of safety,
54 reliability, and resiliency, and to ensure that its system is prepared
55 for a major event, including hardening and modernizing its
56 infrastructure with improved engineering, system design, standards,
57 equipment, and facilities, such as undergrounding, insulation of
58 distribution wires, and pole replacement.
59 (14) A description of where and how the electrical corporation
60 considered undergrounding electrical distribution lines within those

99

— 5 — SB 801

Page 11 of 18

53



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 12

35 areas of its service territory identified to have the highest wildfire
36 risk in a commission fire threat map.
37 (15) A showing that the electrical corporation has an adequately
38 sized and trained workforce to promptly restore service after a
39 major event, taking into account employees of other utilities
40 pursuant to mutual aid agreements and employees of entities that
41 have entered into contracts with the electrical corporation.
42 (16) Identification of any geographic area in the electrical
43 corporation’s service territory that is a higher wildfire threat than

44 is currently identified in a commission fire threat map, and where
45 the commission should consider expanding the high fire threat
46 district based on new information or changes in the environment.
47 (17) A methodology for identifying and presenting
48 enterprisewide safety risk and wildfire-related risk that is consistent
49 with the methodology used by other electrical corporations unless
50 the commission determines otherwise.
51 (18) A description of how the plan is consistent with the
52 electrical corporation’s disaster and emergency preparedness plan
53 prepared pursuant to Section 768.6, including both of the following:
54 (A) Plans to prepare for, and to restore service after, a wildfire,
55 including workforce mobilization and prepositioning equipment
56 and employees.
57 (B) Plans for community outreach and public awareness before,
58 during, and after a wildfire, including language notification in
59 English, Spanish, and the top three primary languages used in the
60 state other than English or Spanish, as determined by the
61 commission based on the United States Census data.
62 (19) A statement of how the electrical corporation will restore
63 service after a wildfire.
64 (20) Protocols for compliance with requirements adopted by
65 the commission regarding activities to support customers during
66 and after a wildfire, outage reporting, support for low-income
67 customers, billing adjustments, deposit waivers, extended payment
68 plans, suspension of disconnection and nonpayment fees, repair
69 processing and timing, access to electrical corporation
70 representatives, and emergency communications.
71 (21) A description of the processes and procedures the electrical
72 corporation will use to do all of the following:
73 (A) Monitor and audit the implementation of the plan.

99

Page 12 of 18

54



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 13

(B) Identify any deficiencies in the plan or the plan’s

2 implementation and correct those deficiencies.
3 (C) Monitor and audit the effectiveness of electrical line and
4 equipment inspections, including inspections performed by
5 contractors, carried out under the plan and other applicable statutes
6 and commission rules.
7 (22) Any other information that the Wildfire Safety Division
8 may require.
9 (d) The Wildfire Safety Division shall post all wildfire

10 mitigation plans and annual updates on the commission’s internet
11 website for no less than two months before the division’s decision
12 regarding approval of the plan. The division shall accept comments
13 on each plan from the public, other local and state agencies, and
14 interested parties, and verify that the plan complies with all
15 applicable rules, regulations, and standards, as appropriate.
16 SEC. 2. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to
17 Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because
18 the only costs that may be incurred by a local agency or school
19 district will be incurred because this act creates a new crime or
20 infraction, eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penalty
21 for a crime or infraction, within the meaning of Section 17556 of
22 the Government Code, or changes the definition of a crime within
23 the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California
24 Constitution.

O

99

SB 801 — 6 —

Page 13 of 18

55



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 14

SENATE BILL No. 802
Introduced by Senator Glazer

(Principal coauthor: Assembly Member Bauer-Kahan)
(Coauthors: Senators Dodd, Hill, Nielsen, and Wilk)

January 7, 2020
An act to add Article 9.3 (commencing with Section 42000) to 

Chapter 3 of Part 4 of Division 26 of the Health and Safety Code, and 
to amend Section 8385 of, and to add Section 8386.7 to, the Public 
Utilities Code, relating to nonvehicular air pollution.

legislative counsel’s digest

SB 802, as introduced, Glazer. Emergency backup generators: health 
facilities: permit operating condition exclusion.

Existing law imposes various limitations on emissions of air 
contaminants for the control of air pollution from vehicular and 
nonvehicular sources. Existing law generally designates air pollution 
control and air quality management districts with the primary 
responsibility for the control of air pollution from all sources other than 
vehicular sources. Existing law requires the State Air Resources Board 
to identify toxic air contaminants that are emitted into the ambient air 
of the state and to establish airborne toxic control measures to reduce 
emissions of toxic air contaminants from nonvehicular sources.

This bill would require an air district to adopt a rule or revise its 
existing rules, consistent with federal law, to allow a health facility that 
has received a permit from the district to construct and operate an 
emergency backup generator to use that emergency backup generator 
during a deenergization event without having that usage count toward 
any time limitation on actual usage and routine testing and maintenance 
included as a condition for issuance of that permit. By requiring air

99

SB 802 — 2 —

districts to adopt or revise its rules, the bill would impose a state-
mandated local program.

Under existing law, the Public Utilities Commission has regulatory 
authority over public utilities, including electrical corporations, while 
local publicly owned electric utilities are under the direction of their 
governing boards. Electrical cooperatives are subject to the regulatory 
authority of the commission, except as specified. Existing law requires 
each electrical corporation to annually prepare and submit a wildfire 
mitigation plan to the commission for review and approval, as 
specified. Following approval, the commission is required to oversee 
compliance with the plans. Existing law requires each local publicly 
owned electric utility and electrical cooperative to annually prepare a 
wildfire mitigation plan and to verify that the wildfire mitigation plan 
complies with all applicable rules, regulations, and standards, as 
appropriate. Existing law requires a wildfire mitigation plan of an 

Page 14 of 18

56



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 15

electrical corporation to include, among other things, protocols for 
deenergizing portions of the electrical distribution system that consider 
the associated impacts on public safety, as well as protocols related to 
mitigating the public safety impacts of those protocols, including 
impacts on critical first responders and on health and communications 
infrastructure. Existing law requires a wildfire mitigation plan of an 
electrical corporation to also include appropriate and feasible 
procedures for notifying a customer who may be impacted by the 
deenergizing of electrical lines and requires these procedures to 
consider the need to notify, as a priority, critical first responders, health 
care facilities, and operators of telecommunications infrastructure with 
premises within the footprint of a potential deenergization event. 
Existing law requires that an electrical cooperative and a local publicly 
owned electric utility consider these matters when developing and 
implementing a wildfire mitigation plan.

If an electrical corporation, electrical cooperative, or local publicly 
owned electric utility has undertaken a deenergization event during a 
calendar year, this bill would require the electrical corporation, 
electrical cooperative, or local publicly owned electric utility, by 
January 30 of the following calendar year, to submit a report with 
specified information to each air quality management district and air 
pollution control district affected by the deenergization event.

Under existing law, a violation of any order, decision, rule, direction, 
demand, or requirement of the commission is a crime.

Because this bill would require action by the commission to 
implement its requirements, and a violation of that action would be a 
crime, the

99

— 3 — SB 802

bill would impose a state-mandated local program by creating a new 
crime. By requiring local publicly owned electric utilities to report 
matters to air quality management districts and air pollution control 
districts the bill would impose a state-mandated local program.

The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local 
agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. 

Statutory provisions establish procedures for making that 
reimbursement.

This bill would provide that with regard to certain mandates no 
reimbursement is required by this act for specified reasons.

With regard to any other mandates, this bill would provide that, if 
the Commission on State Mandates determines that the bill contains 
costs so mandated by the state, reimbursement for those costs shall be 
made pursuant to the statutory provisions noted above.

Vote: majority. Appropriation: no. Fiscal committee: yes.
State-mandated local program: yes.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

Page 15 of 18

57



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 16

39 SECTION 1. Article 9.3 (commencing with Section 42000) is
40 added to Chapter 3 of Part 4 of Division 26 of the Health and Safety
41 Code, to read:
4
5 Article 9.3. Emergency Backup Generators 6
80 42000. For purposes of this article, the following terms apply:
81 (a) “Deenergization event” means the proactive interruption of
82 electrical service for the purpose of mitigating or avoiding the risk

83 of causing a wildfire.
84 (b) “Electrical corporation” has the same meaning as defined
85 in Section 218 of the Public Utilities Code.
86 (c) “Emergency backup generator” means a device used for the
87 generation of electricity for emergency use that is subject to the
88 State Air Resources Board’s Airborne Toxic Control Measure for
89 Stationary Compression Ignition Engines (Section 93115.1 of Title
90 17 of the California Code of Regulations, and following). For these
91 purposes, “emergency use” has the same meaning as defined in
92 Section 93115.4 of Title 17 of the California Code of Regulations.
93 (d) “Health facility” has the same meaning as defined in 
Section 21 1250.

99

SB 802 — 4 —

61 (e) “Local publicly owned electric utility” has the same meaning
62 as defined in Section 224.3 of the Public Utilities Code.
63 (f) “Permit” means a permit issued by the district pursuant to
64 Article 1 (commencing with Section 42300) of Chapter 4.
65 42001. Consistent with federal law, a district shall adopt a rule,
66 or revise its existing rules, to allow a health facility that has
67 received a permit from the district to construct and operate an
68 emergency backup generator to use that emergency backup
69 generator during a deenergization event without having that usage

70 count toward any time limitation on actual usage and routine testing
71 and maintenance included as a condition for issuance of that permit.
72 For a health facility that receives notice of a planned deenergization
73 event, whether made specifically to the facility or made generally
74 to the public, the period of permissable use exempt from the time
75 limitation on actual usage shall encompass the period commencing
76 when the health facility is notified that the deenergization will or
77 will likely commence, and concluding when the health facility
78 receives notification, whether specific or general, that reliable
79 electrical service has been restored.
80 SEC. 2. Section 8385 of the Public Utilities Code is amended
81 to read:
82 8385. (a) For purposes of this chapter, the following shall
83 apply:
84 (1) “Compliance period” means a period of approximately one
85 year.
86 (2) “Deenergization event” means the proactive interruption
87 of electrical service for the purpose of mitigating or avoiding the

Page 16 of 18

58



Support for SB-431, SB-801 and SB-802 CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 17

88 risk of causing a wildfire.
29 (2)
74 (3) “Electrical cooperative” has the same meaning as defined
75 in Section 2776.
76 (b) The commission shall supervise an electrical corporation’s
77 compliance with the requirements of this chapter pursuant to the
78 Public Utilities Act (Part 1 (commencing with Section 201) of
79 Division 1). Nothing in this chapter affects the commission’s
80 authority or jurisdiction over an electrical cooperative or local
81 publicly owned electrical corporation. electric utility.
82 SEC. 3. Section 8386.7 is added to the Public Utilities Code,
83 to read:

99

Page 17 of 18

59



8386.7. If an electrical corporation, electrical cooperative, or
25 local publicly owned electric utility has undertaken a
26 deenergization event during a calendar year, the electrical utility
27 shall submit a report, by January 30 of the following calendar year,
28 to each air quality management district and air pollution control
29 district affected by the deenergization event that includes all of
30 the following:
31 (a) A description of the area affected by the deenergization
32 event.

33 (b) A description of when the deenergization event began and
34 when reliable electrical service was restored.
35 (c) A description of any notifications specifically provided to
36 health care facilities that they would or would likely be affected
37 by a deenergizing of electrical lines and when the deenergization
38 event would likely begin or, absent specific notification, any
39 notifications made generally to the public of when the
40 deenergization event would or would likely commence.
41 (d) A description of any notifications specifically provided to
42 health care facilities that reliable electrical service has been restored
43 or, absent specific notification, any notifications made generally
44 to the public that reliable electrical service has been restored.
45 SEC. 4. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to
46 Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California Constitution for certain
47 mandates because a local agency or school district has the authority
48 to levy service charges, fees, or assessments sufficient to pay for
49 the program or level of service mandated by this act or because
50 costs that may be incurred by a local agency or school district will
51 be incurred because this act creates a new crime or infraction,
52 eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penalty for a crime
53 or infraction, within the meaning of Section 17556 of the
54 Government Code, or changes the definition of a crime within the
55 meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the California
56 Constitution.
57 With respect to other mandates, if the Commission on State
58 Mandates determines that this act contains costs mandated by the
59 state, reimbursement to local agencies and school districts for those
60 costs shall be made pursuant to Part 7 (commencing with Section
61 17500) of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Government Code.

O
99

— 5 — SB 802

Page 18 of 18

60



Office of the Mayor

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7100 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7199
E-Mail: mayor@cityofberkeley.info

ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Mayor Jesse Arreguín, Councilmembers Cheryl Davila, Kate Harrison, Ben 
Bartlett

Subject: Ronald V. Dellums Fair Chance Access to Housing Ordinance; Adding BMC 
Chapter 13.106

RECOMMENDATION
1. Adopt a first reading of the Ronald V. Dellums Fair Chance Access to Housing 

Ordinance, adding Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.106 and;

2. Direct the City Manager to take all necessary steps to implement this chapter 
including but not limited to developing administrative regulations in consultation 
with all relevant City Departments including the Rent Stabilization Board, 
preparing an annual implementation budget, designating hearing officers and 
other necessary staffing for administrative complaint, exploring the development 
of a compliance testing program similar to that used by the Seattle Office of Civil 
Rights, developing timelines and procedures for complaints, conducting outreach 
and education in partnership with the Alameda County Fair Chance Housing 
Coalition, and referring program costs to the June budget process. 

POLICY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
On November 7, 2019, the Land Use, Housing, and Economic Development Committee 
adopted the following action:  M/S/C (Droste/Hahn) to move the item with amendments 
and subject to additional technical revisions with a positive recommendation.  Vote: All 
Ayes.

BACKGROUND
The City of Berkeley, along with other California urban areas, has seen an 
unprecedented increase in homelessness, with dire public health and safety 
consequences. This proposed Fair Chance Housing Ordinance serves as critical 
strategy to house currently unhoused people and also prevent more people from 
becoming homeless.

Structural barriers faced by formerly incarcerated people continue to exist, with the 
persistent use of criminal records blocking housing opportunities for many. A lack of 
access to stable housing increases the risk of recidivism, furthering the cycle caused by 
an inequitable criminal justice system. A 2019 survey by UC Berkeley’s Goldman 

Page 1 of 37

61

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.20



Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 2

School for Public Policy found that a third of formerly incarcerated Alameda County 
residents had experienced homelessness or housing insecurity, and 54% had been 
denied either housing or the opportunity to live with a family member because of their 
criminal record. 

Multiple jurisdictions across the country, including regional neighbors such as Oakland, 
San Francisco and Richmond, have passed a Fair Chance Housing Ordinance, which 
prohibits landlords from prohibiting tenancy based on an individual’s criminal history. 
The Berkeley Housing Element calls for the creation and enforcement of fair housing 
laws. 

In October 2018, the City Council unanimously approved a referral to the City Manager 
and the 4x4 Committee to establish a Fair Chance Housing Ordinance. The 4x4 
Committee discussed this during their meetings in May and June 2019, in consultation 
with the Alameda County Fair Chance Housing Coalition led by the Just Cities/ Dellums 
Institute for Social Justice, and various stakeholders. 

The Fair Chance Ordinance was moved to the Land Use, Housing and Economic 
Committee where it was first discussed on July 18, 2019. The ordinance was discussed 
in depth over the course of five committee meetings. Several key amendments were 
accepted by the author and advocates based on input from property owners. These 
noted “exemptions” in the summary section on page four were the result of concerns 
raised about: (1) small Housing Providers not having access to information and/or the 
capacity to implement many changes into their existing systems; and (2) owner 
occupied Housing Providers having special considerations. 

On November 7, 2019 the committee took the following action:

M/S/C (Droste/Hahn) to move the item with amendments and subject to additional 
technical revisions with a positive recommendation. Vote: All Ayes. 

The final Committee amendments:

 Clarified definitions of “Adverse Action”, “Aggrieved Person”, “Close Family 
Member” and “Housing”. 

 Refined the terms of the exemptions for use of Background Check Reports 

 Requested that the City Attorney make technical revisions to ensure appropriate 
formatting and define the locations where Housing Providers must post notices 
required under the Ordinance.

Subsequent to the Committee's action, the Mayor reviewed the ordinance to ensure that 
the language was clear and also compared our ordinance to the recently adopted 
Oakland Fair Chance Ordinance and has proposed new clarifying changes. 

Page 2 of 37

62



Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 3

SUMMARY
As research and lived experience demonstrate, formerly incarcerated people 
experience significant barriers beyond the high cost of rent that prevent them from 
securing housing. They are screened out when applying to rent housing due to criminal 
background checks in private rental, nonprofit affordable housing, and public housing 
units. Even living with family members is not always a viable solution as it may put their 
family’s housing at risk-- rental agreements may prohibit or limit people with criminal 
histories from residing in the units. Fair Chance Housing is legislation that prohibits the 
use of criminal histories for most offenses in determining access to housing.  It also 
bans the use of advertising language that excludes people with arrest records, 
conviction records, or criminal history.  In short, Fair Chance Housing legislation 
removes structural barriers to housing and enables landlords to consider the merits of 
individual housing applications—providing people with a fair chance.

Led by Just Cities/the Dellums Institute for Social Justice, The Alameda County Fair 
Chance Housing Coalition has been working to remove such structural exclusionary 
barriers for people coming home from prison.  The purposes of the Fair Chance 
Housing Ordinance are to: (1) increase access to housing for formerly incarcerated 
individuals and their family members; (2) reduce the homelessness and family 
separation that result from blanket exclusion of housing applicants based solely on 
criminal background checks; (3) reduce recidivism by removing structural barriers to 
stable housing; (4) provide formerly incarcerated people with a fair opportunity to 
reclaim their lives and effectively reintegrate into the Berkeley community; and (5) 
maintain existing safeguards for owners.

The table below summarizes the main policy terms organized by the type of housing 
provider.

Housing Provider Criminal 
Background Check

Due Process Reporting to 
City

Potential Remedies for 
Violations

Private (Non-
Affordable Housing 
Provider)

No City Complaint 
or
Sue in Court

None City complaint w/ fine.  Court 
action w/ damages or injunctive 
relief.

Publicly Subsidized 
& Not HUD Funded 

No City Complaint 
or
Sue in Court

Annual 
certification of 
compliance

City complaint w/ fine.  Court 
action w/ damages or injunctive 
relief.

HUD Funded Following due process 
protections, can check 
on 2 crimes per HUD 
rules 

City Complaint 
or
Sue in Court

Annual 
certification of 
compliance

City complaint w/ fine.  Court 
action w/ damages or injunctive 
relief.

Page 3 of 37

63



Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 4

ORDINANCE PROHIBITIONS:  

The proposed ordinance prohibits ALL landlords from:
(a) Advertising or using a policy that automatically excludes people with criminal 

histories from rental housing,
(b) Asking about or requiring disclosure of someone’s criminal history, or
(c) Taking adverse action against an applicant or tenant based on his or her criminal 

history.

EXEMPTIONS:

o The following properties where the owner occupies the property are exempt 
from the ordinance:  permitted ADUs, single family homes, duplexes, and 
triplexes.

o Property owners renting their primary dwelling when they are on sabbatical.
o Tenants renting out available bedrooms in the unit in which they reside.
o Pursuant to State law, landlords can review and consider whether an applicant 

is on the State operated registry of lifetime sex offenders in order to protect the 
safety of at risk people.  This review should happen after a conditional offer has 
been made and upon receipt of written consent of the applicant.  If a housing 
denial is based upon the registry information, the landlord must provide that 
information to the applicant and provide the applicant with the opportunity to 
rebut or provide mitigating information.

o Landlords of HUD funded housing have a partial exemption from the ordinance 
if they are complying with federal regulations that require them to automatically 
exclude tenants based on certain types of criminal history (lifetime sex offender 
registration requirement or making meth on a federally assisted housing 
property).  However, the landlord should follow due process protections 
including obtaining written consent from the applicant.  The landlord must also 
provide the background check information to the applicant and provide the 
applicant with the opportunity to rebut or provide mitigating information. 

Page 4 of 37

64



Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 5

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

Information below is based upon research conducted by the Just Cities Team, former 
senior government officials and academic researchers. The Just Cities Policy Justice 
Memo is included in Attachment 2.

SUMMARY OF FLAWS WITH CRIMINAL BACKGROUND DATABASE SYSTEMS

Research shows that government repositories of criminal records are routinely 
incomplete, thus making commercial criminal background reports inaccurate and/or 
misleading.  In 2006, the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) found that an estimated 
50% of FBI arrest records, which are used by many background check companies, were 
missing information on the final disposition of the cases in question.1 In 2016, the DOJ 
found that an estimated 32% of records in state criminal history repositories were 
missing final disposition data.2 Incomplete data at the state and federal levels 
undermine the fairness and accuracy of commercial criminal background reports, which 
rely upon governmental data. In particular, out-of-date information about the final 
disposition of a case means that data about arrests are routinely listed in background 
reports even when the charges were eventually dropped, reduced, or disproven in court. 

The consequences of these database gaps are significant. According to the National 
Employment Law Project (NELP), “one third of felony arrests do not result in conviction 
and many others are reduced to misdemeanors.”3  While industry-wide data on the 
inaccuracies of commercial criminal background reports are unavailable, the NELP 
estimates that 1.8 million workers are subject to FBI checks that include faulty or 
incomplete information each year.  Further, many on-line databases accessible through 
search engines are also inaccurate, even representing persons without criminal records 
as having been arrested or convicted.

The lack of accurate disposition data is one of many issues that undermine the 
accuracy of private criminal background reports. According to a review by the National 
Consumer Law Center, such reports suffer from a range of problems, including: the 
publication of sealed or expunged records; the misclassification of crimes (e.g. reporting 
a misdemeanor as a felony); the assignment of crimes to an individual who did not 
commit them, otherwise known as a “false positive”; and the display of data in a 
misleading manner (e.g. reporting a single arrest multiple times because it appears in 

1 U.S. Department of Justice. (2006). The Attorney General’s Report on Criminal History Background Checks, p. 3. 
2 National Consortium of Justice Statistics. (2018). Survey of State Criminal History Information Systems, 2016: A 
Criminal Justice Information Policy Report, p. 2. 
3 National Employment Law Project. (2013). Wanted: Accurate FBI Background Checks for Employment, pp. 1-2. 

Page 5 of 37

65

https://www.bjs.gov/content/pub/pdf/ag_bgchecks_report.pdf
https://www.ncjrs.gov/pdffiles1/bjs/grants/251516.pdf
https://www.ncjrs.gov/pdffiles1/bjs/grants/251516.pdf
https://www.nelp.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/03/Report-Wanted-Accurate-FBI-Background-Checks-Employment.pdf


Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 6

multiple databases).4 Unlike government screens, such commercial background checks 
are conducted using basic personal information, like names. In the late 1990s, a task 
force consisting of state and federal agencies found that, compared with fingerprint-
based checks, name-based checks resulted in a false-positive rate of 5.5%.5 This 
means that around 1 in 20 apparent identifications of a crime was ascribed to a person 
who did not in fact commit that crime.

SUMMARY OF HOUSING ACCESS BARRIERS FOR PEOPLE WITH CRIMINAL RECORDS

Alameda County service providers and national researchers have documented barriers 
to access to both private rental and publicly subsidized affordable housing faced by 
formerly incarcerated residents.6  Results of a 2019 Goldman School survey and 
interviews of formerly incarcerated persons in Alameda County found that many 
formerly incarcerated persons could not stay in public housing with a relative or family 
member due to public housing rules or were denied private or public rental housing due 
to their incarceration record.7  In addition, a recent survey by the Berkeley Property 
Owners Association found that the majority of landlord survey respondents conducted 
criminal background checks.  We note that persons paroled from incarceration are 
generally required to be returned to the county of their residence (CA Penal Code 
3003); therefore, parolees from this area will be returning home.

SUMMARY OF PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY IMPACTS FROM HOUSING BARRIERS:  

As the state with the second highest population of people currently in prison or jail in the 
country,8 California will need to house formerly incarcerated people as they reenter 
society in a highly impacted housing market. Alameda County has a total of 7,900 
people on probation or parole.9  Incarceration and lack of housing can lead to severely 

4 National Consumer Law Center. (2012). Broken Records: How Errors by Criminal Background Checking 
Companies Harm Workers and Businesses, p. 15. 
5 National Association of Professional Background Screeners. (2005). The National Crime Information Center: A 
Review and Evaluation, pp. 11-2. 
6 See Corinne Carey, No Second Chance: People with Criminal Records Denied Access to Public Housing, 36 
University of Toledo Law Review 545; Caterina Gouvis Roman and Jeremy Travis, Urban Institute, Taking Stock: 
Housing, Homelessness and Prisoner Re-Entry (2004); and Every Door Closed: Barriers Facing Parents With 
Criminal Records, CLASP and CLS Report, Chapter 3, “Criminal Records and Subsidized Housing: Families 
Losing the Opportunity for Decent Shelter”.
7 Rodriguez, Anthony (2019) “A Just Return Home: Identifying and Removing Barriers to Housing for Formerly 
Incarcerated Residents Through Suggested Policies for County of Alameda” Report for Just Cities and Goldman 
School of Public Policy. p.23
8 California 2017 raw numbers. “State-by-State Data.” The Sentencing Project. Accessed October 4, 2019. 
https://www.sentencingproject.org/the-facts/#detail?state1Option=U.S.Total&state2Option=0 
9 Total population in probation, Q4 2018 “Alameda County Probation Department Data Dashboard”. Alameda 
County. Accessed October 4, 2019. https://www.acgov.org/probation/dashboard.htm. 

Page 6 of 37

66

https://www.nclc.org/images/pdf/pr-reports/broken-records-report.pdf
https://www.nclc.org/images/pdf/pr-reports/broken-records-report.pdf
https://www.reentry.net/search/item.88782
https://www.reentry.net/search/item.88782
https://www.sentencingproject.org/the-facts/#detail?state1Option=U.S.Total&state2Option=0
https://www.acgov.org/probation/dashboard.htm


Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 7

limited economic opportunity, thereby increasing the chances of recidivism and public 
safety impacts. 

Research has shown that access to stable and affordable housing enables people to 
successfully re-integrate into society.  For example, a study in Maryland10 found that 
providing supportive housing to recently released incarcerated persons reduced the 
chances that they would be rearrested in the first year.  A government study conducted 
in the United Kingdom found that stable housing was associated with a 20% reduction 
in the chance of being reconvicted.11

Extensive research also shows the direct link between incarceration history, 
homelessness, and health.12  For example, a recent participatory action research 
project between Just Cities, The Village, and the UC Berkeley Goldman School for 
Public Policy’s Center for Civility & Democratic Engagement found that 73% of 
unhoused residents interviewed in Oakland’s encampments were formerly 
incarcerated.13  Based upon anecdotal and other data, we believe that unhoused people 
in Berkeley are also disproportionately formerly incarcerated.  For example, in the 2017 
Point in Time count for Berkeley homeless residents, one of the top six reasons listed 
for the primary cause of homelessness was incarceration (6% of respondents).
In addition, there are an estimated 10 million children nationwide that are impacted by a 
parent or close relative who are in the criminal justice system.14 These children suffer 
from an increased rate of depression, antisocial behavior, drug use, and suicide.15

10 Kirk, David S., Geoffrey C. Barnes, Jordan M. Hyatt, and Brook W. Kearley. “The Impact of Residential Change 
and Housing Stability on Recidivism: Pilot Results from the Maryland Opportunities through Vouchers Experiment 
(MOVE).” Journal of Experimental Criminology 14, no. 2 (2017): 213–26. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11292-017-
9317-z. 
11 Kirk, David S., Geoffrey C. Barnes, Jordan M. Hyatt, and Brook W. Kearley. “The Impact of Residential Change 
and Housing Stability on Recidivism: Pilot Results from the Maryland Opportunities through Vouchers Experiment 
(MOVE).” Journal of Experimental Criminology 14, no. 2 (2017): 213–26. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11292-017-
9317-z. 
12 Roman, Caterina Gouvis, and Jeremy Travis. “Taking Stock: Housing, Homelessness, and Prisoner Reentry.” 
PsycEXTRA Dataset, 2004. http://webarchive.urban.org/UploadedPDF/411096_taking_stock.pdf  p.7-8
13 Tsai, Tim. “Standing Together: A Prevention-Oriented Approach to Ending Homelessness in Oakland.” 
http://bit.ly/HomelessPrevention2019 p.12
14 Hirsch, Amy E, Sharon M Dietrich, Rue Landau, Peter D Schneider, Irv Ackelsberg, Judith Bernstein-Baker, and 
Joseph Hohenstein. Every Door Closed: Barriers Facing Parents with Criminal Records. Philadelphia, PA: 
Community Legal Services, Inc, 2002. p.1 
https://www.clasp.org/sites/default/files/publications/2018/01/every_door_closed.pdf 
15 Davis, Laurel, and Rebecca J. Shlafer. “Mental Health of Adolescents with Currently and Formerly Incarcerated 
Parents.” Journal of Adolescence 54 (2017): 120–34. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.adolescence.2016.10.006.   
Shlafer, Rebecca J, Erica Gerrity, Ebony Ruhland, and Marc Wheeler. “Children with Incarcerated Parents – 
Considering Children’s Outcomes in the Context of Complex Family Experiences.” Children, Youth, and Family 
Consortium, 2013. https://www.prisonpolicy.org/scans/umn/June2013ereview.pdf. p.3

Page 7 of 37

67

https://doi.org/10.1007/s11292-017-9317-z
https://doi.org/10.1007/s11292-017-9317-z
https://doi.org/10.1007/s11292-017-9317-z
https://doi.org/10.1007/s11292-017-9317-z
http://webarchive.urban.org/UploadedPDF/411096_taking_stock.pdf
http://bit.ly/HomelessPrevention2019
https://www.clasp.org/sites/default/files/publications/2018/01/every_door_closed.pdf
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.adolescence.2016.10.006
https://www.prisonpolicy.org/scans/umn/June2013ereview.pdf


Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 8

SUMMARY OF RACIAL DISPARITY:  

There is an extreme racial disparity in criminal conviction and incarceration rates, which 
translates to a racial disparity in access to housing.

There are statistical racial disparities at every stage of the criminal justice system.  
Research has demonstrated that African Americans are more likely to be stopped by 
police,16 prosecuted disproportionately, and punished more harshly than other ethnic 
groups.17 As a result, Black men—one third of whom are likely to serve time in prison or 
jail at some point in their lives—are incarcerated at a rate that is five times that of White 
men. Racial bias in plea-bargaining, which accounts for the vast majority of new criminal 
convictions, is a significant source of the disparity in incarceration. In a recent study of 
more than 48,000 cases in Wisconsin, legal scholar Carlos Berdejó found that White 
defendants were 25% more likely than Black ones to have their most serious charge 
either dropped or reduced to a less serious charge.18 As a result, Whites who were 
initially charged with a felony were an estimated 15% more likely to end up convicted of 
a misdemeanor instead. In addition, Whites who were initially charged with a 
misdemeanor were an estimated 75% more likely to be convicted of a crime carrying no 
possible incarceration, or not convicted at all.19 

These disparities are even more acute in California. According to the Public Policy 
Institute of California, in 2017, African Americans made up 5.6% of the state’s adult men 
but 28.5% of its male prisoners.20 As a result, Black men were ten times more likely 
than White men to be incarcerated. Latino men were more than twice as likely as White 
men to be incarcerated. There were significant disparities among Black women, too, 
who were five times more likely than White women to be incarcerated.21 Inequalities in 
incarceration were driven in part by inequalities in policing. Again, according to the 
Public Policy Institute of California, Black male residents were three times more likely 
than White ones to be arrested in 2016.22

16 “Findings” Stanford Open Policing Project. Accessed October 4, 2019. 
https://openpolicing.stanford.edu/findings/. 
17 Porter, Nicole D., Nazgol Ghandnoosh, Josh Rovner, and Jean Chung. “Racial Disparity.” The Sentencing Project, 
September 30, 2019. https://www.sentencingproject.org/issues/racial-disparity/. 
18 Berdejó, Carlos. (2018). Criminalizing Race: Racial Disparities in Plea-Bargaining. Boston College Law Review, 
59(4), pp. 1189-91.
19 Berdejó, Carlos. (2018). Criminalizing Race: Racial Disparities in Plea-Bargaining. Boston College Law Review, 
59(4), pp. 1189-91.
20 Public Policy Institute of California. (2019). California’s Prison Population, p. 1.
21 Public Policy Institute of California. (2019). California’s Prison Population, p. 1.
22 Public Policy Institute of California. (2019). Racial Disparities in California Arrests, p. 1.

Page 8 of 37

68

https://openpolicing.stanford.edu/findings/
https://www.sentencingproject.org/issues/racial-disparity/
https://lawdigitalcommons.bc.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=3659&context=bclr
https://lawdigitalcommons.bc.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=3659&context=bclr
https://www.ppic.org/wp-content/uploads/jtf-prison-population-jtf.pdf
https://www.ppic.org/wp-content/uploads/jtf-prison-population-jtf.pdf
https://www.ppic.org/wp-content/uploads/racial-disparities-in-california-arrests.pdf


Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 9

Here in Alameda County, 48% of probationers are African American23 even though 
African Americans make up only 11% of the population.24 

This means that both nationally and locally, a disproportionate number of African 
Americans are impacted by criminal background checks in housing applications.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

Berkeley’s Fair Chance Ordinance builds upon the work of other coalitions and 
communities to advance fair chance housing policies, namely in the cities of Oakland, 
Richmond, Seattle, and Portland.  Seattle and Portland have first in time housing 
policies which limit landlord discretion in the selection of their tenants. Alameda County 
cities do not have such a policy.  

Comparison between the Berkeley proposal and policies enacted by the cities of 
Oakland, Richmond, Seattle, and Portland:

 Similar to Oakland, Seattle and Portland, the Berkeley proposal would apply to all 
housing units, private and publicly subsidized.

 Similar to Oakland, Richmond and Seattle, the Berkeley proposal would enable 
Housing Providers who are funded by HUD to conduct limited criminal records 
checks and subject to due process protections for the applicant.

 Similar to Richmond, the Berkeley proposal would provide for a private right of action 
in addition to City enforcement.  The City of Seattle, instead, utilizes its robust 
Department of Civil Rights which enforces civil rights violations.  

 Unlike Portland and Seattle, the Berkeley proposal DOES NOT have a first in time 
tenant acceptance requirement.  In addition, the Berkeley proposal maintains 
landlord discretion in the review of relevant information including landlord 
references, employment and income status, and credit report checks.

Less comprehensive versions of fair chance policies have passed in other cities 
including San Francisco; Urbana, Illinois; Madison, Wisconsin; New York, New York; 
and Newark, New Jersey.

23 Total population in probation, Q4 2018 “Alameda County Probation Department Data Dashboard”. Alameda 
County. Accessed October 4, 2019. https://www.acgov.org/probation/dashboard.htm. 
24 “U.S. Census Bureau QuickFacts: Alameda County, California.” United States Census Bureau. Accessed October 
4, 2019. https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/alamedacountycalifornia. 

Page 9 of 37

69

https://www.acgov.org/probation/dashboard.htm
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/alamedacountycalifornia


Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 10

CONSULTATION/OUTREACH OVERVIEW AND RESULTS

Transformative Policymaking Process: 

The development of the Fair Chance Housing policy and ordinance was a partnership 
effort between the City sponsors and the Alameda County Fair Chance Housing 
Coalition leaders that followed the principles of democratic participatory policymaking. In 
the process led by the Just Cities team, people most impacted by the policy problems—
formerly incarcerated residents and their family members—identified both the policy 
problems and also the policy solutions. A team of researchers from UC Berkeley 
Goldman School of Public Policy, policy experts, lawyers, and former City of Oakland 
senior officials from the City Administrator and City Attorney’s offices provided research, 
policy, and legal support. The Coalition leaders also selected government officials to 
sponsor their proposed policy based upon their partnership criteria. More information 
about this transformative policymaking process and the policy research rationale behind 
the ordinance is included in the Just Cities’ Policy Justice Memo, Attachment 2.   

We are grateful for the dedicated leadership and hard work of the Coalition’s leaders: 
John Jones III with Just Cities, Ms. Towanda Sherry with Faith in Action East Bay, Ms. 
Anita Wills with Essie Justice Group, and Katie Dixon, Taqwaa Bonner, and Succati 
Shaw with All of Us or None. The technical assistance and research partners included 
Margaretta Lin, Richard Illgen, and Alex Werth from Just Cities; Dan Lindheim, Larry 
Rosenthal, Tim Tsai, and Anthony Rodriguez from the Goldman School’s Center for 
Civility and Democratic Engagement; Lisa Sitkin from the National Housing Law Project; 
and Tamisha Walker from the Safe Return Project. 

The Coalition partners and supporters include: All of Us or None, Berkeley NAACP, 
Berkeley Oakland Support Services (BOSS), Community Works, Church by the Side of 
the Road, East Bay Community Law Center, East Bay for Everyone, East Bay Young 
Democrats, Essie Justice Group, Friends of Adeline, Just Cities, Justice Reinvestment 
Coalition, Laney College Restoring Our Communities Center, League of Women Voters 
for Oakland, Make Oakland Better Now, McGee Baptist Church, National Housing Law 
Project, Our Beloved Community Action Network, PolicyLink, Root & Rebound, Safe 
Return Project, Sierra Club, Tech Equity Collaborative, Underground Scholars of UC 
Berkeley, and The Way Church.

External Stakeholders Consulted

This ordinance was crafted after more than seven public hearings before the City of 
Berkeley’s 4x4 and Land-Use, Housing & Economic Development Committees, multiple 
meetings with the leaders of the Berkeley Property Owners association, the Berkeley 

Page 10 of 37

70



Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 11

Housing Authority, Seattle Office of Civil Rights and a community forum with Berkeley 
residents and community organizations. 

Internal Stakeholders Consulted

This ordinance was developed in close consultation with the City Attorney’s office, as 
well as feedback and support from the Berkeley Rent Stabilization Board. 

Results

As a result of this consultation, outreach and committee processes the ordinance has 
been amended and improved. For example, Close Family Members were included in 
the definition of aggrieved person based on the lived experience of one of the POLs. 
Through the Policy Committee process, exemptions were included for owner-occupants, 
property owners renting their unit while on sabbatical, as well as ADUs, single-family 
homes, duplexes and triplexes. This principle of choice with whom you live was 
extended to tenants as a result of this process. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

POLICY GOALS:

1. Remove current structural barriers faced by formerly incarcerated people when 
they apply for private or publicly subsidized housing to enable them to be 
considered on the merits of their present situation, rather than the albatross of 
their past.

2. Create a due process system that a) enables formerly incarcerated people the 
ability to complain to the City and also sue to enforce their rights under the 
Ordinance; and b) builds on the City’s current administrative systems and 
capacity.  

3. Design policy terms based upon an understanding of the different application and 
review processes by private and multiple kinds of Affordable Housing providers.

4. Create reporting requirements that are streamlined and also help Affordable 
Housing providers transform their current application and review systems.

5. Avoid unintended consequences by not having burdensome or complex 
requirements for landlords.

6. Address the realities and special considerations of landlords who reside on their 
rental property that are smaller buildings, e.g. triplexes and smaller.

Page 11 of 37

71



Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 12

IMPLEMENTATION, ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT

The effective date of the Ordinance is thirty days after final adoption of the ordinance. 
However, like in Oakland, a Housing Provider will not be liable for a violation within 180 
days after the final adoption of the Ordinance unless the Provider has received a 
warning letter from the City regarding a violation of the Ordinance.

The Fair Chance Housing Ordinance applies to all Berkeley Housing Providers, with 
exemptions noted above. All applicants subject to an adverse action have a right to file 
a complaint with the City Manager within a year of the date of their application to be 
evaluated through an administrative hearing process. In the case of a hearing the public 
and complainant would be informed of available City or community resources to assist 
in the filing of the complaint or preparing for the hearing, including the gathering of 
evidence. The City can enforce any violation of the ordinance, with or without a 
complaint, under B.M.C. 1.28.

Similar to existing local tenant law, private right of action and attorney’s fees for the 
prevailing applicant are awarded. The applicants and the City may avail themselves of 
any or all of these enforcement mechanisms to ensure compliance and an appropriate 
remedy for any violation.

In the case an applicant is denied access to private housing they are entitled to any 
notices required by state and federal law, and may also request a reason for the denial. 
Landlords are required to maintain documentation of any conviction history that they 
obtain on applicants for at least three years. Landlord retaliation is explicitly prohibited 
under this ordinance.

Under the ordinance Affordable Housing is defined as any housing provider receiving 
direct local, county, state, or federal subsidy.  Section 8 landlords are excluded from the 
definition of Affordable Housing provider since the Housing Authority conducts the 
background checks for Section 8 voucher holders and because of Berkeley’s source of 
income anti-discrimination law25.

HUD funded housing providers may conduct a limited background check if required by 
federal requirements.  The housing provider must seek written consent from the 
applicant, provide the applicant with a copy of the criminal background report, and 
provide the applicant with the opportunity to provide rebutting or mitigating information. 

25 City of Berkeley Municipal Code 13.31.020 Discrimination based on source of income prohibited.

Page 12 of 37

72



Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 13

Only publicly subsidized housing providers would submit an annual certification of 
compliance to the City utilizing a City template as provided by Administrative 
Regulations. The Coalition would like to work with the City on designing the compliance 
template.   

The City Manager or their designee would provide an annual status report to the City 
Council and public including:  a) which Affordable Housing providers submitted an 
annual certification of compliance; b) number of complaints filed with the City and the 
resolution; c) information from local service providers and community organizations on 
the number of court cases filed and the resolution or other compliance information. It is 
especially critical in the early years of new legislation for the City Council and the public 
to know about the implementation status of the legislation and whether any aspects 
need to be refined.  

Additionally, the City Manager should explore alternatives to a complaint based 
enforcement process that might prove more effective. For example, staff from Seattle’s 
Office of Civil Rights shared that their most effective measure of enforcement is their 
compliance testing program. In addition to accepting complaints, Seattle staff submits 
housing applications across the city to discern compliance with anti-discrimination laws. 
Good faith actors found to be in violation are offered technical assistance in the form of 
education and training prior to any penalties being assessed. Just as in Seattle, a 
testing program might contribute to broader Berkeley enforcement efforts.

Addressing Common Concerns and Misconceptions 

Under this ordinance, landlords maintain their discretion to use accurate information that 
is critical to assessing whether an applicant will be a good tenant. This ordinance does 
not prevent the use of credit checks, income verification, or references from informing a 
landlord’s decision-making process. Unlike jurisdictions that have passed similar 
ordinances, Berkeley does not have first-in-time laws that require a landlord to accept 
the first qualified applicant as their tenant. 

Contrary to misconceptions, the Fair Chance Housing Ordinance does not impact 
landlords’ ability to remove troublesome tenants. Existing state and local laws remain 
intact that address the rights of landlords and tenants to manage problematic behaviors. 
B.M.C. 13.76.130 outlines reasons for a “just-cause” eviction including refusal to pay 
rent, substantial violation of the terms of a lease, or substantial damages to the 
property. 

Page 13 of 37

73



Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 14

One of the “just-cause” terms for an eviction allowed in B.M.C. 13.76.130 (A.5.) 
expressly allows eviction for illegal activities pursuant to subdivision 4 of the Code of 
Civil Procedure Section 1161.  Thus, if a tenant commits certain serious violations, 
under Cal. Code of Civ. Proc. § 1161(4), a landlord can issue a three-day unconditional 
quit notice to vacate. The tenant must move out of the unit within three days of receiving 
the notice or they may face eviction. 

Landlords must always use their best judgement when selecting tenants. The Fair 
Chance Housing Ordinance prohibits the use of problematic, error-prone databases as 
a tool in these evaluations. Existing remedies and laws remain to support landlords’ with 
troublesome or criminal tenants. 

City Funding for Additional Community Outreach and Education 

As City experience has informed us, effective implementation of new legislation requires 
informing both the regulated groups and members of the protected groups of the new 
laws. In sharing their lessons learned about their Fair Chance Housing policy, the City 
of Seattle’s Civil Rights Office strongly recommended City investment in community 
outreach and education efforts. The City of Oakland Community and Economic 
Development committee unanimously passed a motion to include City funds for Fair 
Chance Housing community outreach and enforcement as part of their mid-cycle budget 
process. The Alameda County Fair Chance Housing Coalition have been in 
conversation with private funders and Alameda County about their potential investment 
in countywide community outreach and education to ensure effective implementation of 
the Fair Chance Housing policies being passed in Alameda County. 

The City of Berkeley should participate in a countywide coordinated community 
outreach and education program and allocate appropriate funding as determined by the 
City Manager during the next budget cycle towards these critical efforts.

REVIEW OF EXISTING PLANS, PROGRAMS, POLICIES AND LAWS

In 2014 the City Council unanimously passed a Fair Chance Ordinance to extend its 
existing policy, passed in 2008, to eliminate disclosure of conviction history information 
from the City’s job application, or “Ban the Box” policy, to private employers within the 
City of Berkeley26. Fair Chance Housing legislation is proposed in this same spirit of 
acknowledging and reconciling some of the harm and injustice caused by our criminal 
“justice” system of mass incarceration.  

26 http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2014/10_Oct/Documents/2014-10-
21_Item_25_Fair_Chance_Ordinance.aspx

Page 14 of 37

74



Fair Chance Ordinance ACTION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

Page 15

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Costs associated with the adoption of this Ordinance include development and mailing 
of required notices, public education, annual reporting, and administrative enforcement 
(investigation and processing of complaints). 

The coalition has indicated that they have partners interested in supporting the city with 
community education and a participatory action impact study.

Given the direct connection between housing barriers for formerly incarcerated people 
and homelessness, we believe that removing these barriers may reduce the number of 
homeless persons and result in potential City cost savings overtime.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Not applicable

CONTACT PERSON
Mayor Jesse Arreguín 510-981-7100

Attachments: 
1: Ordinance
2: Berkeley Fair Chance Housing Policy Brief-Just Cities, December

Page 15 of 37

75



Page 16 of 37

76



ORDINANCE NO.       -N.S. 

PROHIBITING CONSIDERATION OF CRIMINAL HISTORIES IN SCREENING 
APPLICATIONS FOR RENTAL HOUSING THE USE OF CRIMINAL HISTORY IN HOUSING 

DECISIONS

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1. That Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.106 is hereby added to read as 
follows:

Chapter 13.106

Prohibiting the Use of Criminal History in Housing Decisions

Sections:

13.106.010 Title
13.106.020 Findings
13.106.030 Definitions
13.106.040 Use of Criminal History in Housing Decisions
13.106.050 Requirements for Housing Providers
13.106.060 Retaliation Prohibited
13.106.070 Recordkeeping and Confidentiality
13.106.080 Implementation 
13.106.090 Administrative Complaints
13.106.100 Enforcement
13.106.110 SeverabilityNo Conflict with State or Federal Law 
13.106.120 Effective DateSeverability 

13.106.010     Title

This Chapter shall be known as the “Ronald V. Dellums Fair Chance Access to Housing and 
Public Health and Safety Ordinance.” and may be shortened to the “Fair Chance Housing 
Ordinance”. 

13.106.020 Findings

A. Mass incarceration is a national and local crisis and restoring the rights of people affected 
by mass incarceration is a national priority.

B. The U.S. Department of Justice has estimated one in every three adults in the United States 
has either an arrest or conviction record.

C. Studies have found that private criminal databases pull source information from inadequate 
records and lack accountability procedures to ensure that the database records provided to 
Housing Providers are accurate. Housing Providers in conducting criminal background 
checks are relying on such inaccurate information in evaluating housing applications.  

D. Formerly incarcerated persons face barriers to access to both private rental and publicly 
subsidized affordable housing.

Page 17 of 37

77



 

2

E. Homelessness is a critical issue in Berkeley and formerly incarcerated people are 
disproportionately affected by homelessness, which can prevent a formerly incarcerated 
person from getting a job, from visiting with their children, and from fulfilling other needs that 
are fundamental to reintegrating with the community after incarceration.

F. The unmet housing needs of formerly incarcerated people in Berkeley are an acute 
challenge to the dignity, public health and safety, and equal opportunity for this population 
and the broader community.

G. Research has found that access to housing reduces recidivism, and the lack of housing can 
be a significant barrier to successful reintegration after incarceration.

H. Reliance on criminal history to select tenants impedes formerly incarcerated persons from 
gaining access to housing in the City of Berkeley, to the detriment of health, welfare, and 
public safety of the City’s residents.

13.106.30 Definitions

A. “Adverse Action” means to take one of the following actions based on based on a person’s 
Criminal or Conviction History: 

1. Failing or refusing to rent or lease Housing to a person; 

2. Failing or refusing to continue to rent or lease Housing to a person; 

3. Reducing the amount or term of any person’s subsidy for Housing; 

4. Treating an Applicant or tenant differently from other applicants or tenants, including but 
not limited to, taking such actions as requiring higher security deposit or rent; 

5. Treating a person as ineligible for a tenant-based rental assistance program, including 
but not limited to, the Section 8 tenant-based voucherHousing Choice Voucher  
pProgram (42 U.S.C. Section 1437f); or 

6. Failing to permit a tenant’s Close Family Member to occupy a rental unit while the 
occupying tenant remains in occupancy.

B. “Affordable Housing” shall mean any Housing that (1) has received or is receiving City, 
County, State, or Federal funding, tax credits, or other subsidies connected in whole or in 
part to developing, rehabilitating, restricting rents, subsidizing ownership, or otherwise 
providing rental housing for extremely low income, very low income, low income, and 
moderate income households (collectively, “Public Funding”), with the exception of Housing 
where the only Public Funding received is in the form of a Local, State or Federal tenant-
based voucher, such as through the Section 8 tenant-basedHousing Choice voucher 
Voucher pProgram (42 U.S.C. Section 1437f); or (2) is subject to affordability and related 
requirements pursuant to the City’s Below Market-Rate Rental Housing Program, including 
but not limited to the Affordable Housing Mitigation Fee Ordinance (Chapter Section 
22.20.065), the State Density Bonus law (California Government Code Sections 65915-
65918 and Chapter 23C.14), and the Low Income Inclusionary Live/Work Units Ordinance 
(Section 23E.20.080).

Page 18 of 37

78



 

3

C. "Affordable Housing Provider" shall mean any Housing Provider that owns, master leases, 
manages, or develops Affordable Housing in the City. Any agent, such as a property 
management company, that makes tenancy decisions on behalf of the above-described 
Housing Providers, and any government agency, including but not limited to the Berkeley 
Housing Authority, that makes eligibility decisions for tenant-based rental assistance 
programs, including but not limited to the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher pProgram (42 
U.S.C. Section 1437f), shall also be considered an “Affordable Housing Provider.” 

D. “Aggrieved Person” means an Applicant who believes they were subject to an Adverse 
Action; a tenant who believes they or their Close Family Member was subject to an Adverse 
Action based on the application of an Applicant to reside in such family member’s rental unit; 
or a tenant who believes they were subject to an Adverse Action based on the failure or 
refusal to permit a person to reside in such tenant’s rental unit to replace an existing tenant, 
add a new tenant, or to sublet to a subtenant.

E. "Applicant" means a person who seeks information about, visits, or applies to rent or lease 
Housing; who applies for a tenant-based rental assistance program, including but not limited 
to the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher pProgram (42 U.S.C. section1437fSection 1437f); 
who seeks to be added as a household member to an existing lease for Housing; or, with 
respect to any Criminal History that occurred prior to the beginning of the person's tenancy, 
who currently rents or has a lease for Housing.

F. “Arrest” means a record from any jurisdiction that does not result in a Conviction and 
includes information indicating that a person has been questioned, apprehended, taken into 
custody or detained, or held for investigation by a law enforcement, police, or prosecutorial 
agency and/or charged with, indicted, and/or tried, and/or convicted or and acquitted for any 
felony, misdemeanor, or other criminal offense.

G. “Background Check Report” means any report regarding an Applicant’s Criminal History, 
including but not limited to those produced by the California Department of Justice, the 
Federal Bureau of Investigation, other law enforcement agencies, courts, or any consumer 
reporting or tenant screening agency.

H. “Close Family Member” means a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, sibling, parent, 
grandparent, or grandchild.

I. “Conviction” means a record from any jurisdiction that includes information indicating that a 
person has been convicted of a felony or misdemeanor or other of a criminal offense and for 
which the person was placed on probation, fined, imprisoned and/or paroled.

J. “Criminal History” means information transmitted orally or in writing or by any other means, 
and obtained from any source, including but not limited to the person to whom the 
information pertains, a government agency, or a Background Check Report, regarding one 
or more Convictions or Arrests; a Conviction that has been sealed, dismissed, vacated, 
expunged, sealed, voided, invalidated, or otherwise rendered inoperative by judicial action 
or by statute (for example, under California Penal Code Sections 1203.1 or 1203.4); a 
determination or adjudication in the juvenile justice system; a matter considered in or 
processed through the juvenile justice system; or participation in or completion of a diversion 
or a deferral of judgment program.

K. “Housing” means any residential rental housing, building, or unit in the City of Berkeley, with 
the exception of the following: 

Commented [TT1]:  Jay suggested this change to clarify who 
would actually qualify to make this complaint. He felt it was 
important to be able to discern who can trigger the hearing process. 

Page 19 of 37

79



 

4

1. Single Family Dwellings where one or more owners occupies the dwelling as their 
principal residence;

2. Single Family Dwellings with an Accessory Dwelling Units, as defined in Section 
23F.04.010, where either the main or an Accessory Dwelling Unit is occupied by one or 
more owners as their principal residence;

3. Duplexes or triplexes where one of the units is occupied by one or more owners as their 
principal residence;

4. Units rented pursuant to Section 13.76.130 A.10; and

5. Tenant-occupied units where an occupying tenant seeks to replace an existing co-
tenant, add an additional co-tenant, or sublet the unit, provided that the occupying tenant 
remains in occupancy. 

L. “Housing Provider” shall mean any Person that owns, master leases, manages, or develops 
Housing in the City. For the purpose of this definition, “Person” includes one or more 
individuals, partnerships, organizations, trade or professional associations, corporations, 
legal representatives, trustees, trustees in bankruptcy, receivers, and any political or civil 
subdivision or agency or instrumentality of the City. In addition, Aany agent, such as a 
property management company, that makes tenancy decisions on behalf of the above-
described Persons, and any government agency, including but not limited to the Berkeley 
Housing Authority, that makes eligibility decisions for tenant-based rental assistance 
programs, including but not limited to the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program 
program (42 U.S.C. Section 1437f), shall also be considered a “Housing Provider”.

M.  "Person" shall mean one or more individuals, partnerships, organizations, trade or 
professional associations, corporations, legal representatives, trustees, trustees in 
bankruptcy, receivers, or any political or civil subdivision or agency or instrumentality of the 
City.

13.106.040 Use of Criminal History in Housing Decisions 

A. Except as provided in Paragraphs B and C of this Section, a Housing Provider shall not, at 
any time or by any means, whether direct or indirect, inquire about an Applicant’s Criminal 
History, require an Applicant to disclose their Criminal History, require an Applicant to 
authorize the release of their Criminal History or, if such information is received, base an 
Adverse Action in whole or in part on an Applicant’s Criminal History.

B. It shall not be a violation of this Chapter for a Housing Provider to comply with Federal or 
State laws that require the Housing Provider to automatically exclude tenants based on 
certain types of criminal history (e.g. Ineligibility of Dangerous Sex Offenders for Admission 
to Public Housing (42 U.S.C. Section 13663(a); Ineligibility of Individuals Convicted for 
Manufacturing Methamphetamine on Premises of Federally Assisted Housing for Admission 
to Public Housing and Housing Choice Voucher Programs (24 C.F.R. Section 982.553)),. 
However, if such a requirement applies, the Housing Provider shall not inquire about, 
require disclosure of, or, if such information is received, review an Applicant’s Criminal 
History until the Housing Provider first does the following: (1)  informs the Applicant in 
advance that the Housing Provider will check for certain types of criminal history; (2) 
requests and obtains written consent, or if the Applicant objects, provides the applicant the 

Page 20 of 37

80



 

5

opportunity to withdraw their application; (3) complies with the requirements in subsections 
D and E of this Section. provided that if such a requirement applies, Applicant’s Criminal 
History until the Housing Provider has first obtained written consent and followed 
Paragraphs D and E of this Section:

B. Any Adverse Action based on Criminal History obtained pursuant to this Paragraph shall 
be limited to actions required to comply with State or Federal law.

1. Determined that the Applicant is qualified to rent the Housing under all of the Housing 
Provider’s criteria for assessing Applicants except for any criteria related to Criminal History;  

2. Provided to the Applicant a conditional lease agreement that commits the Housing to the 
Applicant as long as the Applicant meets the Housing Provider's Criminal History criteria; 
and

3. Informed the Applicant in advance that the Housing Provider will be obtaining 
information about the Applicant’s Criminal History and obtained the written consent of 
the Applicant to obtain such information.

The Applicant may elect to withhold such consent and withdraw their application. Any 
Adverse Action based on Criminal History obtained pursuant to this Paragraph shall be 
limited to actions required to comply with State or Federal law.

C. In compliance with state law, in order to protect persons at risk pursuant to Penal Code 
Section 290.46(j)(1), theA Housing Provider may review the State registry of lifetime sex 
offenders operated by the State of California Department of Justice; provided , however, that 
(1) the Housing Provider has stated the lifetime sex offender screening requirement in 
writing in the rental application; and (2) the Housing Provider may shall not inquire about, 
require disclosure of, or, if such information is received, review an Applicant’s Criminal 
History until the Housing Provider has first:

1. Determined that the Applicant is qualified to rent the Housing under all of the Housing 
Provider’s criteria for assessing Applicants except for any criteria related to Criminal 
History; 

2. Provided to the Applicant a conditional lease rental agreement that commits the Housing 
to the Applicant as long as the Applicant meets the Housing Provider's Criminal History 
and other qualifying criteria; and

3. Informed the Applicant in advance that the Housing Provider will checking the sex 
offender registry andobtaining information about the Applicant’s Criminal History and 
obtained the written consent of the Applicant to obtain such information.

The Applicant may elect to withhold such consent and withdraw their application. Any use of 
information obtained by a Housing Provider pursuant to this Paragraph shall comply with 
California Penal Code Section 290.46(l).

D. A Housing Provider’s request to obtain written consent from the Applicant to obtain 
information about the Applicant’s Criminal History under Paragraphs B or C of this Section 
shall inform the Applicant that the Housing Provider may be required to share information 
about the Applicant’s Criminal History with the City of Berkeley for purposes of enforcing the 
requirements of this Chapter. 

Page 21 of 37

81



 

6

E. If any Adverse Action is based in whole or in part on the Applicant’s Criminal History, the 
Housing Provider shall provide a written notice to the Applicant regarding the Adverse 
Action that includes, at a minimum, the reason(s) for the Adverse Action, instructions on how 
to file a complaint about the Adverse Action with the City, a list of local legal service 
providers including contact information, and the Applicant with a copy of any Background 
Check Report or other information related to the Applicant’s Criminal History that served as 
a basis for the Adverse Action. The Housing Provider shall provide the Applicant an 
opportunity to respond with rebutting or mitigating information prior to the denial of the 
Applicant’s housing application. present evidence that information about the Applicant’s 
Criminal History is inaccurate or of mitigating circumstances related to the Applicant’s 
Criminal History. The Housing Provider shall not require reimbursement or payment from the 
Applicant for the cost of providing any information required under this Paragraph.

13.106.050 Requirements for Housing Providers

A. It shall be unlawful for any Housing Provider subject to the requirements of this Chapter to 
produce or disseminate any advertisement related to Housing that expresses stating, 
directly or indirectly, that any person with Criminal History will not be considered for the 
rental or lease of real property or may not apply for the rental or lease of real property,  
Criminal History will be considered in connection with the rental or lease of real property, 
except as required by State or Federal law.

B. The City shall publish and make available to Housing Providers, in English, Spanish, and all 
languages spoken by more than five percent (5%) of the City’s population, a notice that 
informs Applicants for Housing of their rights under this Chapter. The notice shall contain the 
following information:

1. A description of the restrictions and requirements of this Chapter; 

2. Instructions for submitting a complaint to the City regarding a violation of this Chapter; 
and 

3. Information about community resources available to assist an Applicant in connection 
with a violation of this Chapter.

C. Housing Providers subject to the requirements of this Chapter shall prominently display the 
notice made available pursuant to Section 13.106.50.B. in their application materials, on 
their websites, and at any rental or leasing offices.

D. In addition to the requirements in Paragraphs A-C of this Section, Affordable Housing 
Providers shall:

1. Provide any Applicant subject to an Adverse Action a written notice regarding the 
Adverse Action that includes, at a minimum, the reason(s) for the Adverse Action; 
instructions regarding how to file a complaint about the Adverse Action with the City, 
including the deadlines set forth in Section 13.106.090.A; a list of local legal services 
providers, including contact information; and a copy of any Background Check Report or 
other Criminal History obtained by the Affordable Housing Provider; and

2. Submit to the City an annual certificate of compliance with the requirements of this 
Chapter in the form provided by the City.

Page 22 of 37

82



 

7

 13.106.060 Retaliation Prohibited

It shall be a violation of this Chapter to interfere with, or restrain, or deny the exercise of, or the 
attempt to exercise, any right protected under this Chapter, or to take any Adverse Action 
against any Person because the Person exercised or attempted in good faith to exercise any 
right protected under this Chapter.

13.106.070  Recordkeeping and Confidentiality

A. Housing Providers shall maintain a record of any Criminal History obtained for any 
Applicant for Housing for a period of at least three years. To the maximum extent 
permitted by law, any information obtained regarding an Applicant’s Criminal History 
shall remain confidential.

B. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a Housing Provider from complying with a request 
by the City to provide records for purposes of enforcing the requirements of this Chapter.

13.106.080    Implementation

A. The City Manager or their designee shall take all necessary steps to implement this Chapter, 
including but not limited to the following:

1. Developing any notice required for purposes of implementing the requirements of this 
Chapter, the annual compliance certification form, and other implementation documents, 
including written materials for Housing Providers and potential Applicants; and 

2. Conducting outreach to and preparing a plan to provide ongoing training about the 
requirements Chapter for Housing Providers.

The City Manager is authorized to adopt administrative Administrative regulations 
Regulations necessary to implement the requirements of this Chapter.

B. The City Manager or their designee shall provide an annual public report to the City 
Council on the implementation and enforcement of this Chapter. The annual report shall 
include, at a minimum: (1) a summary of the annual compliance certifications submitted 
by Affordable Housing Providers; (2) the number of complaints filed with the City 
regarding violations of this Chapter and the outcomes of such complaints; (3) and the 
number of notices filed with the City regarding actions brought under Section 
13.106.100.C and the outcomes of any such actions. 

13.106.90  Administrative Complaints

A. Any Applicant subject to an Adverse Action or their Close Family Member who believes 
the Adverse Action was based on a violation of this Chapter shall have the right to 
submit a complaint to the City within one year of the date the Applicant submitted an 
application to the Housing Provider or the date of the violation, whichever is earlier. The 
City will schedule an administrative hearing before a hearing officer designated by the 
City Manager within 90 days of the date of submission of the complaint. The deadlines 
set forth in this Paragraph may be extended with the consent of all parties.

B. The parties shall have the following rights at an administrative hearing conducted 
pursuant to this Section:

Page 23 of 37

83



 

8

1. To have an advocate of their choosing to represent them at the hearing; 

2. To present any relevant witnesses and evidence, which will be considered without 
regard to the admissibility under the Rules of Evidence applicable to a judicial 
proceeding; 

3. To examine the other party’s evidence and to rebut and cross-examine any 
witnesses; 

4. To have a translator present at the hearing, when translation is reasonably 
necessary and reasonably available; 

5. To request any reasonable accommodation needed to participate in the hearing 
process; and 

6. To record the hearing.

C. Where the City determines that a violation of the Chapter has occurred, the City shall 
issue a determination and order any appropriate relief under this Chapter.

13.106.100  Enforcement

A. The City may issue an administrative Administrative citation Citation under Chapter 1.28 
to any Person who violates any provision of this Chapter.

B. The City Attorney may bring an action on behalf of the City seeking injunctive relief to 
restrain or enjoin any violation of this Chapter. 

C. Any Aggrieved Person who believes that the provisions of this Chapter have been 
violated shall have a private right of action for injunctive relief, and actual damages or 
statutory damages up to three times the amount of one month’s rent that the Housing 
Provider charged for the unit in question at the time of the violation. In addition to actual 
or statutory damages, a court may award punitive damages where it is proven by clear 
and convincing evidence that a violation of this Chapter has been committed with 
oppression, fraud, or malice. In any action brought under this Chapter, the court may 
award reasonable attorneys’ fees and cost of action pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure 
section 1021.5. The right to file an action under this Paragraph is independent of the 
right to file an administrative complaint under Section 13.106.90 and does not require an 
Applicant to have filed a prior complaint with the City of Berkeley.

D. When permitted by law, an award of actual damages under this Chapter may include an 
award for mental and/or emotional distress and/or suffering. The amount of actual 
damages awarded to a prevailing plaintiff shall be trebled by the court if a defendant is 
found to have acted in knowing violation of, or in reckless disregard of, the provisions of 
this Chapter.

E. In an action brought by the City Attorney pursuant to this Section, a court of competent 
jurisdiction may order that a civil penalty be assessed against the Housing Provider to 
vindicate the public interest, which penalty shall be payable to the City of Berkeley. The 
civil penalty assessed against a Housing Provider shall be at least one thousand dollars 
($1,000) and shall not exceed ten thousand dollars ($10,000) for each violation of this 

Page 24 of 37

84



 

9

Chapter. A defendant shall be liable for an additional civil penalty of up to five thousand 
dollars ($5,000) for each violation of this Chapter committed against a person who is 
disabled within the meaning of California Government Code section 12926 et seq., or is 
aged sixty-five (65) or over.

F. An attorney who represents an Applicant in litigation against a Housing Provider brought 
under this Chapter shall provide notice to the City within ten (10) days of filing court 
action against the Housing Provider, and inform the City of the outcome of the court 
action within ten (10) days of any final judgment. 

13.106.110   No Conflict with State or Federal Law 

This Chapter is not intended to conflict with state or federal law. If there is a conflict between the 
provisions of federal or state law and this Article, federal or state law shall control.

13.106.1210   Severability

If any word, phrase, sentence, part, section, subsection, or other portion of this Chapter, or any 
application thereof to any person or circumstance is declared void, unconstitutional, or invalid 
for any reason, then such word, phrase, sentence, part, section, subsection, or other portion, or 
the proscribed application thereof, shall be severable, and the remaining provisions of this 
chapter, and all applications thereof, not having been declared void, unconstitutional or invalid, 
shall remain in full force and effect. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed 
this title, and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase thereof, irrespective of the 
fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases had been 
declared invalid or unconstitutional.

13.106.120 

Section 2.  Effective Date

The provisions of this Chapter shall take effect upon thirty days after final adoption of this 
ordinance. A Housing Provider shall not be liable for a violation within 180 days after final 
adoption of this Chapter, unless the Housing Provider has first received a warning letter from 
the City regarding a violation of the Ordinance. 

The provisions of this Chapter shall take effect on July 1September 1, 2020.

Section 3. Notice to Housing Providers

The City Manager is directed to cause notice of this Ordinance to be mailed to all residential 
rental property owners subject to this Chapter within 90 days of final adoption of this Ordinance.  

Section 4. Posting 

Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the display case located 
near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 
15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public 
Library and the title shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation.

Page 25 of 37

85



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE:  October 28, 2019, updated January 23, 2020 
TO:    City of Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin and Land Use Committee 
FROM:   Just Cities:  Margaretta Lin, JD, MA, Executive Director; John Jones III, Director of 

Community & Political Engagement; Richard Illgen, Senior Advisor; Tim Tsai, MPP, 
Policy Justice Research Associate; Alex Werth, PhD, Research Consultant 

SUBJECT: Fair Chance Housing Ordinance that removes structural barriers for people with 
criminal histories in applications for rental housing  

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
As research and lived experience demonstrate, formerly incarcerated people experience significant 
barriers beyond the high cost of rent that prevent them from securing housing. They are screened out 
when applying to rent housing due to criminal background checks in private rental, nonprofit 
affordable housing, and public housing units. Even living with family members is not always a viable 
solution as it may put their family’s housing at risk-- rental agreements may prohibit or limit people 
with criminal histories from residing in the units. Fair Chance Housing is legislation that prohibits the 
use of criminal histories for most offenses in determining access to housing.  It also bans the use of 
advertising language that excludes people with arrest records, conviction records, or criminal history.  
In short, Fair Chance Housing legislation removes structural barriers to housing and enables landlords 
to consider the merits of individual housing applications—providing people with a fair chance. 
 
Led by Just Cities/the Dellums Institute for Social Justice, The Alameda County Fair Chance 
Housing Coalition has been working to remove such structural exclusionary barriers for people 
coming home from prison.  The Coalition partners and supporters include:  All of Us or None, 
Berkeley NAACP, Berkeley Oakland Support Services (BOSS), Community Works, Church by the 
Side of the Road, East Bay Community Law Center, East Bay for Everyone, East Bay Young 
Democrats, Essie Justice Group, Friends of Adeline, Just Cities, Justice Reinvestment 
Coalition,  Laney College Restoring Our Communities Center, League of Women Voters for Oakland, 
Make Oakland Better Now, McGee Baptist Church, National Housing Law Project, Our Beloved 
Community Action Network, PolicyLink, Root & Rebound, Safe Return Project, Tech Equity 
Collaborative, Underground Scholars of UC Berkeley, and The Way Church.   

The Fair Chance Housing Ordinance would result in: 
 

1) Clear rules and standards for all landlords regarding the use of criminal background checks in 
the housing application process and the elimination of the current arbitrary system that relies on 
inaccurate criminal background databases.   
 

Page 26 of 37

86



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 2 

2) Landlords assessing the merits of individual housing applications rather than the current status 
of blanket exclusion of applications solely on the basis of criminal records. 
 

3) Formerly incarcerated people and their family members having access to safe, stable, and 
affordable housing that they need in order to reclaim their lives and effectively re-integrate into 
the community. 

 
4) Decrease in recidivism rates by removing structural barriers to stable housing, including with 

family members, for formerly incarcerated people.   
 
BACKGROUND  
 
SUMMARY OF FLAWS WITH CRIMINAL BACKGROUND DATABASE SYSTEMS 
 
Research shows that government repositories of criminal records are routinely incomplete, thus 
making commercial criminal background reports inaccurate and/or misleading.  In 2006, the U.S. 
Department of Justice (DOJ) found that an estimated 50% of FBI arrest records, which are used by 
many background check companies, were missing information on the final disposition of the cases in 
question.1 In 2016, the DOJ found that an estimated 32% of records in state criminal history 
repositories were missing final disposition data.2 Incomplete data at the state and federal levels 
undermine the fairness and accuracy of commercial criminal background reports, which rely upon 
governmental data. In particular, out-of-date information about the final disposition of a case means 
that data about arrests are routinely listed in background reports even when the charges were 
eventually dropped, reduced, or disproven in court.  
 
The consequences of these database gaps are significant. According to the National Employment Law 
Project (NELP), “one third of felony arrests do not result in conviction and many others are reduced to 
misdemeanors.”3  While industry-wide data on the inaccuracies of commercial criminal background 
reports are unavailable, the NELP estimates that 1.8 million workers are subject to FBI checks that 
include faulty or incomplete information each year.  Further, many on-line databases accessible 
through search engines are also inaccurate, even representing persons without criminal records as 
having been arrested or convicted. 
 
The lack of accurate disposition data is one of many issues that undermine the accuracy of private 
criminal background reports. According to a review by the National Consumer Law Center, such 
reports suffer from a range of problems, including: the publication of sealed or expunged records; the 

 
1 U.S. Department of Justice. (2006). The Attorney General’s Report on Criminal History Background Checks, p. 3.  
2 National Consortium of Justice Statistics. (2018). Survey of State Criminal History Information Systems, 2016: A 
Criminal Justice Information Policy Report, p. 2.  
3 National Employment Law Project. (2013). Wanted: Accurate FBI Background Checks for Employment, pp. 1-2.  

Page 27 of 37

87



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 3 

misclassification of crimes (e.g. reporting a misdemeanor as a felony); the assignment of crimes to an 
individual who did not commit them, otherwise known as a “false positive”; and the display of data in 
a misleading manner (e.g. reporting a single arrest multiple times because it appears in multiple 
databases).4 Unlike government screens, such commercial background checks are conducted using 
basic personal information, like names. In the late 1990s, a task force consisting of state and federal 
agencies found that, compared with fingerprint-based checks, name-based checks resulted in a false-
positive rate of 5.5%.5 This means that around 1 in 20 apparent identifications of a crime was ascribed 
to a person who did not in fact commit that crime. 
 
SUMMARY OF HOUSING ACCESS BARRIERS FOR PEOPLE WITH CRIMINAL RECORDS 
 
Alameda County service providers and national researchers have documented barriers to access to both 
private rental and publicly subsidized affordable housing faced by formerly incarcerated residents.6  
Results of a 2019 Goldman School survey and interviews of formerly incarcerated persons in Alameda 
County found that many formerly incarcerated persons could not stay in public housing with a relative 
or family member due to public housing rules or were denied private or public rental housing due to 
their incarceration record.7  In addition, a recent survey by the Berkeley Property Owners Association 
found that the majority of landlord survey respondents conducted criminal background checks.  We 
note that persons paroled from incarceration are generally to be returned to the county of their 
residence (CA Penal Code 3003); therefore, parolees from this area will be returning home. 
 
SUMMARY OF PUBLIC HEALTH & SAFETY IMPACTS FROM HOUSING BARRIERS:   
 
As the state with the second highest population of people currently in prison or jail in the country,8 
California will need to house formerly incarcerated people as they reenter society in a highly impacted 
housing market. Alameda County has a total of 7,900 people on probation or parole.9  Incarceration 
and lack of housing can lead to severely limited economic opportunity, thereby increasing the chances 
of recidivism and public safety impacts.  

 
4 National Consumer Law Center. (2012). Broken Records: How Errors by Criminal Background Checking Companies 
Harm Workers and Businesses, p. 15.  
5 National Association of Professional Background Screeners. (2005). The National Crime Information Center: A Review 
and Evaluation, pp. 11-2.  
6 See Corinne Carey, No Second Chance: People with Criminal Records Denied Access to Public Housing, 36 University of 
Toledo Law Review 545; Caterina Gouvis Roman and Jeremy Travis, Urban Institute, Taking Stock: Housing, 
Homelessness and Prisoner Re-Entry (2004); and Every Door Closed: Barriers Facing Parents With Criminal Records, 
CLASP and CLS Report, Chapter 3, “Criminal Records and Subsidized Housing: Families Losing the Opportunity for 
Decent Shelter”. 
7 Rodriguez, Anthony (2019) “A Just Return Home: Identifying and Removing Barriers to Housing for Formerly 
Incarcerated Residents Through Suggested Policies for County of Alameda” Report for Just Cities and Goldman School of 
Public Policy. p.23 
8 California 2017 raw numbers. “State-by-State Data.” The Sentencing Project. Accessed October 4, 2019. 
https://www.sentencingproject.org/the-facts/#detail?state1Option=U.S.Total&state2Option=0  
9 Total population in probation, Q4 2018 “Alameda County Probation Department Data Dashboard”. Alameda County. 
Accessed October 4, 2019. https://www.acgov.org/probation/dashboard.htm.  

Page 28 of 37

88



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 4 

Research has shown that access to stable and affordable housing enables people to successfully re-
integrate into society.  For example, two studies in Ohio10 and Maryland11 found that providing 
housing subsidies or public housing to recently released incarcerated persons reduced the chances that 
they would be rearrested in the first year.  A government study conducted in the United Kingdom 
found that stable housing was associated with a 20% reduction in the chance of being reconvicted.12 
 
Extensive research also shows the direct link between incarceration history, homelessness, and 
health.13  For example, a recent participatory action research project between Just Cities, The Village, 
and the UC Berkeley Goldman School for Public Policy’s Center for Civility & Democratic 
Engagement found that 73% of unhoused residents interviewed in Oakland’s encampments were 
formerly incarcerated!14  Based upon anecdotal and other data, we believe that unhoused people in 
Berkeley are also disproportionately formerly incarcerated.  For example, in the 2017 Point in Time 
count for Berkeley homeless residents, one of the top six reasons listed for the primary cause of 
homelessness was incarceration (6% of respondents).   
 
In addition, there are an estimated 10 million children nationwide that are impacted by a parent or 
close relative who are in the criminal justice system.15 These children suffer from an increased rate of 
depression, antisocial behavior, drug use, and suicide.16 
 
SUMMARY OF RACIAL DISPARITY:   

There is an extreme racial disparity in criminal conviction and incarceration rates, which translates to a 
racial disparity in access to housing. 
 

 
10 Fontaine, Jocelyn, Douglas Gilchrist-Scott, John Roman, Samuel Taxy, and Caterina Roman. “Supportive Housing for 
Returning Prisoners: Outcomes and Impacts of the Returning Home-Ohio Pilot Project.” PsycEXTRA Dataset, August 
2012. https://doi.org/10.1037/e527702013-001.  
11 Kirk, David S., Geoffrey C. Barnes, Jordan M. Hyatt, and Brook W. Kearley. “The Impact of Residential Change and 
Housing Stability on Recidivism: Pilot Results from the Maryland Opportunities through Vouchers Experiment (MOVE).” 
Journal of Experimental Criminology 14, no. 2 (2017): 213–26. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11292-017-9317-z.  
12 Kirk, David S., Geoffrey C. Barnes, Jordan M. Hyatt, and Brook W. Kearley. “The Impact of Residential Change and 
Housing Stability on Recidivism: Pilot Results from the Maryland Opportunities through Vouchers Experiment (MOVE).” 
Journal of Experimental Criminology 14, no. 2 (2017): 213–26. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11292-017-9317-z.  
13 Roman, Caterina Gouvis, and Jeremy Travis. “Taking Stock: Housing, Homelessness, and Prisoner Reentry.” 
PsycEXTRA Dataset, 2004. http://webarchive.urban.org/UploadedPDF/411096_taking_stock.pdf  p.7-8 
14 Tsai, Tim. “Standing Together: A Prevention-Oriented Approach to Ending Homelessness in Oakland.” 
http://bit.ly/HomelessPrevention2019 p.12 
15 Hirsch, Amy E, Sharon M Dietrich, Rue Landau, Peter D Schneider, Irv Ackelsberg, Judith Bernstein-Baker, and Joseph 
Hohenstein. Every Door Closed: Barriers Facing Parents with Criminal Records. Philadelphia, PA: Community Legal 
Services, Inc, 2002. p.1 https://www.clasp.org/sites/default/files/publications/2018/01/every_door_closed.pdf  
16 Davis, Laurel, and Rebecca J. Shlafer. “Mental Health of Adolescents with Currently and Formerly Incarcerated 
Parents.” Journal of Adolescence 54 (2017): 120–34. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.adolescence.2016.10.006.   Shlafer, Rebecca 
J, Erica Gerrity, Ebony Ruhland, and Marc Wheeler. “Children with Incarcerated Parents – Considering Children’s 
Outcomes in the Context of Complex Family Experiences.” Children, Youth, and Family Consortium, 2013. 
https://www.prisonpolicy.org/scans/umn/June2013ereview.pdf. p.3 

Page 29 of 37

89



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 5 

There are statistical racial disparities at every stage of the criminal justice system.  Research has 
demonstrated that African Americans are more likely to be stopped by police,17 prosecuted 
disproportionately, and punished more harshly than other ethnic groups.18 As a result, Black men—one 
third of whom are likely to serve time in prison or jail at some point in their lives—are incarcerated at 
a rate that is five times that of White men. Racial bias in plea-bargaining, which accounts for the vast 
majority of new criminal convictions, is a significant source of the disparity in incarceration. In a 
recent study of more than 48,000 cases in Wisconsin, legal scholar Carlos Berdejó found that White 
defendants were 25% more likely than Black ones to have their most serious charge either dropped or 
reduced to a less serious charge.19 As a result, Whites who were initially charged with a felony were an 
estimated 15% more likely to end up convicted of a misdemeanor instead. In addition, Whites who 
were initially charged with a misdemeanor were an estimated 75% more likely to be convicted of a 
crime carrying no possible incarceration, or not convicted at all.20  
 
These disparities are even more acute in California. According to the Public Policy Institute of 
California, in 2017, African Americans made up 5.6% of the state’s adult men but 28.5% of its male 
prisoners.21 As a result, Black men were ten times more likely than White men to be incarcerated. 
Latino men were more than twice as likely as White men to be incarcerated. There were significant 
disparities among Black women, too, who were five times more likely than White women to be 
incarcerated.22 Inequalities in incarceration were driven in part by inequalities in policing. Again, 
according to the Public Policy Institute of California, Black male residents were three times more 
likely than White ones to be arrested in 2016.23 
 
Here in Alameda County, 48% of probationers are African American24 even though African Americans 
make up only 11% of the population.25  

This means that both nationally and locally, a disproportionate number of African Americans 
are impacted by criminal background checks in housing applications. 

 

 
17 “Findings” Stanford Open Policing Project. Accessed October 4, 2019. https://openpolicing.stanford.edu/findings/.  
18 Porter, Nicole D., Nazgol Ghandnoosh, Josh Rovner, and Jean Chung. “Racial Disparity.” The Sentencing Project, 
September 30, 2019. https://www.sentencingproject.org/issues/racial-disparity/.  
19 Berdejó, Carlos. (2018). Criminalizing Race: Racial Disparities in Plea-Bargaining. Boston College Law Review, 59(4), 
pp. 1189-91. 
20 Berdejó, Carlos. (2018). Criminalizing Race: Racial Disparities in Plea-Bargaining. Boston College Law Review, 59(4), 
pp. 1189-91. 
21 Public Policy Institute of California. (2019). California’s Prison Population, p. 1. 
22 Public Policy Institute of California. (2019). California’s Prison Population, p. 1. 
23 Public Policy Institute of California. (2019). Racial Disparities in California Arrests, p. 1. 
24 Total population in probation, Q4 2018 “Alameda County Probation Department Data Dashboard”. Alameda County. 
Accessed October 4, 2019. https://www.acgov.org/probation/dashboard.htm.  
25 “U.S. Census Bureau QuickFacts: Alameda County, California.” United States Census Bureau. Accessed October 4, 
2019. https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/alamedacountycalifornia.  

Page 30 of 37

90



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 6 

SUMMARY OF HUD GUIDANCE: 

On or about April 4, 2016, the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development issued 
the “Office of General Counsel Guidance on Application of Fair Housing Act Standards to the Use of 
Criminal Records by Providers of Housing and Real Estate-Related Transactions” in which it states 
that “Policies that exclude persons based on criminal history must be tailored to serve the housing 
provider’s substantial, legitimate, nondiscriminatory interest and take into consideration such factors as 
the type of the crime and the length of the time since conviction.” 
 
SUMMARY OF OTHER FAIR CHANCE HOUSING POLICIES:   
 
The Coalition’s efforts build upon the remarkable work of other coalitions and communities to advance 
fair chance housing policies, namely in the cities of Richmond, Seattle, and Portland.  In 2016, the Safe 
Return Project and its coalition partners including the Dellums Institute worked with the City of 
Richmond to pass legislation to remove housing barriers for formerly incarcerated residents to access 
any publicly subsidized housing.  In 2017, Seattle community leaders in the Mayor’s Fair Housing 
Task Force worked with the City of Seattle to enact legislation that removed housing barriers for 
formerly incarcerated residents to access private or publicly subsidized rental housing.  In 2019, the 
City of Portland enacted a Fair Chance Housing policy similar to Seattle’s policy. 
 
We note that the cities of Seattle and Portland have first in time housing policies which limit landlord 
discretion in the selection of their tenants.  Alameda County cities do not have such a policy.   
 
Here’s a summary of the main comparison between the Berkeley proposal and policies enacted by the 
cities of Richmond, Seattle, and Portland: 
• Similar to Seattle and Portland, the Berkeley proposal would apply to all housing units, private and 

publicly subsidized. 
• Similar to Richmond and Seattle, the Berkeley proposal would enable Housing Providers who are 

funded by HUD to conduct criminal records checks after a Conditional Offer of Housing has been 
granted and subject to certain procedures. 

• Similar to Richmond, the Berkeley proposal would provide for a private right of action in addition 
to City enforcement.  The City of Seattle, instead, utilizes its robust Department of Civil Rights 
which enforces civil rights violations.   

• Similar to Seattle, the Berkeley proposal would prohibit the use of criminal records checks in the 
housing application process, with the exception that allows for the review of sex offender registry. 

• Unlike Portland and Seattle, the Berkeley proposal DOES NOT have a first in time tenant 
acceptance requirement.  In addition, the Berkeley proposal maintains landlord discretion in the 
review of relevant information including landlord references, employment and income status, and 
credit report checks. 

 

Page 31 of 37

91



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 7 

Less comprehensive versions of fair chance policies have passed in other cities including San 
Francisco; Urbana, Illinois; Madison, Wisconsin; New York, New York; and Newark, New Jersey. 
 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PROCESS--CENTERING PEOPLE MOST IMPACTED BY THE POLICY PROBLEM:   

Building on their successful anti-displacement funding efforts with Alameda County and the cities of 
Berkeley and Oakland in 2017, the Our Beloved Community Action Network26 (BCAN) leaders led by 
Just Cities/the Dellums Institute resolved to work together to address the removal of housing barriers 
for formerly incarcerated people.  Through the advocacy of BCAN partner, the TechEquity 
Collaborative, the Chan Zuckerberg Initiative has provided resources for the development of the 
Alameda County Fair Chance Housing Coalition, including a leadership development program for 
formerly incarcerated people or their family members—the Policy and Outreach Leaders (POLs).  The 
following community leaders have served as the POLs:  Ms. Towanda Sherry, Ms. Anita Wills, Katie 
Dixon, and Taqwaa Bonner.   

With support from Just Cities staff, the POLs have convened community forums and listening sessions 
with formerly incarcerated people and their family members, as well as participated in multiple 
research and policy design workshops.  They have also worked with the UC Berkeley Goldman School 
of Public Policy’s Center on Civility and Democratic Engagement to design and implement a survey to 
assess the individual, family, and community impacts of today’s housing barriers for people with 
criminal records.  In addition, Richard Illgen, former Oakland Deputy City Attorney, the Safe Return 
Project, and the National Housing Law Project have provided technical assistance to Just Cities and the 
POLs in developing the draft ordinance. 

SUMMARY OF FAIR CHANCE HOUSING POLICY TERMS 
 
The following is a summary of the proposed Fair Chance Housing policy.  These policies were crafted 
after more than seven public hearings before the City of Berkeley’s 4x4 and Land Use Committees; 
multiple meetings with the leaders of the Berkeley Property Owners Association; community forums 
with Berkeley residents and community organizations; and separate meetings with the Mayor and 
Council offices. 
 
NAMED AFTER CONGRESSMAN RON DELLUMS:   
 
The Coalition is proposing to name the Fair Chance Housing policy after former Berkeley City 
Councilmember, Congressman, Oakland Mayor, and world humanitarian Ronald V. Dellums in honor 
of his legacy and to inspire policymakers across the nation to champion human rights.  Congressman 
Dellums passed away in July 2018.  For over fifty years, Ron Dellums practiced courageous and 
principled leadership to advance the human rights and needs of all peoples, especially those who have 

 
26 For more information about the Our Beloved Community Action Network: http://dellumsinstitute.org/bcan 

Page 32 of 37

92



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 8 

been discriminated against and marginalized.  He was born in 1935 and grew up in a segregated West 
Oakland.  He had a troubled youth and almost did not graduate from high school.  After serving in the 
Marines, Ron Dellums became a UC Berkeley trained psychiatric social worker and a community 
organizer.   At the age of 31, Ron Dellums was on his way to a PhD program at Brandeis when he was 
recruited by activists to serve on the Berkeley City Council.   
 
As Berkeley City Councilmember from 1967 to 1970, Ron Dellums championed progressive values of 
anti-war, peace, and justice including opposition to the death penalty, development of the People’s 
Park and opposition to the declaration of martial law by then Governor Ronald Reagan, and 
successfully forcing BART to put train tracks in Berkeley underground.   
 
As Congressperson representing Berkeley and Oakland from 1970 to 1997, Ron Dellums was the first 
African American to represent the district and one of the first Democratic Socialists in Congress.  He 
was elected to Congress as an anti-Vietnam War activist and a prominent member of President Nixon’s 
infamous “enemies list.” Yet, he rose to become Chair of the powerful House Armed Services 
Committee, while maintaining his integrity, activism, and principles.   Decades ahead of the 
“mainstream,” his initially lonely efforts against Apartheid in South Africa, and against the major 
nuclear war-fighting systems, all eventually became the official positions of the nation.  He was a 
staunch critic of discrimination in the military, a key supporter of gay rights in the military, and 
consistently challenged the militarization of U.S. foreign policy, while advocating for improving the 
living conditions of military personnel. Ron Dellums also chaired the House DC Committee where he 
pushed for meaningful Home Rule and Statehood for the District of Columbia, and also focused on the 
problems in America’s cities.  He was equally well known for presenting comprehensive policy 
proposals including the Dellums Alternative Military Budget and the Congressional Black Caucus 
Alternative Budget.  He authored comprehensive bills to provide free healthcare to all Americans, a 
national comprehensive housing program, and climate change legislation. 
 
After leaving Congress, Dellums led the development of his envisioned Marshall Plan for HIV/AIDs 
resulting in the federal PEPFAR programs which has saved 17 million lives in Sub-Saharan Africa, 
and the Dellums Commission on Boys and Men of Color, the precursor to President Obama’s My 
Brother’s Keeper initiative.   

 
Already in his 70s, Ron Dellums was drafted to serve as Mayor of Oakland from 2007 to 2010, where 
he opened up City Hall for Oakland’s people to develop Oakland as a model city for the world.  To 
institutionalize civic engagement, Ron Dellums created 41 Citizen Task Forces that involved over 800 
residents and resulted in policy changes such as the adoption of an industrial lands policy to facilitate 
economic development and jobs for Oakland residents and strategies to improve air quality from Port 
operations.  He created a Re-Entry Services program out of the Mayor’s office that welcomed formerly 
incarcerated residents home and helped them find jobs, housing, and support.  Ron Dellums developed 
a comprehensive public safety plan which resulted in a 38% decline in homicides and a 25% decline in 

Page 33 of 37

93



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 9 

all Part I (major) crimes.  He reformed the Oakland Police Department and advanced community and 
constitutional policing.  He led unprecedented City efforts involving business, labor, education, and 
community leaders to develop a comprehensive vision for a sustainable and equitable local economy, 
which resulted in $550 million of new funding for projects and the generation of over 14,000 jobs 
during the Great Recession. 
 
In 2016, at the tender age of 80, Ron Dellums co-founded the Dellums Institute for Social Justice to 
create a platform for the collective advancement of racial and social justice.   
 
By naming the Fair Chance Housing Ordinance after Ronald V. Dellums, we seek to inspire 
community youth to believe in their potential for greatness and government officials to lead with 
courage, integrity, compassion for the most marginalized, and big vision for justice. 
 
POLICY GOALS: 

1. Remove current structural barriers faced by formerly incarcerated people when they apply for 
private or publicly subsidized housing to enable them to be considered on the merits of their 
present situation, rather than the albatross of their past. 
 

2. Create a due process system that a) enables formerly incarcerated people the ability to complain 
to the City and also sue to enforce their rights under the Ordinance; and b) builds on the City’s 
current administrative systems and capacity.   
 

3. Design policy terms based upon an understanding of the different application and review 
processes by private and multiple kinds of Affordable Housing providers. 
 

4. Create reporting requirements that are streamlined and also helps Affordable Housing providers 
transform their current application and review systems. 
 

5. Avoid unintended consequences by not having burdensome or complex requirements for 
landlords. 

 
6. Address the realities and special considerations of landlords who reside on their rental property 

that are smaller buildings, e.g. triplexes and smaller. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34 of 37

94



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 10 

MAIN PROPOSED POLICY TERMS:   
 
The following is a summary of the proposed fair chance housing policy. 
 

Housing Provider Criminal 
Background Check 

Due Process Reporting to 
City 

Potential Remedies for 
Violations 

Private (Non-
Affordable Housing 
Provider) 

No City Complaint 
or 
Sue in Court 

None City complaint w/ fine.  Court 
action w/ damages or injunctive 
relief. 

Publicly Subsidized 
& Not HUD Funded  

No City Complaint 
or 
Sue in Court 

Annual 
certification of 
compliance 

City complaint w/ fine.  Court 
action w/ damages or injunctive 
relief. 

HUD Funded  Following due process 
protections, can check 
on 2 crimes per HUD 
rules 

City Complaint 
or 
Sue in Court 

Annual 
certification of 
compliance 

City complaint w/ fine.  Court 
action w/ damages or injunctive 
relief. 

 
CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS:   
 
The proposed ordinance prohibits ALL landlords from: 
(a) Advertising or using a policy that automatically excludes people with criminal histories from rental 

housing, 
(b) Asking about or requiring disclosure of someone’s criminal history, or 
(c) Taking adverse action against an applicant or tenant based on his or her criminal history. 

Exemptions to the ordinance: 

o The following properties where the owner occupies the property are exempt from the ordinance:  
ADUs, single family homes, duplexes, and triplexes. 

o Property owners renting their primary dwelling when they are on sabbatical. 
o Tenants renting out available bedrooms in the unit in which they reside. 
o Pursuant to State law, landlords can review and consider whether an applicant is on the State 

operated registry of lifetime sex offenders after a conditional offer has been made and upon written 
consent from the applicant.  If a housing denial is based upon the registry information, the landlord 
must provide that information to the applicant and provide the applicant with the opportunity to 
rebut or provide mitigating information. 

o Landlords of HUD funded housing have a partial exemption from the ordinance if they are 
complying with federal regulations that require them to automatically exclude tenants based on 
certain types of criminal history (lifetime sex offender registration requirement or manufacturing 
meth on a federally assisted housing property).  However, the landlord can only conduct the 
background check upon written consent from the applicant.  If a housing denial is based upon one 
of the two HUD prescribed crimes, the landlord must provide the background check information to 
the applicant and provide the applicant with the opportunity to rebut or provide mitigating 
information. 

Page 35 of 37

95



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 11 

IMPLEMENTATION & ENFORCEMENT:   
 

1. Private Rental Housing Application & Complaint Process 
 
o Denial:  If an applicant has been denied housing, they are entitled to any notices required by state 

and federal law and can also request that the landlord provide a reason for the denial. 
 

o Due Process, Remedies & Enforcement—See below 
 

2. Affordable Housing Rental Housing Application and Appeal/Complaint Process 
 

o Definition:  any housing provider receiving direct local, county, state, or federal subsidy.  We 
have removed Section 8 landlords from the definition of Affordable Housing provider since the 
Housing Authority conducts the background checks for Section 8 voucher holders and because of 
Berkeley’s source of income anti-discrimination law. 

 
o Background Check, Denial, and Due Process Protections:  For HUD funded housing providers, 

the housing provider may conduct a criminal background check if required by federal 
requirements.  The housing provider must ensure that the applicant provided prior written consent 
to the criminal background check, receive a copy of any criminal background check, and has the 
opportunity to respond with rebutting or mitigating information before the applicant is denied 
housing. 

 
o Annual Reports:  only publicly subsidized housing providers would submit an annual certification 

of compliance to the City utilizing a City template.  The Coalition would like to work with the 
City on designing the compliance template.    

 
3. Due Process, Remedies and Enforcement for Both Private & Publicly Subsidized Rental Housing 

 
o Complaint Process:   

o The applicant would have the right to file a complaint with the City Manager’s designated 
hearing officer within one year from the date of application for housing. 

o The public and complainant would be informed of available City or community resources 
to assist in the filing of the complaint or preparing for the hearing, including the gathering 
of evidence. 

 
o Similar to current local tenant law, private right of action and attorney’s fees for the prevailing 

applicant are provided. 
 
o Berkeley’s current administrative penalty system is also integrated into the proposal. 

Page 36 of 37

96



 

 

A Policy Justice Brief for  
Berkeley Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

 

 

 12 

 
o Landlord retaliation is explicitly prohibited. 
 
o Landlords are required to maintain documentation of any conviction history that they obtain on 

applicants for at least three years. 
 
o Effective date of the ordinance is 6 months after its adoption. 

 
o The City Manager or their designee would provide an annual status report to the City Council and 

public including:  a) which Affordable Housing providers submitted an annual certification of 
compliance; b) number of complaints filed with the City and the resolution; c) information from 
local service providers and community organizations on the number of court cases filed and the 
resolution or other compliance information. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
In the words of Just Cities’ Director of Community & Political Engagement, John Arthur Jones III, 
 

The only place in America where one is guaranteed a roof over their head is in prison/jail. 
This Ordinance will take steps towards addressing the major intersection of Mass 

Incarceration and Housing barriers- BOTH resulting from policies and programs that 
were created and/or sanctioned by government- locally, statewide and nationally. In 

addition to constituting a human right, housing is also a Public Health and Public Safety 
issue. The impact of having a criminal record severely harms and impacts those who have 
never been arrested, including the children, parents, partners, and loved ones of those who 

are formerly incarcerated. Just as criminal records cannot and does not strip one of the 
legal duty of paying taxes, neither legally should having a criminal record strip anyone of 

one of the most quintessential elements of human rights- and that is housing. 
 

Page 37 of 37

97



98



CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Vice Mayor Sophie Hahn and Councilmember Cheryl Davila
Subject: Referral to Schedule a Special City Council Meeting on Ohlone History and 

Culture

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the Agenda & Rules Policy Committee to schedule a Special City Council Meeting of at 
least one hour in duration immediately prior to a Regular City Council Meeting for 
representatives of the Ohlone community to present on Ohlone history and culture to provide 
additional context for the placement of signs stating "Welcome to the City of Berkeley Ohlone 
Territory” at entrances to our City.

BACKGROUND
Long before the City of Berkeley was incorporated, the Bay Area was inhabited by Indigenous 
peoples, including the Ohlone. The Ohlone Village of Huchiun existed in what is now the 
Berkeley City limits, and the Ohlone language Chochenyo was (and is still) spoken here. The 
Ohlone peoples established sacred sites and burial sites in Berkeley and throughout the Bay 
Area.1

The City of Berkeley has a proud history of recognition, inclusiveness and diversity. For 
example, in 1992, Berkeley was the first city in the United States to rename as Indigenous 
Peoples’ Day the federal holiday formerly recognized as Columbus Day. In recent years, Native 
American groups, including Ohlone tribal members and conservation activists, have been 
organized in spreading awareness throughout the community about their homeland and sacred 
sites in the Bay Area. 

In January 2018, Councilmember Cheryl Davila introduced an item to change Berkeley’s City 
Limits signs to “Welcome to Berkeley Ohlone Territory.”2 In October 2018, the City Council 
adopted a measure referring the City Manager to replace all Welcome to Berkeley signs with 
new signage, including “Ohlone Territory.”3 The purpose of the referral was to recognize the 
Ohlone Peoples as the original inhabitants of the land now called Berkeley, including the Bay 
Area region, and to celebrate the City’s Indigenous communities. The measure underscored the 

1 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2016/01_Jan/Documents/2016-01-
19_Item_31_Support_of_Indigenous_Peoples.aspx 
2 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/01_Jan/Documents/2018-01-
23_Item_39_Replace_City_Limit_Signs.aspx 
3 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-
02_Item_E_Welcome_to_Berkeley_Signage.aspx 

Page 1 of 3

99

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2016/01_Jan/Documents/2016-01-19_Item_31_Support_of_Indigenous_Peoples.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2016/01_Jan/Documents/2016-01-19_Item_31_Support_of_Indigenous_Peoples.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/01_Jan/Documents/2018-01-23_Item_39_Replace_City_Limit_Signs.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/01_Jan/Documents/2018-01-23_Item_39_Replace_City_Limit_Signs.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Item_E_Welcome_to_Berkeley_Signage.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2018/10_Oct/Documents/2018-10-02_Item_E_Welcome_to_Berkeley_Signage.aspx
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.21



importance of helping current Berkeley residents and visitors to understand what came before 
the current landscape. 

In addition to recognizing and celebrating the Ohlone People through signage, the Council 
discussed the need for learning opportunities to add historical context, including a Council 
session on Ohlone history and culture, and a webpage on the City of Berkeley website linking to 
historic and cultural information about the Ohlone. In the spirit of that discussion, and in keeping 
with the City’s commitment to recognize diversity, inclusion and to learning more about the 
original inhabitants of Berkeley, representatives of the Ohlone community are invited to present 
to the Council on Ohlone history and culture at a Special Meeting of the City Council. 

FISCAL IMPACTS
There are no fiscal impacts associated with adopting the attached referral.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY & CLIMATE IMPACTS
This item is consistent with the City’s vision on sustainability and environmental goals. Reports 
on the recent fires in Australia have highlighted the deep traditional ecological knowledge 
Australia’s Indigenous people have about fire control and suppression.4 “What Australians 
should really learn from the Aboriginal people is custodianship over the land . . . The way 
Aboriginal people deeply know and care for the land is something Australians should ponder 
and embrace.”5

The Ohlone people were also profoundly knowledgeable stewards of the land and environment 
of the Bay Area. Learning about their history, ecological practices, and cultural values will 
provide important information about how Berkeley can be more resilient, reduce our climate and 
environmental impacts, and how we can all become better stewards of our community, our land 
and water, and the planet.

CONTACT: Sophie Hahn, District 5: (510) 981-7150

ATTACHMENTS
1. Photograph of "Welcome to the City of Berkeley Ohlone Territory” signage

4 https://www.bbc.com/news/world-australia-51043828; https://www.cnn.com/2020/01/12/world/aboriginal-
australia-fire-trnd/index.html; https://www.nytimes.com/2020/01/24/us/native-american-controlled-burns-
california-wildfires.html
5 https://www.cnn.com/2020/01/12/world/aboriginal-australia-fire-trnd/index.html

Page 2 of 3

100

https://www.bbc.com/news/world-australia-51043828
https://www.cnn.com/2020/01/12/world/aboriginal-australia-fire-trnd/index.html
https://www.cnn.com/2020/01/12/world/aboriginal-australia-fire-trnd/index.html
https://www.nytimes.com/2020/01/24/us/native-american-controlled-burns-california-wildfires.html
https://www.nytimes.com/2020/01/24/us/native-american-controlled-burns-california-wildfires.html
https://www.cnn.com/2020/01/12/world/aboriginal-australia-fire-trnd/index.html


Page 3 of 3

101



102



CONSENT CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmembers Robinson, Droste, Harrison, and Wengraf

Subject: Referral: Street Lighting Near Campus

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the Public Works Commission to include the following in the Street Lighting 
Subcommittee Work Plan, for the purposes of seeking input from key stakeholders and 
bringing together work that happens through parallel processes. The Subcommittee 
should:

1. Invite input from representatives from the UC Berkeley administration, UC 
Berkeley undergraduate and graduate students, UCPD and BPD, the 
Department of Public Works, and other relevant groups. 

2. Develop a streamlined and accessible process for requesting street lights that 
includes neighborhood and campus input, while recognizing the overriding public 
safety concern posed by substandard lighting.

3. Develop a plan for expeditiously installing new streetlights near campus that 
prioritizes high-crime areas, high-injury pedestrian corridors, and student-priority 
areas as determined by student input.

BACKGROUND
This referral comes out of discussion at the City-UC-Student Relations (4x6) 
Committee, made up of the four Councilmembers whose districts border the UC 
campus and six representatives from UC Berkeley, the ASUC, and the Graduate 
Assembly. The student-led effort within the Committee to improve street lighting near 
campus was initiated in November 2018, when City and UC staff delivered 
presentations to the Committee and provided a map of existing lighting locations.1 The 
recommendation in this item carries out the intent of the unanimous motion made at the 
February 8, 2019 4x6 meeting,2 as well as continued discussion that occurred at the 
November 18, 2019 meeting.3 

1 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-
_General/DRAFT%20Combined%204x6%20Minutes%2013Nov2018.pdf
2 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/Approved%202-8-
19%20Minutes.pdf
3 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/MINUTES%204x6%2011-
18-19%20DRAFT.pdf

Page 1 of 3

103

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_General/DRAFT%20Combined%204x6%20Minutes%2013Nov2018.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_General/DRAFT%20Combined%204x6%20Minutes%2013Nov2018.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/Approved%202-8-19%20Minutes.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/Approved%202-8-19%20Minutes.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/MINUTES%204x6%2011-18-19%20DRAFT.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Clerk/Level_3_-_Commissions/MINUTES%204x6%2011-18-19%20DRAFT.pdf
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.22



Referral: Street Lighting Near Campus CONSENT CALENDAR FEBRUARY 25, 2020

Adequate street lighting is an especially important issue around the UC Berkeley 
campus. 77 percent of UC Berkeley students get to and from campus by walking — 
fewer than 5 percent use a motorized vehicle of any kind.4 These students often walk 
home from campus in the dark after extracurricular activities or study sessions. 
Sufficient street lighting is crucial late at night or in the early mornings, when light from 
building windows and porches cannot be used to supplement streetlights. Students, 
other residents, and visitors should feel safe walking at night. A well-lit streetscape near 
campus can help reduce crime and traffic crashes, and benefits not only students but 
the general population as well.  

A combination of data analysis and community input is necessary to prioritize streetlight 
installation in a way that works for residents and the greater good of public safety. In 
order to ensure efficient use of City resources, the Subcommittee should examine 
UCPD and BPD crime data, City of Berkeley Vision Zero pedestrian injury data, and 
student input via organizations such as the ASUC and Graduate Assembly to develop a 
list of priority streetlight locations. 

The Subcommittee should also develop a streamlined streetlight request process. 
Currently, residents can submit requests for a streetlight to the City of Berkeley Public 
Works Commission, which evaluates each request based on current available lighting; 
proximity to public transit, schools, and hospitals; crime statistics and other safety 
concerns; pedestrian and bicycle traffic; and current zoning. The application process 
requires the signature of the eight residents who live adjacent to and across from the 
proposed location before submission. In the case of multi-family residential buildings, 60 
percent of tenants in each of these eight properties must approve.5 

Input from neighborhood residents is important and should be included in the 
application process. However, individual households should not have the ability to veto 
streetlights, since inadequate lighting is a pressing public safety concern. Furthermore, 
the requirement for 60 percent of tenant approval is an overly burdensome condition 
that disproportionately disadvantages multi-family residential neighborhoods and 
discourages residents from requesting a streetlight. Students living near campus may 
not have the time nor resources to collect signatures in large apartment complexes. The 
Street Lighting Subcommittee should create a streetlight application process that is 
streamlined and accessible for all Berkeley residents.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Staff time.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

4 https://opa.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/where_berkeley_students_live_0.pdf
5 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Sidewalks,_Streets_-
_Utility/PW%20Application%20for%20New%20Streetlight.pdf

Page 2 of 3

104

https://opa.berkeley.edu/sites/default/files/where_berkeley_students_live_0.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Sidewalks,_Streets_-_Utility/PW%20Application%20for%20New%20Streetlight.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Sidewalks,_Streets_-_Utility/PW%20Application%20for%20New%20Streetlight.pdf


Referral: Street Lighting Near Campus CONSENT CALENDAR FEBRUARY 25, 2020

None.

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Rigel Robinson, (510) 981-7170
Rachel Alper, Intern

Attachments:
1: Public Works Application for New Streetlight 
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-
_Sidewalks,_Streets_-_Utility/PW%20Application%20for%20New%20Streetlight.pdf 

Page 3 of 3

105

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Sidewalks,_Streets_-_Utility/PW%20Application%20for%20New%20Streetlight.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Public_Works/Level_3_-_Sidewalks,_Streets_-_Utility/PW%20Application%20for%20New%20Streetlight.pdf


106



INFORMATION CALENDAR
February 25, 2020

1

TO: Honorable Members of the City Council

FROM: Mayor Arreguín

SUBJECT: Report on Regional Leadership and Goals for 2020

SUMMARY
In January, Mayor Jesse Arreguín was sworn in as the new President of ABAG for a two-year 
term. This comes at an important time in our region, with our population expected to grow 
by 2 million people over the next 20 years, while we face challenges such as housing, 
homelessness and transportation.

BACKGROUND
The San Francisco Bay Area is comprised of 101 municipalities and nine counties, and is 
home to almost 8 million people. It is also home to one of the fastest growing economies in 
the world. While each city has its own history and laws, no place exists within a bubble. The 
Bay Area is intertwined, and the decisions on housing, transportation, or the economy in 
one city has a ripple effect on others. Knowing that jurisdictions have a collective stake in 
addressing the issues that affect us all, the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) 
was formed in 1961 to promote regional planning and collaboration. Today, ABAG is 
working with regional partners to address the needs and challenges of the Bay Area, from 
the affordable housing crisis to rising sea levels. 

ABAG is led by an Executive Board comprised of Mayors, Councilmembers and County 
Supervisors from throughout the nine Bay Area counties. Decisions on the budget and 
work plan are made by the General Assembly of delegates from each Bay Area city and 
county. ABAG is truly representative of cities and towns of all sizes, and the goal of the 
agency is to be a voice for all of our region’s local governments.

FUTURE ACTIONS
ABAG is set to make some big decisions in the coming year concerning the future of the 

Page 1 of 4

107

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02a.24



2

region. ABAG and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) are developing a 30-
year regional land use and transportation plan, also known as Plan Bay Area 20501. This 
Plan is required by state and federal law to guide transportation investments and meet 
state climate goals. The goal of Plan Bay Area 2050 is to create a more equitable and 
resilient future for the region through investments in the local economy, environment, 
housing and transportation. During Mayor Arreguín’s tenure as President, he is committed 
to working with local and regional representatives throughout the Bay Area in crafting a 
collaborative plan that the region can get behind. From addressing growing inequities to 
making us more resilient against the increasing threat of climate change, we must work 
together as one region if we are to achieve our goals. The ABAG Executive Board and MTC 
are expected to vote on Plan Bay Area 2050 in June 2021.

ABAG, which helps shape regional housing and land use policy, will become even more 
involved due to newly enacted state bills. One law of note is Assembly Bill 1487, the San 
Francisco Bay Area Regional Housing Finance Act, which empowers ABAG and MTC to place 
a regional measure on the Bay Area ballot for affordable housing funding. While it is 
common for counties and cities to place such measures on the ballot, it has not been done 
on a regional scale before, giving us the advantage of working through the regional lens we 
all know is necessary to truly address our crisis of affordable housing. Such a proposal will 
help us achieve our regional affordable housing goals and prevent displacement. However, 
specific zoning and local land use authority will continue to be under the scope of local 
jurisdictions. 

The Regional Housing Needs Allocation (RHNA) is a state mandated process of allocating 
the region’s housing need to individual counties and cities. Local governments must update 
their housing elements, and zoning if necessary, to demonstrate specific sites and 
regulations to permit the number of RHNA housing units allocated to each jurisdiction. The 
RHNA is a non-binding decision, but local Housing Elements must be in conformance to the 
RHNA or face penalty by the state. RHNA is the primary way in which we can measure the 
creation of new housing in the Bay Area. It is also how we implement state law under the 
Housing Element, which provides the total number of units that the Bay Area needs to be 
built. Drafting a RHNA methodology and allocation for the 2022-2030 cycle recently began 
and is being led by a Housing Methodology Committee, which Mayor Arreguín chairs. 
Mayor Arreguín will work to make sure that RHNA adoption guides us towards an equitable 
distribution of housing throughout the region, and addresses decades of past inequities in 
the production of affordable housing throughout the region. To this end, the state Housing 

1 https://www.planbayarea.org

Page 2 of 4

108

https://www.planbayarea.org/


3

Element law was recently amended to require that the RHNA affirmatively further fair 
housing. As the Bay Area is facing an unprecedented housing affordability crisis, the RHNA 
can be a tool to increase opportunity and ensure equity and affordability. No city alone can 
address this crisis for the entire Bay Area; all of us have a stake.

Recent fires in Northern California have made the impacts of climate change real. Drier 
temperatures have made our communities more susceptible to fire risk. Berkeley in 
particular is along the urban-wildland interface and has seen devastating fires in its history. 
Preparing for and mitigating the risk of wildfire is one of many climate adaptation 
strategies we must prioritize. We also know that shoreline communities face the growing 
risk of rising sea levels. This will affect wetlands, park lands, highways and even whole city 
blocks. Regional planning must account for the threat of sea level rise and investments 
made in green and grey infrastructure to help reduce the risk of flooding. 

The Bay Area and California are leading in climate change research and policy. As the new 
President of ABAG, Mayor Arreguín will make climate change a priority for our regional 
planning agency. This means recognizing the climate emergency that exists, and 
coordinating planning and policy across multiple regional agencies. It also involves policies 
and funding to decarbonize our buildings, transportation and promote local renewable 
energy infrastructure in our region. 

In addition, homelessness is one of the most visible problems facing our region. While 
addressing the housing affordability crisis and preventing displacement are key 
homelessness prevention strategies, the growth of unsheltered homelessness is alarming. 
Despite the efforts of many cities, including Berkeley, to provide emergency shelter, 
permanent housing and social services, policy development and programs remain siloed. 
Some cities are leading the way, and others have done very little, or done more harm 
through laws pushing homeless out of their borders. Homelessness is a regional challenge 
and it requires a regional approach. As ABAG President, Mayor Arreguín plans to convene a 
regional conversation with elected officials and service providers to coordinate our 
response to homelessness. 

The Bay Area is one of the most beautiful places in the world. The diversity of our residents 
and landscapes makes it an ideal location. Yet we know we face significant challenges that 
are proven to be a barrier for many to live here. With the Bay Area’s population growing by 
1% per year, we must make sure that we have the infrastructure and resources needed to 
keep up with our increasing population. This is what makes ABAG so important. It focuses 
on the needs of the region while working with local communities to help them achieve our 

Page 3 of 4

109



4

collective goals.

CONTACT
Mayor Jesse Arreguín
mayor@cityofberkeley.info | 510-981-7100

Page 4 of 4

110



 
 
 
 

Upcoming Worksessions – start time is 6:00 p.m. unless otherwise noted 

Scheduled Dates  

March 17 
1. CIP Update (PRW and Public Works) 
2. Measure T1 Update 

May 5 
1. Budget Update 
2. Crime Report 

June 23 
1. Climate Action Plan/Resiliency Update 
2. Digital Strategic Plan/FUND$ Replacement/Website Update 

July 21 
1.  
2.  

Sept. 29 
1. 
2. 

Oct. 20 
1. Update: Berkeley’s 2020 Vision 
2. BMASP/Berkeley Pier-WETA Ferry 

         

 

 

Unscheduled Workshops 
1.  Cannabis Health Considerations 
2.  Vision 2050 
 

Unscheduled Presentations (City Manager) 

1. Systems Realignment 

111

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
05



 
 
 

 
 

 City Council Referrals to the Agenda Committee and Unfinished Business for 
Scheduling 

1. 68. Revisions to Ordinance No. 7,521--N.S. in the Berkeley Municipal Code to increase 
compliance with the city’s short-term rental ordinance (Referred from the July 24, 2018 agenda.  
Agenda Committee to revisit in April 2019.) March 18, 2019 Action: Item to be agendized at future 
Agenda and Rules Committee Meeting pending scheduling confirmation from City Manager. 
From: Councilmember Worthington 
Recommendation: Refer the City Manager to look into adopting revisions to Ordinance No. 7,521--N.S 
by modeling after the Home-Sharing Ordinance of the City of Santa Monica and the Residential Unit 
Conversion Ordinance of the City of San Francisco in order to increase compliance with city regulations 
on short-term rentals of unlicensed properties. 
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

2. 36. Referral Response: Issue a Request for Information to Explore Grant Writing Services from 
Specialized Municipal Grant-Writing Firms, and Report Back to Council (Referred from the October 
15, 2019 agenda) 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, 981-7300 
Note: Will be considered in FY 2021 Budget Process 

3. 47. Amending Chapter 19.32 of the Berkeley Municipal Code to Require Kitchen Exhaust Hood 
Ventilation in Residential and Condominium Units Prior to Execution of a Contract for Sale or 
Close of Escrow (Reviewed by Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment, and 
Sustainability Committee) (Referred from the January 21, 2020 agenda) 
From: Councilmember Harrison 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt an ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) 19.32 to require kitchen exhaust 
ventilation in residential and condominium units prior to execution of a contract for sale or close of 
escrow. 
2. Refer to the City Manager to develop a process for informing owners and tenants of the proper use of 
exhaust hoods.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140 
Note: Referred to Agenda & Rules for future scheduling. 

112

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
06



Address
Board/

Commission

Appeal Period 

Ends 

 Determination 

on Appeal 

Submitted

Public

Hearing

NOD – Notices of Decision
2336 Eighth St (construct addition to existing duplex) ZAB 2/12/2020

2212 Ashby Ave (construct addition to existing duplex) ZAB 2/12/2020

910 Ashby Ave (demolish commercial building) ZAB 2/12/2020

1872 Allston Way (construct single-family dwelling) ZAB 2/12/2020

Public Hearings Scheduled
2422 Fifth St (construct mixed-use building) ZAB 2/25/2020

1581 Le Roy Ave (convert vacant elementary school property) ZAB 2/25/2020

1581 Le Roy Ave (convert vacant elementary school property) LPC 2/25/2020

0 Euclid Ave - Berryman Reservoir (denial of 4G telecom facility) ZAB TBD

Remanded to ZAB or LPC
1155-73 Hearst Ave (develop two parcels) ZAB

90-Day Deadline: May 19, 2019

Notes

1/30/2020

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT
WORKING CALENDAR FOR SCHEDULING LAND USE MATTERS

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL

113

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
07



114



 
[First Last name] 
Councilmember District [District No.] 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704    Tel: 510.981.XXXX    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510.981.XXXX 
E-Mail: xxxxx@CityofBerkeley.info 

 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL REVISED  
AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 2 
 
 
Meeting Date:   February 4, 2020 
 
Item Number:   2 
 
Item Description:   Statement on Item 2 - Amendments to the Berkeley Election  

Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC  
Chapter 2.12 

 
Submitted by:  Councilmember Hahn 
 
This item seeks to outlaw Officeholder Accounts in Berkeley. I would like to offer an 
alternative: to allow Officeholder Accounts but establish regulations to limit them in ways that 
reflect Berkeley’s limitations on campaign donations and consider narrowing the uses for 
which Officeholder Account funds can be used.   
 
The action I advocate for Council to take is to refer a discussion of Officeholder accounts to 
the Agenda and Rules Committee, to consider a reasonable set of limitations and rules for 
such accounts and bring back recommendations to the full Council, for the Council to 
consider referring to the Fair Campaign Practices Committee. 
 
 

 

115

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
08



 
ACTION CALENDAR 

February 4, 2020 

 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From:  Vice Mayor Sophie Hahn  

Subject: Statement on Item 2 - Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to 

prohibit Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

This item seeks to outlaw Officeholder Accounts in Berkeley. I would like to offer an alternative: 

to allow Officeholder Accounts but establish regulations to limit them in ways that reflect 

Berkeley’s limitations on campaign donations and consider narrowing the uses for which 

Officeholder Account funds can be used.   

 

The action I advocate for Council to take is to refer a discussion of Officeholder accounts to the 

Agenda and Rules Committee, to consider a reasonable set of limitations and rules for such 

accounts and bring back recommendations to the full Council, for the Council to consider 

referring to the Fair Campaign Practices Committee. 

 

Officeholder accounts are accounts an elected official can open, and raise funds for, to pay for 

expenses related to the office they hold.1 They are not campaign accounts, and cannot be used 

for campaign purposes. The types of expenses Officeholder Accounts can be used for include 

research, conferences, events attended in the performance of government duties, printed 

newsletters, office supplies, travel related to official duties, etc. Cities can place limits on 

Officeholder Accounts, as Oakland has done.2 Officeholder Accounts must be registered as 

official “Committees” and adhere to strict public reporting requirements, like campaign 

accounts. They provide full transparency to the public about sources and uses of funds. 

 

The FCPC bases its recommendation to prohibit Officeholder Accounts on arguments about 

“equity” and potential “corruption” in elections. The report refers repeatedly to “challengers” and 

“incumbents,” suggesting that Officeholder Accounts are vehicles for unfairness in the election 

context. 

 

I believe that the FCPC’s recommendations reflect a misunderstanding of the purpose and uses 

of Officeholder Accounts, equating them with campaign accounts and suggesting that they 

create an imbalance between community members who apparently have already decided to run 

against an incumbent (so-called “challengers”) and elected officials who are presumed to be 

                                                
1 http://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/NS-
Documents/LegalDiv/Regulations/Index/Chapter5/18531.62.pdf 
2 http://www2.oaklandnet.com/w/OAK052051  

116

http://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/NS-Documents/LegalDiv/Regulations/Index/Chapter5/18531.62.pdf
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/NS-Documents/LegalDiv/Regulations/Index/Chapter5/18531.62.pdf
http://www2.oaklandnet.com/w/OAK052051


always running for office. The recommendations do not take into account some important 

framing: the question of what funds are otherwise available to pay for Officeholder-type 

expenses for Officeholders or members of the public. Contrary to the conclusions of the FCPC, I 

believe Officeholder accounts are an important vehicle to redress a significant disadvantage for 

elected officials, whose ability to exercise free speech in the community and participate in 

conferences and events related to their profession is constrained by virtue of holding public 

office, as compared to community members, whose speech rights are unrestricted in any 

manner whatsoever, and who can raise money to use for whatever purposes they desire. 

 

Outlawing Officeholder Accounts is also posited as a means to create equity between more and 

less wealthy Officeholders, on the theory that less affluent Officeholders will have less access to 

fundraising for Officeholder Accounts than more affluent Officeholders.  Because there are no 

prohibition on using personal funds for many of the purposes for which Officeholder Account 

funds can be used, prohibiting Officeholder Accounts I believe has the opposite effect; it leaves 

more affluent Officeholders with the ability to pay for Officeholder expenses from personal 

funds, without providing an avenue for less affluent Officeholders, who may not have available 

personal funds, to raise money from their supporters to pay for such Officeholder expenses. 

 

The question of whether Officeholder Accounts should be allowed in Berkeley plays out in the 

context of a number of rules and realities that are important to framing any analysis.   

 

First, by State Law, elected officials are prohibited from using public funds for a variety of 

communications that many constituents nevertheless expect. For example, an elected official 

may not use public funds to send a mailing announcing municipal information to constituents, 

“such as a newsletter or brochure, […] delivered, by any means […] to a person’s residence, 

place of employment or business, or post office box.”3 Nor may an elected official mail an item 

using public funds that features a reference to the elected official affiliated with their public 

position.4  Note that Electronic newsletters are not covered by these rules, and can and do 

include all of these features, even if the newsletter service is paid for by the public entity. That 

said, while technically not required, many elected officials prefer to use email newsletter 

distribution services (Constant Contact, MailChimp, Nationbuilder, etc.) paid for with personal 

(or “Officeholder”) funds, to operate in the spirit of the original rules against using public funds 

for communications that include a photo of, or references to, the elected official.   

 

Without the ability to raise funds for an Officeholder Account, for an elected official to send a 

paper newsletter to constituents or to use an email newsletter service that is not paid for with 

public funds, they must use personal funds. A printed newsletter mailed to 5-6,000 households 

(a typical number of households in a Berkeley City Council District) can easily cost $5,000+, and 

an electronic mail service subscription typically costs $10 (for the most basic service) to $45 per 

month, a cost of $120.00 to over $500 per year - in personal funds.   

                                                
3 http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-
funds/campaign-related-communications.html 
4 http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-
funds/campaign-related-communications.html 

117

http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html


 

Second, Berkeley City Councilmembers and the Mayor of Berkeley are not paid enough for 

there to be any reasonable expectation that personal funds should be used for these types of 

expenses.5  For many Councilmembers and/or the Mayor, work hours are full time - or more - 

and there is no other source of income.  

  

Finally, and most importantly, local elected officials are restricted from accepting money or gifts. 

An elected official cannot under any circumstances raise money to pay for Officeholder 

expenses such as printed communications, email newsletter services, travel and admission to 

industry conferences for which the elected official is not an official delegate (e.g., conferences 

on City Planning, Green Cities, Municipal Finance, etc.), and other expenses related to holding 

office that are not covered by public funds. Again, without the possibility of an Officeholder 

Account, an elected official generally must use personal funds for these expenses, allowing 

more affluent elected officials to participate while placing a hardship or in some cases a 

prohibition on the ability of less affluent elected officials to undertake these Officeholder-type 

activities - which support expected communications with constituents and participation in 

industry activities that improve the elected official’s effectiveness.   

 

The elected official’s inability to raise funds from others must be contrasted with the ability of a 

community member - a potential “challenger” who has not yet declared themselves to be an 

actual candidate - or perhaps a neighborhood association, business or corporation (Chevron, for 

example) - to engage in similar activities. Nothing restricts any community member or 

organization from using their own funds - or funds obtained from anyone - a wealthy friend, a 

corporation, a local business, a community organization or their neighbors - for any purpose 

whatsoever.   

 

Someone who doesn’t like the job an elected official is doing could raise money from family or 

connections anywhere in the community - or the world - and mail a letter to every person in the 

District or City criticizing the elected official, or buy up every billboard or banner ad on Facebook 

or Berkeleyside to broadcast their point of view.  By contrast, the elected official, without access 

to an Officeholder Account, could only use personal funds to “speak” with their own printed 

letter, billboard or advertisement. Community members (including future “challengers”) can also 

attend any and all conferences they want, engage in travel to visit interesting cities and projects 

that might inform their thoughts on how a city should be run, and pay for those things with 

money raised from friends, colleagues, businesses, corporations, foreign governments - 

anyone. They are private citizens with full first amendment rights and have no limitations, no 

reporting requirements, no requirements of transparency or accountability whatsoever. 

 

The imbalance is significant. Outside of the campaign setting, where all declared candidates 

can raise funds and must abide by the same rules of spending and communications, elected 
officials cannot raise money for any expenses whatsoever, from any source, while community 

                                                
5 Councilmembers receive annual compensation of approximately $36,000, while the Mayor receives 
annual compensation of approximately $55,000.5   

118



members, including organizations and private companies, can raise as much money as they 
want from any sources, and use that money for anything they choose.   
 

Without the ability to establish and fund an Officeholder Account, the only option an elected 

official has is to use personal funds, which exacerbates the potential imbalance between elected 

officials with more and less personal funds to spend.  Elected officials work within a highly 

regulated system, which can limit their ability to “speak” and engage in other activities members 

of the public are able to undertake without restriction. Officeholder Accounts restore some 

flexibility by allowing elected officials to raise money for expenses related to holding office, so 

long as the sources and uses of those funds is made transparent.   

 

By allowing Officeholder Accounts and regulating them, Berkeley can place limits on amounts 

that can be raised, and on the individuals/entities from whom funds can be accepted, similar (or 

identical) to the limits Berkeley places on sources of campaign funds. Similarly, Berkeley can 

restrict uses of funds beyond the State’s restrictions, to ensure funds are not used for things like 

family members’ travel, as is currently allowed by the State. Oakland has taken this approach, 

and has a set of Officeholder Account regulations that provide a good starting point for Berkeley 

to consider.6      

 

I respectfully ask for a vote to send the question of potential allowance for, and regulation of, 

Officeholder Accounts to the Agenda and Rules Committee for further consideration. 

 

CONTACT: Sophie Hahn, District 5: (510) 981-7150 

 

                                                
6 http://www2.oaklandnet.com/w/OAK052051 

119



 
Fair Campaign Practices Commission 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6998 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: sharvey@cityof berkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/ 

 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL  
AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 2  
 
 
Meeting Date:   February 4, 2020 
 
Item Number:   2 
 
Item Description:   Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit 
Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 
 
Submitted by:  Samuel Harvey; Deputy City Attorney / Secretary, Fair 
Campaign Practices Commission 
 
Attachment 4 to the report (“Memorandum signed by City Attorney Manuela 
Albuquerque”) included an attachment which was erroneously omitted from the 
Council item.  Attached is Attachment 4 (for context) along with the additional pages 
which should be included to appear as pages 16 -17 of the item.   
 
 

 

120

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


Page 14 of 16

121



Page 15 of 16

122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



Fair Campaign Practices Commission
PUBLIC HEARING
February 4, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission

Submitted by: Dean Metzger, Chairperson, Fair Campaign Practices Commission

Subject: Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit 
Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12

RECOMMENDATION
Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first reading of an ordinance 
amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 18531.62. Elected State Officeholder 
Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission).

SUMMARY
Contributions to and expenditures from Officeholder Accounts provide an unfair 
advantage to incumbents. They also increase the reliance on private campaign 
contributions and risk increasing the perception of corruption. Amending the Berkeley 
Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder Accounts will help to level the playing field 
in municipal elections, which was also a goal of the Fair Elections Act of 2016.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The proposed amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act (BERA) were adopted 
by the Fair Campaign Practices Commission (FCPC) at its regular meeting of 
November 21, 2019.

Action: M/S/C (Smith/Saver) to adopt the proposed amendments to BERA related to 
Officeholder Accounts.
Vote: Ayes: Metzger, Ching, Saver, Blome, McLean, Tsang, Smith; Noes: none; 
Abstain: none; Absent: O’Donnell (excused).

Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 2.12.051, BERA may be amended by the 
“double green light” process. This process requires that the FCPC adopt the 
amendments by a two-thirds vote, and the City Council hold a public hearing and adopt 
the amendments by a two-thirds vote.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 • Tel: (510) 981-7000 • TDD: (510) 981-6903 • Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

Page 1 of 16

171

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts PUBLIC HEARING

February 4, 2020

Page 2

BACKGROUND
The Fair Campaign Practices Commission has supported creating the circumstances in 
which the incumbent and challengers during an election play on as level a playing field 
as possible and reducing the influence of private campaign contributions. For instance, 
the Berkeley Fair Elections Act of 2016, which was passed by voters and recommended 
to Council by the Commission, included the following express purposes:

• Eliminate the danger of actual corruption of Berkeley officials caused by 
the private financing of campaigns.

• Help reduce the influence of private campaign contributions on Berkeley 
government.

• Reduce the impact of wealth as a determinant of whether a person 
becomes a candidate.

(Section 2.12.490(B)-(D).)

A recent inquiry to the Commission Secretary regarding the regulation of Officeholder 
Accounts resulted in a request from a Commissioner to have discussion of these 
accounts placed on the May 16, 2019 agenda for possible action. The following motion 
was made and passed at that meeting:

Motion to request staff work with Commissioner Smith to bring to a future 
meeting background information and a proposal to eliminate officeholder 
accounts (M/S/C: O’Donnell/Blome; Ayes: Blome, Ching, McLean, Metzger, 
O’Donnell, Saver, Smith, Tsui; Noes: None; Abstain: None; Absent: Harper 
(excused)).

Definition of an Officeholder Account

Under state law, an “officeholder account” refers to the funds held in a single bank 
account at a financial institution in the State of California separate from any other bank 
account held by the officeholder and that are used for “paying expenses associated with 
holding public office.” Officeholder Account funds cannot be used to pay “campaign 
expenses.” This definition is drawn from state law applicable to statewide elected 
officials: Government Code section 85316 (Attachment 2), and the accompanying 
regulation by the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) codified at Title 2, Division 
6, of the California Code of Regulations, Section 18531.62 (Attachment 3).

Contributions to or expenditures from an Officeholder Account are not subject to 
BERA’s reporting requirements.  (The FPPC still requires the reporting of activity 
relating to Officeholder Accounts, which is available to view on Berkeley’s Public Access 
Portal.)  If, however, a complaint is filed that an Officeholder Account is used for

Page 2 of 16

172



Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts PUBLIC HEARING

February 4, 2020

Page 3

campaign contributions or to pay “campaign expenses,” BERA can be used to respond 
to the complaint. The legal arguments for these statements are contained in a 
memorandum signed by City Attorney Manuela Albuquerque to Aide to Mayor Shirley 
Dean, Barbara Gilbert, dated December 28, 1999 and a December 9, 1991 
memorandum by Secretary and Staff Counsel to the FCPC, Sarah Reynoso, that is 
attached to the December 28, 1999 memo. (Attachment 4.) Because the BERA 
provisions relied on in these memoranda have not been amended, and because no 
other BERA provisions have been added to regulate officeholder accounts, the 
memoranda’s conclusions remain valid and are still controlling guidance.

Contributions to Officeholder Accounts

Funds raised for Officeholder Accounts in Berkeley are not subject to any limitations, 
either from the FPPC or BERA. Neither is there a limit on the total amount the 
Officeholder Account fund may receive in contributions per year. Contributions to an 
elected official’s Officeholder Account may put that contributor in a more favorable light 
with the elected official than might otherwise be the case.

Expenditures from Officeholder Accounts

Except for the restriction that Officeholder Account funds cannot be used for “campaign 
expenses,” BERA does not restrict how funds from Officeholder Accounts can be used.

There are a number of permissible expenditures from Officeholder Accounts that could 
put an elected official in a favorable light with voters that are not available to a 
challenger for that office.  A donation to a nonprofit organization, although technically 
not a “campaign expense,” would be seen favorably by those receiving the funds as well 
as individuals favorably disposed to the nonprofit organization receiving the funds. An 
individual running against this incumbent would have to draw on their own resources to 
make contributions to nonprofit organizations.

As long as political campaigns are not included, newsletters mailed to constituents 
related to events, information, or an officeholder’s position on matters before the 
Council are a permissible Officeholder Account expenditure. This keeps the 
incumbent’s name in front of the voter in a way unavailable to a challenger unless they 
pay for a newsletter and its distribution from their own resources.

Expenditures from Officeholder Account funds for flowers and other expressions of 
condolences, congratulations, or appreciation, while technically not “campaign 
expenses,” also increase the probability that the recipient will be favorably predisposed 
toward the elected official as a candidate for reelection or election to another office.
Again, a challenger would have to draw on their own resources to express condolences, 
congratulations, or appreciation to their potential supporters.

Page 3 of 16

173



Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts PUBLIC HEARING

February 4, 2020

Page 4

Further, officeholder accounts can be used to pay for a broad range of office expenses, 
such as meals, travel, parking tickets, or contributions to other candidates or political 
parties.1  Eliminating officeholder accounts would reduce reliance on and the influence 
of private contributions for these expenditures.

Recommendation

To make elections more equitable between challengers and incumbent and for the 
reasons given above, the Fair Campaign Practices Commission recommends 
prohibiting Officeholder Accounts.

Berkeley will not be the first to prohibit Officeholder Accounts. The San Jose Municipal 
Code was amended to prohibit officeholder accounts in January 2008.  (Chapter 12.06
– ELECTIONS, San Jose, CA Code of Ordinances, p. 10)

Part 8 - OFFICEHOLDER ACCOUNTS
12.06.810 - Officeholder account prohibited.

No city officeholder, or any person or committee on behalf of a city 
officeholder may establish an officeholder account or an account established 
under the Political Reform Act, California Government Code Section 8100 et seq. 
as amended, for the solicitation or expenditure of officeholder funds. Nothing in 
this section shall prohibit an officeholder from spending personal funds on official 
or related business activities.

The following additions to BERA are proposed:

2.12.157 Officeholder Account

“Officeholder Account” means any bank account maintained by an elected officer or by 
any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, and whose funds are used for 
expenses associated with holding office and not for direct campaign purposes.

2.12.441 Officeholder account prohibited

A. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may establish an officeholder account.

B. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may use contributions, as defined in 2.12.100, for expenses associated with 
holding office.

1 Under state law applicable to state elected officials, officeholders may use campaign contributions for 
“expenses that are associated with holding office.” (Govt. Code, § 89510.) To qualify, expenditures must 
be “reasonably related to a legislative or governmental purpose.” (Id., § 89512.) “Expenditures which 
confer a substantial personal benefit shall be directly related to a political, legislative, or governmental 
purpose.” (Ibid.)

Page 4 of 16

174



Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts PUBLIC HEARING

January 21, 2020

C. Anyone holding an active Officeholder Account on the date this change to 
BERA is adopted on a second reading by the City Council has one year from 
that date to terminate their Officeholder Account, in accordance with FPPC 
guidelines.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identified environmental effects related to the recommendation in this 
report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
This proposed change to BERA will help to level the playing field between challengers 
and the incumbent running for elective office.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
A Subcommittee was formed to consider the options of (1) amending the Berkeley 
Elections Reform Act, BMC Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts, (2) 
amending BERA to mitigate possible advantages incumbents with an Officeholder 
Accounts have over challengers, or (3) doing nothing with regard to Officeholder 
Accounts. The four members of the Subcommittee recommended unanimously to the 
full Commission to amend the Berkeley Elections Reform Act, BMC Chapter 2.12, to 
prohibit Officeholder Accounts.

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position on the content and recommendations of this report.

CONTACT PERSON
Dean Metzger, Chair, Fair Campaign Practices Commission. 981-6998

Attachments:
1: Proposed Ordinance
2: Government Code section 85316
3: Section 18531.62 (Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts), Regulations of the 
Fair Political Practices Commission, Title 2, Division 6, California Code of Regulations 
4: Memorandum signed by City Attorney Manuela Albuquerque to Aide to Mayor 
Shirley Dean, Barbara Gilbert (including attached memorandum signed by Secretary 
and Staff Counsel to the FCPC, Sarah Reynoso, to the FCPC)

Page 5

Page 5 of 16

175



ORDINANCE NO. ##,###-N.S.

OFFICEHOLDER ACCOUNT PROHIBITED; AMENDING BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE 
CHAPTER 2.12

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1.  That Berkeley Municipal Code section 2.12.157 is added to read as follows:

BMC 2.12.157 Officeholder account

“Officeholder Account” means any bank account maintained by an elected officer or by 
any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, and whose funds are used for 
expenses associated with holding office and not for direct campaign purposes.

Section 2.  That Berkeley Municipal Code section 2.12.441 is added to read as follows:

BMC 2.12.441 Officeholder account prohibited

A. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may establish an officeholder account.

B. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may use contributions, as defined in 2.12.100, for expenses associated with 
holding office.

C. This provision does not affect a candidate’s ability to establish a legal defense 
fund or the requirements for such a fund, as set forth in the Political Reform 
Act or by regulation.

D. Any active Officeholder Account on the date this change to BERA is adopted 
on a second reading by the City Council has one year from that date to 
terminate their Officeholder Account.

Section 3. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 
Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be 
filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation

Page 6 of 16

176



10/8/2019 Law section

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=85316. 1/1

Code: Select Code Section: Search

TITLE 9. POLITICAL REFORM [81000 - 91014]  ( Title 9 added June 4, 1974, by initiative Proposition 9. )
CHAPTER 5. Limitations on Contributions [85100 - 85802]  ( Chapter 5 added June 7, 1988, by initiative Proposition 73. )

85316.  

 Up^  << Previous     Next >> cross-reference chaptered bills PDF | Add To My Favorites
Search Phrase: Highlight

GOVERNMENT CODE - GOV
 

ARTICLE 3. Contribution Limitations [85300 - 85321]  ( Article 3 added June 7, 1988, by initiative Proposition 73. )

(a) Except as provided in subdivision (b), a contribution for an election may be accepted by a candidate for
elective state office after the date of the election only to the extent that the contribution does not exceed net debts
outstanding from the election, and the contribution does not otherwise exceed the applicable contribution limit for
that election.

(b) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), an elected state officer may accept contributions after the date of the election
for the purpose of paying expenses associated with holding the office provided that the contributions are not
expended for any contribution to any state or local committee. Contributions received pursuant to this subdivision
shall be deposited into a bank account established solely for the purposes specified in this subdivision.

(1) No person shall make, and no elected state officer shall receive from a person, a contribution pursuant to this
subdivision totaling more than the following amounts per calendar year:

(A) Three thousand dollars ($3,000) in the case of an elected state officer of the Assembly or Senate.

(B) Five thousand dollars ($5,000) in the case of a statewide elected state officer other than the Governor.

(C) Twenty thousand dollars ($20,000) in the case of the Governor.

(2) No elected state officer shall receive contributions pursuant to paragraph (1) that, in the aggregate, total more
than the following amounts per calendar year:

(A) Fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) in the case of an elected state officer of the Assembly or Senate.

(B) One hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) in the case of a statewide elected state officer other than the
Governor.

(C) Two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) in the case of the Governor.

(3) Any contribution received pursuant to this subdivision shall be deemed to be a contribution to that candidate for
election to any state office that he or she may seek during the term of office to which he or she is currently elected,
including, but not limited to, reelection to the office he or she currently holds, and shall be subject to any applicable
contribution limit provided in this title. If a contribution received pursuant to this subdivision exceeds the allowable
contribution limit for the office sought, the candidate shall return the amount exceeding the limit to the contributor
on a basis to be determined by the Commission. None of the expenditures made by elected state officers pursuant
to this subdivision shall be subject to the voluntary expenditure limitations in Section 85400.

(4) The commission shall adjust the calendar year contribution limitations and aggregate contribution limitations
set forth in this subdivision in January of every odd-numbered year to reflect any increase or decrease in the
Consumer Price Index. Those adjustments shall be rounded to the nearest one hundred dollars ($100).

(Amended by Stats. 2007, Ch. 130, Sec. 149. Effective January 1, 2008. Note: This section was added by Stats.
2000, Ch. 102, and approved in Prop. 34 on Nov. 7, 2000.)

Home Bill Information California Law Publications Other Resources My Subscriptions My Favorites

Page 7 of 16

177



Page 8 of 16

178



Page 9 of 16

179



Page 10 of 16

180



Page 11 of 16

181



Page 12 of 16

182



Page 13 of 16

183



Page 14 of 16

184



Page 15 of 16

185



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL

AMENDMENTS TO THE BERKELEY ELECTION REFORM ACT

The Fair Campaign Practices Commission is proposing amendments to the Berkeley 
Election Reform Act related to the prohibition of officeholder accounts.

The hearing will be held on, February 4, 2020, at 4:00 p.m. in the School District Board 
Room, 1231 Addison Street.

A copy of the agenda material for this hearing will be available on the City’s website at 
www.CityofBerkeley.info as of January 30, 2020.

For further information, please contact Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary at 981- 
6998.

Written comments should be mailed or delivered directly to the City Clerk, 2180 Milvia 
Street, Berkeley, CA 94704, in order to ensure delivery to all Councilmembers and 
inclusion in the agenda packet.

Communications to the Berkeley City Council are public record and will become part of 
the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please 
note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not 
required, but if included in any communication to the City Council, will become 
part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact 
information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
or in person to the City Clerk.  If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please 
contact the City Clerk at 981-6900 or clerk@cityofberkeley.info for further information.

Published: January 24, 2020 – The Berkeley Voice
Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 2.12.051

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
I hereby certify that the Notice for this Public Hearing of the Berkeley City Council was 
posted at the display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek 
Building, 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on 
January 30, 2020.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Page 16 of 16

186

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/
mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info


Tuesday, February 4, 2020 ANNOTATED AGENDA Page 1 

 
AN N O T AT E D  AG E N D A  

S PE CI AL  M EET I NG O F T HE 

B E R K E LE Y C I T Y  C O U N CI L  
 

 
 

Tuesday, February 4, 2020 

4:00 P.M. 

SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 

Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – CHERYL DAVILA  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call: 4:14 p.m. 

Present: Kesarwani, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Arreguin 

Absent: Droste 

Councilmember Droste present at 4:16 p.m. 
 

Action Calendar – Public Hearing  

 

1. 
 

Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act; Amending BMC Chapter 
2.12 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first 
reading of an ordinance amending the Berkeley Elections Reform Act, BMC 
Chapter 2.12, regarding the public financing program. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 
 
Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 0 speakers. 
M/S/C (Droste/Harrison) to close the public hearing. 
Vote: All Ayes. 

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Droste) to adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,691–
N.S.  Second reading scheduled for February 25, 2020. 
Vote: All Ayes. 

 

187

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
09



Action Calendar – Public Hearings 

 

Tuesday, February 4, 2020 ANNOTATED AGENDA Page 2 

2. 
 

Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder 
Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first 
reading of an ordinance amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 
18531.62. Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair 
Political Practices Commission). 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 
 
Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 0 speakers. 
M/S/C (Droste/Wengraf) to close the public hearing. 
Vote: All Ayes. 
 
Action: M/S/C (Hahn/Wengraf) to refer a discussion of Officeholder Accounts and 
Council District (D-13) accounts to the Agenda and Rules Committee, to consider a 
reasonable set of limitations and rules for such accounts and bring back 
recommendations to the full Council, for the Council to consider referring to the Fair 
Campaign Practices Committee. 
Vote: Ayes – Kesarwani, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, 
Arreguin; Noes – Davila. 

Action Calendar – Old Business  

 

3. 
 

City Council Rules of Procedure and Order Revisions (Reviewed by the Agenda 
& Rules Committee) (Continued from January 21, 2020. Item contains revised and 
supplemental material.) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution revising the City Council Rules of Procedure 
and Order to integrate the previously adopted regulations for policy committees and 
make associated changes to other sections; update outdated references and 
practices; conform to the Open Government Ordinance; make other technical 
corrections; and rescinding any preceding amendatory resolutions.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900 
Action: 1 speaker.  M/S/C (Harrison/Hahn) to adopt Resolution No. 69,283–N.S. as 
amended in the supplemental material from Councilmember Hahn originally 
submitted on 12/3/19, retain original proposed language on commission 
membership, and to direct the City Manager to make any changes necessary to 
allow the Agenda & Rules Committee to refer items from Boards and Commissions 
to a policy committee. 
Vote: Ayes – Kesarwani, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, 
Arreguin; Noes – Davila. 

 
 

 

188



Action Calendar – New Business 

 

Tuesday, February 4, 2020 ANNOTATED AGENDA Page 3 

4. 
 

Change to the Council Rules and Procedures: Public access to changing 
status of a Consent Calendar Item 
From: Open Government Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution changing and updating the “Council Rules 
and Procedures” to give the public a procedure for moving items on the consent 
calendar to the Action Calendar. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 
 
Action: 2 speakers.  M/S/Failed (Harrison/Bartlett) to adopt the commission 
recommendation amended to increase 5 persons to 10 persons. 
Vote: Ayes – Davila, Bartlett, Harrison; Noes – Kesarwani, Hahn, Wengraf, 
Robinson, Droste, Arreguin. 
 
Action: M/S/Carried (Arreguin/Robinson) to take no action on the commission 
recommendation. 
Vote: Ayes – Kesarwani, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin; Noes – 
Davila; Abstain – Bartlett, Harrison. 

 
5. 
 

Change to the Council Rules and Procedures: Public Comment on Council 
Agenda Action Items 
From: Open Government Commission 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution changing and updating the “Council Rules 
and Procedures” to change the public comment section that would allow a more 
comprehensible discussion between the Council and the public. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 
Action: 3 speakers.  M/S/C (Hahn/Kesarwani) to take no action and acknowledge 
the Mayor’s option to implement the practice as needed. 
Vote: Ayes – Kesarwani, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, 
Arreguin; Noes – None; Abstain – Davila. 

 
6. 
 

Utilize Substantial Portion of Cannabis Tax Proceeds to Fund Subsidies 
under 1000 Person Plan 
From: Homeless Commission 
Recommendation: Utilize Substantial Portion of Cannabis Tax Proceeds to Fund 
Subsidies under 1000 Person Plan 
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Brittany Carnegie, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-5400 
Action: 0 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Kesarwani) to take no action on the 
commission recommendation and refer the issue of using cannabis tax revenue for 
homeless services to the Budget and Finance Committee. 
Vote: Ayes – Kesarwani, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, 
Arreguin; Noes – Davila. 

 

 

 

189



 

Tuesday, February 4, 2020 ANNOTATED AGENDA Page 4 

Adjournment 

Action: M/S/C (Robinson/Wengraf) to adjourn the meeting. 
Vote: All Ayes. 

 Adjourned at 6:41 p.m. 
 

Communications 

 None 

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1 

 None 

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2 

Item #2: Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder 
Accounts: Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 

1. Supplemental material, submitted by the Attorney’s Office 
2. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Hahn 

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3 

Item #3: City Council Rules of Procedure and Order Revisions 
3. Presentation, submitted by the City Clerk 
 

Item #4: Utilize Substantial Portion of Cannabis Tax Proceeds to Fund Subsidies 
under 1000 Person Plan 

4. Carole Marasovic, on behalf of the Homeless Commission 

 

 

190



 

  
 
 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 2 

 
 

Meeting Date:   December 3, 2019 

 

Item Number:   23 

 

Item Description:   City Council Rules of Procedure and Order Revisions 

 

Submitted by:  Councilmember Hahn 

 

 

This submission has the same effect as the previous submission by Councilmember Hahn, 

with Hahn’s suggested edits now highlighted in yellow, and therefore more clearly 

discernable.  Some additional technical changes were added on this version, to ensure new 

terms are reflected throughout the documents.  All suggested changes from the Clerk’s 

Supplemental 1 submission are shown in the attached document, with Councilmember 

Hahn’s suggested additional changes shown in tracked changes and highlighted in yellow.  

 

The proposed edit on Page 8 allows flexibility for Ad Hoc Subcommittees to consult the 

parties they deem appropriate to their assigned task, rather than be required to consult with 

all parties/entities listed. 

 

All other edits in the document are proposed to allow for multiple Authors of an item to be 

listed as such, where the current proposal allows for only one Author to be listed on any item. 

Authors are defined as having actual authorship of an item, while Co-Sponsors are defined as 

strong supporters who are not Authors. Up to 4 Authors and Co-Sponsors are allowed per 

item, in any combination that includes at least one Author. The first Author listed is defined as 

the Primary Author and is the sole contact for the City Manager with respect to the item, 

clarifying current practice.   

 

Supplemental II 

ITEM 23 

DECEMBER 3, 2019 

CM Hahn 

 

191



 

1 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

 

 

 

 

The Berkeley City Council 
Rules of Procedure and Order 

 

Adopted by Resolution No. ##,###–N.S. 
Effective November 12, 2019 

 

  

192



Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

Table of Contents 

2 
  G:\CLERK\MASTER.DOC\Council Rules of Procedure\2019-January Readoption\Council Rules of Procedure.doc 

City of Berkeley 

I. DUTIES ............................................................................................................... 4 

A. Duties of Mayor .................................................................................................. 4 
B. Duties of Councilmembers ................................................................................. 4 
C. Motions to be Stated by Chair ........................................................................... 4 
D. Decorum by Councilmembers............................................................................ 4 
E. Voting Disqualification ........................................................................................ 4 
F. Requests for Technical Assistance and/or Reports .......................................... 5 
G. City Council Policy for Naming and Renaming Public Facilities ....................... 5 

II. MEETINGS ......................................................................................................... 6 
A.  Call to Order - Presiding Officer ........................................................................ 6 
B.  Roll Call ............................................................................................................. 6 
C.  Quorum Call ...................................................................................................... 6 
D.  Council Meeting Schedule ................................................................................ 6 
E. Adjournment ....................................................................................................... 7 
G. City Council Recess Periods .............................................................................. 7 
H. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag ........................................................................ 8 
I. Ad Hoc Subcommittees ...................................................................................... 8 

III. AGENDA .......................................................................................................... 10 
A. Declaration of Policy......................................................................................... 10 
B. Definitions ......................................................................................................... 10 
C. Procedure for Bringing Matters Before City Council ....................................... 12 
D. Packet Preparation and Posting ...................................................................... 18 
E. Agenda Sequence and Order of Business ...................................................... 19 
F. Closed Session Documents ............................................................................. 20 
G. Regulations Governing City Council Policy Committees 

IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING ................................................................................ 27 
A. Comments from the Public ............................................................................... 27 
B. Consent Calendar ............................................................................................ 29 
C. Information Reports Called Up for Discussion ................................................ 30 
D. Communications ............................................................................................... 30 
E. Public Hearings for Land Use, Zoning, Landmarks, and Public Nuisance  

Matters .............................................................................................................. 30 
F. Work Sessions .................................................................................................. 31 
G. Public Discussions ........................................................................................... 31 
H. Protocol ............................................................................................................. 32 

V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS ............................................................................. 33 

A. Persons Authorized to Sit at Tables ................................................................ 33 
B. Decorum ........................................................................................................... 33 
C. Enforcement of Decorum ................................................................................. 33 
D. Precedence of Motions .................................................................................... 33 
E. Roberts Rules of Order .................................................................................... 34 
F. Rules of Debate ................................................................................................ 34 
G. Debate Limited ................................................................................................. 36 
H. Motion to Lay on Table ..................................................................................... 36 
I. Division of Question ......................................................................................... 36 
J. Addressing the Council .................................................................................... 36 
K. Addressing the Council After Motion Made ..................................................... 37 

193



 

3 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

VI. FACILITIES .......................................................................................................38 

A. Council Chamber Capacity ...............................................................................38 
B. Alternate Facilities for Council Meetings ..........................................................38 
C. Signs, Objects, and Symbolic Materials ...........................................................38 
D. Fire Safety .........................................................................................................38 
E. Overcrowding ....................................................................................................38 

APPENDIX A. POLICY FOR NAMING AND RENAMING PUBLIC FACILITIES ..........39 

APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA 
ITEMS.................................................................................................................................42 

  

194



I. DUTIES 

4 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

I. DUTIES 

A. Duties of Mayor 

The Mayor shall preside at the meetings of the Council and shall preserve strict order 
and decorum at all regular and special meetings of the Council.  The Mayor shall 
state every question coming before the Council, announce the decision of the Council 
on all subjects, and decide all questions of order, subject, however, to an appeal to 
the Council, in which event a majority vote of the Council shall govern and 
conclusively determine such question of order.  In the Mayor’s absence, the Vice 
President of the Council (hereafter referred to as the Vice-Mayor) shall preside. 

B. Duties of Councilmembers 

Promptly at the hour set by law on the date of each regular meeting, the members of 
the Council shall take their regular stations in the Council Chambers and the business 
of the Council shall be taken up for consideration and disposition. 

C. Motions to be Stated by Chair 

When a motion is made, it may be stated by the Chair or the City Clerk before debate. 

D. Decorum by Councilmembers 

While the Council is in session, the City Council will practice civility and decorum in 
their discussions and debate. Councilmembers will value each other’s time and will 
preserve order and decorum. A member shall neither, by conversation or otherwise, 
delay or interrupt the proceedings of the Council, use personal, impertinent or 
slanderous remarks, nor disturb any other member while that member is speaking or 
refuse to obey the orders of the presiding officer or the Council, except as otherwise 
provided herein. 

All Councilmembers have the opportunity to speak and agree to disagree but no 
Councilmember shall speak twice on any given subject unless all other 
Councilmembers have been given the opportunity to speak.  The Presiding Officer 
may set a limit on the speaking time allotted to Councilmembers during Council 
discussion. 

The presiding officer has the affirmative duty to maintain order. The City Council will 
honor the role of the presiding officer in maintaining order. If a Councilmember 
believes the presiding officer is not maintaining order, the Councilmember may move 
that the Vice-Mayor, or another Councilmember if the Vice-Mayor is acting as the 
presiding officer at the time, enforce the rules of decorum and otherwise maintain 
order. If that motion receives a second and is approved by a majority of the Council, 
the Vice-Mayor, or other designated Councilmember, shall enforce the rules of 
decorum and maintain order. 

E. Voting Disqualification 

No member of the Council who is disqualified shall vote upon the matter on which the 
member is disqualified.  Any member shall openly state or have the presiding officer 
announce the fact and nature of such disqualification in open meeting, and shall not 
be subject to further inquiry.  Where no clearly disqualifying conflict of interest 
appears, the matter of disqualification may, at the request of the member affected, be 

Commented [NML1]: Standard current practice per City 
Charter 

Commented [NML2]: Edit from July 15, 2019 Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting 

Commented [NML3]: SUPP 1 – changed to “a limit” to be 
more clear that the time is the same for all Councilmembers 

195



I. DUTIES 

5 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

decided by the other members of the Council, by motion, and such decision shall 
determine such member's right and obligation to vote.  A member who is disqualified 
by conflict of interest in any matter shall not remain in the Chamber during the debate 
and vote on such matter, but shall request and be given the presiding officer's 
permission to absent recuse themselves.  Any member having a "remote interest" in 
any matter as provided in Government Code shall divulge the same before voting. 

F. Requests for Technical Assistance and/or Reports 

A majority vote of the Council shall be required to direct staff to provide technical 
assistance, develop a report, initiate staff research, or respond to requests for 
information or service generated by an individual council member. 
 

G. City Council Policy for Naming and Renaming Public Facilities 

The City Council Policy for Naming and Renaming Public Facilities adopted on 
January 31, 2012, and all its successors, is incorporated by reference into the City 
Council Rules of Procedure and included as Appendix A to this document. 

Commented [NML4]: Correct terminology 

Commented [NML5]: Edit from July 15, 2019 Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting 
 
Language is uneccesary here 

196



II. MEETINGS 

6 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

II. MEETINGS 

A.  Call to Order - Presiding Officer 

The Mayor, or in the Mayor's absence, the Vice Mayor, shall take the chair precisely 
at the hour appointed by the meeting and shall immediately call the Council to order.  
Upon the arrival of the Mayor, the Vice Mayor shall immediately relinquish the chair. 
at the conclusion of the business presently before the Council.  In the absence of the 
two officers specified in this section, the Councilmembercouncil member present with 
the longest period of Council service shall preside. 

B.  Roll Call 

Before the Council shall proceed with the business of the Council, the City Clerk shall 
call the roll of the members and the names of those present shall be entered in the 
minutes.  The later arrival of any absentee shall also be entered in the minutes. 

C.  Quorum Call 

During the course of the meeting, should the Chair note a Council quorum is lacking, 
the Chair shall call this fact to the attention of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall 
issue a quorum call.  If a quorum has not been restored within two minutes of a 
quorum call, the meeting shall be deemed automatically adjourned. 

D.  Council Meeting ScheduleConduct of Business 

The City Council shall hold a minimum of twenty-four (24) meetings, or the amount 
needed to conduct City business in a timely manner, whichever is greater, each 
calendar year. 

Regular meetings of the City Council shall be held generally two to three Tuesdays 
of each month; the schedule to be established annually by Council resolution taking 
into consideration holidays and election dates. 

Regular City Council meetings shall begin no later than 6:00 p.m. 

The agenda for the regular business meetings shall include the following: Ceremonial 
Items (including comments from the City Auditor if requested); Comments from the 
City Manager; Comments from the Public; Consent Calendar; Action Calendar 
(Appeals, Public Hearings, Continued Business, Old Business, New Business);  
Information Reports; and Communication from the Public.  Presentations and 
workshops may be included as part of the Action Calendar.  Items removed from the 
Consent Calendar will be moved to the Action Calendar.  The Chair will determine 
the order in which the item(s) will be heard with the consent of Council. 

Upon request by the Mayor or any Councilmembercouncil member, any item may be 
moved from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar to the Action Calendar.  
Unless there is an objection by the Mayor or any Councilmembercouncil member, 
athe Councilcouncil member may also move an item from the Action Calendar to the 
Consent Calendar.   

A public hearing that is not expected to be lengthy may be placed on the agenda for 
a regular business meeting.  When a public hearing is expected to be contentious 

Commented [NML6]: Edit from July 15, 2019 Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting 
 
Mayor resume chair upon resuming place on dais 

Commented [NML7]: Amended to standardize use 
throughout the document 

Commented [NML8]: Moved to more appropriate location 
below 

Commented [NML9]: Edit from July 15, 2019 Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting 

Commented [NML10]: Items removed from Consent may 
have many other actions taken and listing this signle action is 
misleading. 

Commented [NML11]: Amended for clarity throughout 
document 

Commented [NML12]: Edit from July 15, 2019 Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting – changed “a Councilmember” to 
“the Council” 

197



II. MEETINGS 

7 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

and lengthy and/or the Council’s regular meeting schedule is heavi ly booked, the 
Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee, in conjunction with the staff, will 
schedule a special meeting exclusively for the public hearing.  No other matters shall 
be placed on the agenda for the special meeting.  All public comment will  be 
considered as part of the public hearing and no separate time will be set aside for 
public comment not related to the public hearing at this meeting. 

Except at meetings at which the budget is to be adopted, no public hearing may 
commence later than 10:00 p.m. unless there is a legal necessity to hold the hearing 
or make a decision at that meeting or the City Council determines by a two-thirds vote 
that there is a fiscal necessity to hold the hearing. 

E. Adjournment 

1. No Council meeting shall continue past 11:00 p.m. unless a two-thirds majority of 
the Council votes to extend the meeting to discuss specified items; and any motion 
to extend the meeting beyond 11:00 p.m. shall include a list of specific agenda 
items to be covered and shall specify in which order these items shall be handled. 

2. Any items not completed at a regularly scheduled Council meeting may be 
continued to an Adjourned Regular Meeting by a two-thirds majority vote of the 
Council. 

F.  Unfinished Business 

Any items not completed by formal action of the Council, and any items not postponed 
to a date certain, shall be considered Unfinished Business.  All Unfinished Business 
shall be referred to the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee for scheduling 
for a Council meeting that occurs within 60 days from the date the item last appeared 
on a Council agenda. The 60 day period is tolled during a Council recess. 

 

G. City Council Schedule and Recess Periods 

Pursuant to the Open Government Ordinance, Tthe City Council shall hold a minimum 
of twenty-four (24) meetings, or the amount needed to conduct City business in a 
timely manner, whichever is greater, each calendar year. 

Regular meetings of the City Council shall be held generally two to three Tuesdays 
of each month except during recess periods; the schedule to be established annually 
by Council resolution taking into consideration holidays and election dates. 

Regular City Council meetings shall begin no later than 6:00 p.m.  

A recess period is defined as a period of time longer than 21 days without a regular 
or special meeting of the Council. 

When a recess period occurs, the City Manager is authorized to take such ministerial 
actions for matters of operational urgency as would normally be taken by the City 
Council during the period of recess except for those duties specifically reserved to 
the Council by the Charter, and including such emergency actions as are necessary 
for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health or safety; the authority to 

Commented [NML13]: Amended to standardize use 
throughout the document 

Commented [NML14]: SUPP 1 – Added for clarity 

Commented [NML15]: Proposed addition regarding 
starting early for ceremonial items was removed at the July 
15, 2019 Agenda & Rules Committee meeting 

Commented [NML16]: Special meetings are as needed 
and are not factored in to the annual schedule that is 
adopted, which includes the recess periods. 

198



II. MEETINGS 

8 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

extend throughout the period of time established by the City Council for the period of 
recess. 

The City Manager shall have the aforementioned authority beginning the day after 
the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee meeting for the last regular 
meeting before a Council recess and this authority shall extend through up to the 
deadline for submission of staff reports fordate of the first Agenda & Rules Committee 
meeting for the first regular meeting after the Council recess. 

The City Manager shall make a full and complete report to the City Council at its first 
regularly scheduled meeting following the period of recess of actions taken by the 
City Manager pursuant to this section, at which time the City Council may make such 
findings as may be required and confirm said actions of the City Manager. 

H. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

At the first meeting of each year following the August recess and at any subsequent 
meeting if specifically requested before the meeting by any member of the Council in 
order to commemorate an occasion of national significance, the first item on the 
program Ceremonial Calendar will be the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

I. Ad Hoc Subcommittees 

From time to time the Council or the Mayor may appoint several of its members but 
fewer than the existing quorum of the present body to serve as an ad hoc 
subcommittee. Only Council members may become be members of the ad hoc 
subcommittee; however, the subcommittee shall seek input and advice from the 
residents, related commissions, and other groups, as appropriate to the charge or 
responsibilities of such Subcommittee. Ad Hoc Subcommittees must be reviewed 
annually by the Council to determine if the subcommittee is to continue.   
 
Upon creation of an ad hoc subcommittee, the Council shall allow it to operate with 
the following parameters: 
10005 

1. A specific charge or outline of responsibilities shall be established by the 
Council.  

2. A target date must be established for a report back to the Council.  
3. Maximum life of the subcommittee shall be one year, with annual review and 

possible extension by the Council.  
 
Subcommittees shall conduct their meetings in public and in accessible locations that 
are open to the public and meet accessibility requirements under the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. Meetings may be held at privately owned facilities provided that the 
location is open to all that wish to attend and that there is no requirement for purchase 
to attend. Agendas for subcommittee meetings must be posted in the same manner 
as the agendas for regular Council meetings except that subcommittee agendas may 
be posted with 24-hour notice.  The public will be permitted to comment on agenda 
items but public comments may be limited to one minute if deemed necessary by the 
Committee Chair.  Agendas and minutes of the meetings must be maintained and 
made available upon request.   
 

Commented [NML17]: The existing definition left a 
significant gap that did not allow City Manager action on 
administratively urgent items 

Commented [NML18]: Edit from July 15, 2019 Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting 

Commented [NML19]: Edit from July 15, 2019 Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting 

199



II. MEETINGS 

9 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

City staff may attend and participate in subcommittee meetings. Depending on the 
desires of the subcommittee members, City staff may participate the same as 
members of the public, or may be called upon to offer insights or provide information 
during discussion.  
 
Ad hoc subcommittees will be staffed by City Council legistive staff.  As part of the ad 
hoc subcommittee process, City staff will undertake a high-level, preliminary analysis 
of potential legal issues, costs, timelines, and staffing demands associated with the 
item(s) under consideration.  Staff analysis at ad hoc subcommittees is limited to the 
points above as the recommendation, program, or project has not yet been approved 
to proceed by the full Council. 
 
Subcommittees must be comprised of at least two members. If only two members are 
appointed, then both must be present in order for the subcommittee meeting to be 
held. In other words, the quorum for a two-member subcommittee is always two.   
 
Certain requirements listed above may not apply to aAd hoc subcommittees may 
seeking legal advice and assistance from the City Attorney or meeting with the City 
Manager or his/her designees for purposes of real estate or labor 
negotiations.convene a closed session meeting pursuant to the conditions and 
regulations imposed by the Brown Act.

Commented [NML20]: Staff proposed language based on 
discussion at July 15, 2019 Agenda & Rules Committee 
meeting.  This language mirrors the language used for Policy 
Committees Charter III, Section G 

Commented [NML21]: Staff proposed language based on 
discussion at July 15, 2019 Agenda & Rules Committee 
meeting.   

200



III. AGENDA 

10 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

III. AGENDA 

A. Declaration of Policy 

No ordinance, resolution, or item of business shall be introduced, discussed or acted 
upon before the Council at its meeting without prior thereto its having been published 
on the agenda of the meeting and posted in accordance with Section III.D.2.  
Exceptions to this rule are limited to circumstances listed in Section III.D.4.b and 
items carried overcontinued from a previous meeting and published on a revised 
agenda. 

B. Definitions 

For purposes of this section, the terms listed herein shall be defined as follows: 

1. "Agenda Item" means an item placed on the agenda (on either the Consent Calendar 
or as a Report For Action) for a vote of the Council by the Mayor or any 
Councilmembercouncil member, the City Manager, the Auditor, or any 
board/commission/committee created by the City Council, or any Report For 
Information which may be acted upon if the Mayor or a Councilmembercouncil 
member so requests.  For purposes of this section, appeals shall be considered 
action items.  All information from the City Manager concerning any item to be acted 
upon by the Council shall be submitted as a report on the agenda and not as an off -
agenda memorandum and shall be available for public review, except to the extent 
such report is privileged and thus confidential such as an attorney client 
communication concerning a litigation matter. 

Council agenda items are limited to a maximum of three Co-Sponsors (in addition to 
the Primary Author)four Authors and Co-Sponsors, in any combination that includes 
at least one Author.   

Authors must be listed in the original item as submitted by the Primary Author. Co-
Sponsors may only be added in the following manner: 

 In the original item as submitted by the Primary Author 

 In a revised item submitted by the Primary Author at the Agenda & Rules 
Committee 

 By verbal request of the Primary Author at the Agenda & Rules Committee 

 In a revised item submitted by the Primary Author in Supplemental Reports 
and Communications Packet #1 or #2 

 By verbal or written request of the Mayor or any Councilmember at the Policy 
Committee meeting or meeting of the full council at which the item is 
considered 
 

Agenda items shall contain all relevant documentation, including the information 
listed below.  following as applicable: 

a) A descriptive title that adequately informs the public of the subject matter and 
general nature of the item or report and action requested; 

Commented [NML22]: Additional clarification 

Commented [NML23]: Must have certainty at the time of 
submission and throughout the process to properly monitor 
participation in policy committee meetings per the Brown Act. 
New language for designation of co-sponsors from the July 
15, 2019 Agenda & Rules Committee meeting – removed 
limitation on when co-sponsors could be added and changed 
it to limit the addition of co-sponsors to discretion of the 
primary author. 

201



III. AGENDA 

11 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

b) Whether the matter is to be presented on the Consent Calendar or the Action 
Calendar or as a Report for Information; 

c) Recommendation of the City Managerreport’s Primary A author that 
describes the action to be taken on the item, if applicable; (these provisions 
shall not apply to Mayor and Council items.); 

d) Fiscal impacts of the recommendation; 

e) A description of the current situation and its effects; 

f) Background information as needed; 

g) Rationale for recommendation; 

h) Alternative actions considered; 

i) For awards of contracts; the abstract of bids and the Affirmative Action 
Program of the low bidder in those cases where such is required (these 
provisions shall not apply to Mayor and Council items.);  

j) Person or persons to contact for further information, with telephone 
number.   

k) Additional information and analysis as required.  It is recommended that 
reports include the recommended points of analysis in the Council Report 
Guidelines in Appendix B. 

j) If the author of any report believes additional background information, 
beyond the basic report, is necessary to Council understanding of the 
subject, a separate compilation of such background information may be 
developed and copies will be available for Council and for public review in 
the City Clerk Department, and the City Clerk shall provide limited 
distribution of such background information depending upon quantity of 
pages to be duplicated.  In such case the agenda item distributed with the 
packet shall so indicate. 

2.  “Author” means the Mayor or other Councilmembers who actually authored 
an item by contributing to the ideas, research, writing or other material elements. 

3. “Primary Author” means the Mayor or Councilmember first Author listed on 
the item. The Primary Author is the sole contact for the City Manager with respect to 
the item.  Communication with other Authors and Co-Sponsors, if any, is the 
responsibility of the Primary Author.the Mayor or Councilmember that initiated, 
authored, and submitted a council agenda item. 

34. “Co-Sponsor" means the Mayor or other Councilmembers who wish to indicate 
their strong support for the item, but are not Authors, and are designated by the 
Primary Author to be co-sponsors of the council agenda item. 

Commented [NML24]: Required by the Brown Act for all 
agenda items. 

Commented [NML25]: SUPP 1 – redundant word deleted 

Commented [NML26]: Outdated. We publish all materials 
except for the full administrative record of ZAB appeal. 

202



III. AGENDA 

12 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

1.4. "Agenda" means the compilation of the descriptive titles of agenda items 
submitted to the City Clerk, arranged in the sequence established in Section 
III.E hereof. 

2.5. "Packet" means the agenda plus all its corresponding duplicated agenda 
items.  

3.6. "Emergency Matter" arises when prompt action is necessary due to the 
disruption or threatened disruption of public facilities and a majority of the Council 
determines that: 

1.a) A work stoppage or other activity which severely impairs public 
health, safety, or both; 

2.b) A crippling disaster, which severely impairs public health, safety 
or both.  Notice of the Council's proposed consideration of any such 
emergency matter shall be given in the manner required by law for such an 
emergency pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.5. 

4.7. “Continued Business” Items carried over from a prior agenda of a meeting 
occurring less than 11 days earlier, as uncompleted items. 

5.8. "Old Business" Items carried over from a prior agenda of a meeting as 
uncompleted itemsoccuringoccurring more than 11 days earlier. 

C. Procedure for Bringing Matters Before City Council 

a)1. Persons Who Can Place Matters on the Agenda. 
Matters may be placed on the agenda by the Mayor or any Councilmembercouncil 
member, the City Manager, the Auditor, or any board/commission/committee 
created by the City Council. All items, other than board and commission items 
shall be subject to review by an the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules 
Committee, which shall be a standing committee of the City Council.  The Agenda 
Committee shall consist of the Mayor and two councilmembers, nominated by the 
Mayor and approved by the Council. A third council member, nominated by the 
Mayor and approved by the Council, will serve as an alternate on the Committee 
in the event that an Agenda Committee member cannot attend a meeting. 

The Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee shall meet 15 days prior to 
each City Council meeting and shall approve the agenda of that City Council 
meeting.  Pursuant to BMC Section 1.04.080, if the 15th day prior to the Council 
meeting falls on a holiday, the Committee will meet the next business day. The 
Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee packet, including a draft agenda 
and Councilmember, Auditor, and Commission reports shall be distributed by 5:00 
p.m. 4 days before the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee meeting. 

The Agenda Committee shall have the powers set forth below. 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,
3, … + Start at: 4 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab
after:  1" + Indent at:  1", Tab stops: Not at  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.25", Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 4 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" + Tab after:  1" + Indent
at:  1", Tab stops: Not at  0.5"

Commented [NML27]: Per Open Government Ordinance 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.25", Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after:  1.5" + Indent
at:  1.5", Tab stops: Not at  1.5"

Commented [NML28]: Superceded by policy committee 
section below 

Commented [NML29]: Clarification 

203



III. AGENDA 

13 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

1. Items Authored by a Councilmember or the Auditor.  As to items 

authored by the Mayor, a Councilmember, or the Auditor, the Agenda 
Committee shall review the item and may recommend that the matter be 
referred to a commission, to the City Manager, or back to the author for 
adherence to required form or for additional analysis as required in 
Section III.B.2, or suggest other appropriate action including scheduling 
the matter for a later meeting to allow for appropriate revisions. 

The author of a “referred” item must inform the City Clerk within 24 hours 
of the adjournment of the Agenda Committee meeting whether he or she 
prefers to: 1) hold the item for a future meeting pending modifications as 
suggested by the Committee; 2) have the item appear on the Council 
agenda under consideration as originally submitted; 3) pull the item 
completely; or 4) re-submit the item with revisions as requested by the 
Agenda Committee within 24 hours of the adjournment of the Agenda 
Committee meeting for the Council agenda under consideration. 

In the event that the City Clerk does not receive guidance from the author 
of the referred item within 24 hours of the Agenda Committee’s 
adjournment, the recommendation of the Agenda Committee will take 
effect. 

Items held for a future meeting to allow for modifications will be placed on 
the next available Council meeting agenda at the time that the revised 
version is submitted to the City Clerk. If changes made to the item extend 
beyond the scope of the Agenda Committee referral recommendations, the 
item must be re-submitted as a new Council item.  

For authors of referred items that select option 2) above, the referred item 
will automatically be placed at the end of the Action Calendar under the 
heading “Referred Items”.  The Agenda Committee shall specify the reason 
for the referral from the categories listed below.  This reason shall be 
printed with the item on the agenda. 

Reason 1 – Significant Lack of Background or Supporting Information 
Reason 2 – Significant Grammatical or Readability Issues 
 

The Agenda & Rules Committee shall have the powers set forth below. 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c,
… + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab
after:  1.25" + Indent at:  1.25"

Commented [NML30]: Current practice 

Commented [NML31]: Uneccesary.  If the item is being 
submitted for a future meeting, it is a “new” item. 

Commented [NML32]: No longer needed with the policy 
committee system. 

Commented [NML33]: SUPP 1 – change as described in 
the Supp 1 Cover Memo 

204



III. AGENDA 

14 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

a) Items Authored by the Mayor, a Councilmember, or the Auditor.  As to 

items authored by the Mayor, a Councilmember, or the Auditor, the Agenda 

& Rules Committee shall review the item and may take the following 

actions: 

i. Refer the item to a commission for further analysis (Primary Author may 

decline and request Policy Committee assignment). 

ii. Refer the item to the City Manager for further analysis (Primary Author 

may decline and request Policy Committee assignment). 

iii. Refer the item back to the Primary aAuthor for adherence to required 

form or for additional analysis as required in Section III.B.1, (Primary 

Author may decline and request Policy Committee assignment). 

 

iv. Refer the item to a Policy Committee. 

v. Schedule the item for the agenda under consideration or one of the next 

three full Council agendas. 

For referrals under Chapter III.C.1.a.iii the Primary Author must inform the 
City Clerk within 24 hours of the adjournment of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee meeting whether they prefer to:  

1) re-submit the item for a future meeting with modifications as 

suggested by the Agenda & Rules Committee; or 

2) pull the item completely; or 

3) re-submit the item with revisions as requested by the Agenda & 

Rules Committee within 24 hours of the adjournment of the Agenda 

& Rules Committee meeting for the Council agenda under 

consideration; or  

4) accept the referral of the Agenda & Rules Committee in sub 

paragraphs i, ii, or iii.  

If the Primary Author requests a Policy Committee assignment, the item 

will appear on the next draft agenda presented to the Agenda & Rules 

Committee for assignment. 

In the event that the City Clerk does not receive guidance from the Primary 
Author of the referred item within 24 hours of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee’s adjournment, the item will appear on the next draft agenda for 
consideration by the Agenda & Rules Committee.  

205



III. AGENDA 

15 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

Items held for a future meeting to allow for modifications will be placed on 
the next available Council meeting agenda at the time that the revised 
version is submitted to the City Clerk.  

a)b) Items Authored by the City Manager.  The Agenda 

CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee shall review agenda descriptions of 
items authored by the City Manager.  The Committee can recommend that 
the matter be referred to a commission or back to the City Manager for 
adherence to required form, additional analysis as required in Section 
III.B.2, or suggest other appropriate action including scheduling the matter 
for a later meeting to allow for appropriate revisions. 

If the City Manager determines that the matter should proceed 
notwithstanding the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee’s 
action, it will be placed on the agenda as directed by the Manager. All City 
Manager items placed on the Council agenda against the referral 
recommendation of the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee or 
revised items that have not been resubmitted to the Agenda Committee will 
automatically be placed on the Action Calendar. 

2.c) Items Authored by Boards and Commissions.  Council items 

submitted by boards and commissions are subject to City Manager review 
and must follow procedures and timelines for submittal of reports as 
described in the Commissioners’ Manual. The content of commission items 
is not subject to review by the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules 
Committee. 

i) For a commission item that does not require a companion report from 
the City ManangerManager, the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules 
Committee may act on an agendized commission report in the following 
manner:  

a.1. Move a commission report from the Consent Calendar to the 
Action Calendar or from the Action Calendar to the Consent 
Calendar. 

b.2. Re-schedule the commission report to appear on one of the 
next three regular Council meeting agendas that occur after the 
regular meeting under consideration.  Commission reports 
submitted in response to a Council referral shall receive higher 
priority for scheduling. 

c.3. Allow the item to proceed as submitted. 

ii) For any commission report that requires a companion report, the 
Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee maywill schedule the 
item on a Council agenda.  The Committee must schedule the the 
commission item for a meeting occurring not sooner than 60 days and 
not later than 120 days from the date of the meeting under consideration 
by the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee.  A commission 

Commented [NML34]: Inconsistent with current practices.  
Staff reports are still in review and are not printed in the 
Agenda & Rules Committee packet. 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c,
… + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab
after:  1.25" + Indent at:  1.25"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii,
… + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.25" +
Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,
3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.75" +
Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: i, ii, iii,
… + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.25" +
Indent at:  1.5"

206



III. AGENDA 

16 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

report submitted with a complete companion report may be scheduled 
pursuant to subparagraph c.i. above. 

3.d) The Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee shall have the 
authority to re-order the items on the Action Calendar regardless of the 
default sequence prescribed in Chapter III, Section E of the Rules of 
Procedures and Order. 

 

b)2. Scheduling Public Hearings Mandated by State, Federal, or Local 
Statute. 

The City Clerk may schedule a public hearing at an available time and date in 
those cases where State, Federal or local statute mandates the City Council hold 
a public hearing. 

c)3. Submission of Agenda Items. 
1.a) City Manager Items.  Except for Continued Business and Old 

Business, as a condition to placing an item on the agenda, agenda items 
from departments, including agenda items from commissions, shall be 
furnished to the City Clerk at a time established by the City Manager. 

2.b) Council and Auditor Items.  The deadline for reports submitted by the 
Auditor, Mayor and City Council is 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 22 days before 
each Council meeting.  

3.c) Time Critical Items.  A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is 

considered urgent by the sponsor and that has a deadline for action that is 
prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report prepared by 
the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or Councilmembercouncil member is 
received by the City Clerk after established deadlines and is not included 
on the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee’s published agenda. 

The Primary Aauthor of the report shall bring any reports submitted as Time 
Critical to the meeting of the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules 
Committee.  Time Critical items must be accompanied by complete reports 
and statements of financial implications.  If the Agenda CommitteeAgenda 
& Rules Committee finds the matter to meet the definition of Time Critical, 
the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee may place the matter 
on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar. 

4.d) The City Clerk may not accept any agenda item after the adjournment 
of the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee meeting, except for 
items carried over by the City Council from a prior City Council meeting 
occurring less than 11 days earlier, which may include supplemental or 
revised reports, and reports concerning actions taken by boards and 
commissions that are required by law or ordinance to be presented to the 
Council within a deadline that does not permit compliance with the agenda 
timelines in BMC Chapter 2.06 or these rules. 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c,
… + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab
after:  1.25" + Indent at:  1.25"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.25", Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after:  1.5" + Indent
at:  1.5", Tab stops: Not at  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.25", Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after:  1.5" + Indent
at:  1.5", Tab stops: Not at  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.25", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.5" + Tab after:  2" + Indent
at:  2", Tab stops:  1.25", List tab + Not at  1.5" +  2"

207



III. AGENDA 

17 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

d)4. Submission of Supplemental and Revised Agenda Material. 

Berkeley Municipal Code Section 2.06.070 allows for the submission of 
supplemental and revised agenda material.  Supplemental and revised material 
cannot be substantially new or only tangentially related to an agenda item.  
Supplemental material must be specifically related to the item in the Agenda 
Packet.  Revised material should be presented as revised versions of the report 
or item printed in the Agenda Packet.  Supplemental and revised material may be 
submitted for consideration as follows: 

a) Supplemental and revised agenda material shall be submitted to the City 
Clerk no later than 5:00 p.m. seven calendar days prior to the City Council 
meeting at which it is to be considered.  Supplemental and revised items 
that are received by the deadline shall be distributed to Council in a 
supplemental reports packet and posted to the City’s website no later than 
5:00 p.m. five calendar days prior to the meeting.  Copies of the 
supplemental packet shall also be made available in the office of the City 
Clerk and in the main branch of the Berkeley Public Library. Such material 
may be considered by the Council without the need for a determination that 
the good of the City clearly outweighs the lack of time for citizen review or 
City Council member evaluation. 

b) Supplemental and revised agenda material submitted to the City Clerk after 
5:00 p.m. seven days before the meeting and no later than 12:00 p.m. one  
day prior to the City Council meeting at which it is to be considered shall 
be distributed to Council in a supplemental reports packet and posted to 
the City’s website no later than 5:00 p.m. one day prior to the meeting.  
Copies of the supplemental packet shall also be made available in the 
office of the City Clerk and in the main branch of the Berkeley Public 
Library. Such material may be considered by the Council without the need 
for a determination that the good of the City clearly outweighs the lack of 
time for citizen review or City Council evaluation. 

1.  

2.c) After 512:00 p.m. seven one calendar days prior to the meeting, 
supplemental or revised reports may be submitted for consideration by 
delivering a minimum of 42 copies of the supplemental/revised material to 
the City Clerk for distribution at the meeting.  Each copy must be 
accompanied by a completed supplemental/revised material cover page, 
using the form provided by the City Clerk.  Revised reports must reflect a 
comparison with the original item using track changes formatting.  The 
material may be considered only if the City Council, by a two-thirds roll call 
vote, makes a factual determination that the good of the City clearly 
outweighs the lack of time for citizen review or City Council member 
evaluation of the material.  Supplemental and revised material must be 
distributed and a factual determination made prior to the commencement 
of public comment on the agenda item in order for the material to be 
considered. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.25", Numbered +
Level: 2 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after:  1.5" + Indent
at:  1.5", Tab stops:  1.25", List tab + Not at  1.5" +  2.28"

Commented [NML35]: Per Open Government Ordinance 

208



III. AGENDA 

18 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

e)5. Scheduling a Presentation. 

Presentations from staff are either submitted as an Agenda Item or are requested 
by the City Manager.  Presentations from outside agencies and the public are 
coordinated with the Mayor's Office.  The Agenda & Rules Committee may adjust 
the schedule of presentations as needed to best manage the Council Agenda.  
The Agenda & Rules Committee may request a presentation by staff in 
consultation with the City Manager. 

Any request for a presentation to the Council will be submitted as an agenda item 
and follow the time lines for submittal of agenda reports.  The agenda item should 
include general information regarding the purpose and content of the 
presentation; information on the presenters; contact information; and the length of 
the presentation.  The request may state a preference for a date before the 
Council.  The Agenda Committee will review the request and recommend a 
presentation date and allotted time based on the Council’s schedule. 

The City Clerk will notify the presenters of the date and time of the presentation 
and will coordinate use of any presentation equipment and receipt of additional 
written material. 

i.D. Packet Preparation and Posting 

a)1. Preparation of the Packet. 
Not later than the thirteenth day prior to said meeting, the City Clerk shall prepare 
the packet, which shall include the agenda plus all its corresponding duplicated 
agenda items.  No item shall be considered if not included in the packet, except 
as provided for in Section III.C.4 and Section III.D.4.  Reports carried over, as 
Continued Business or Old Business need not be reproduced again. 

b)2. Distribution and Posting of Agenda. 

a) The City Clerk shall post each agenda of the City Council regular meeting 
no later than 11 days prior to the meeting and shall post each agenda of a 
special meeting at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting in the official 
bulletin board.  The City Clerk shall maintain an affidavit indicating the 
location, date and time of posting each agenda. 

b) The City Clerk shall also post agendas and annotated agendas of all City 
Council meetings and notices of public hearings on the City's website. 

c) No later than 11 days prior to a regular meeting, copies of the agenda shall 
be mailed by the City Clerk to any resident of the City of Berkeley who so 
requests in writing.  Copies shall also be available free of charge in the City 
Clerk Department. 

c)3. Distribution of the Agenda Packet. 
The Agenda Packet shall consist of the Agenda and all supporting documents for 
agenda items.  No later than 11 days prior to a regular meeting, the City Clerk 
shall: 

i.a) distribute the Agenda Packet to each member of the City Council; 

Commented [NML36]: Reflects current practice, which is 
much less formal than deleted text. 

Commented [NML37]: SUPP 1 – Reflects current practice. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", Numbered + Level: 3 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 4 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  2.65" + Tab after:  3.15" + Indent at:  3.15", Tab
stops: Not at  3.15"

Commented [NML38]: Inconsistent with OGO 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.25", Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after:  1.5" + Indent
at:  1.5", Tab stops:  0.75", List tab + Not at  1.5" +  2"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Outline numbered + Level: 6 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  1.25" + Indent at:  1.5"

209



III. AGENDA 

19 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

ii.b) post the Agenda Packet to the City’s website; 

iii.c) place copies of the Agenda Packet in viewing binders in the office of 
the City Clerk and in the main branch of the Berkeley Public Library; and 

iv.d) make the Agenda Packet available to members of the press. 

d)4. Failure to Meet Deadlines. 

a) The City Clerk shall not accept any agenda item or revised agenda item 
after the deadlines established. 

b) Matters not included on the published agenda may be discussed and acted 
upon as otherwise authorized by State law or providing the Council finds 
one of the following conditions is met: 

a. A majority of the Council determines that the subject meets the 
criteria of "Emergency" as defined in Section III.B.5. 

b. Two thirds of the Council determines that there is a need to take 
immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention 
of the City subsequent to the posting of the agenda as required by 
law. 

c) Matters listed on the printed agenda but for which supporting materials are 
not received by the City Council on the eleventh day prior to said meeting 
as part of the agenda packet, shall not be discussed or acted upon.   

E. Agenda Sequence and Order of Business 

The Council agenda for a regular business meeting is to be arranged in the following 
order:  

a)1. Preliminary Matters:  (Ceremonial, Comments from the City Manager, 
Comments from the City Auditor, Non-Agenda Public Comment) 

b)2. Consent Calendar 

c)3. Action Calendar 

1.a) Appeals 

2.b) Public Hearings 

3.c) Continued Business 

4.d) Old Business 

5.e) New Business 

6.  Referred Items 

4. Information Reports 

d)5. Non-Agenda Public Comment 

e)6. AdjournmentCommunications 

f)7. CommunicationsAdjournment 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.25", Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after:  1.5" + Indent
at:  1.5", Tab stops:  0.75", List tab + Not at  1.5" +  2"

Commented [NML39]: Edits to reflect current order 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.25", Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" + Tab after:  1.5" + Indent
at:  1.5", Tab stops:  0.75", List tab + Not at  1.5" +  2"

210



III. AGENDA 

20 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of 
Council. 

The Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee shall have the authority to re-
order the items on the Action Calendar regardless of the default sequence 
prescribed in this section. 

F. Closed Session Documents 

This section establishes a policy for the distribution of, and access to, confidential 
closed session documents by the Mayor and Members of the City Council. 
 
i)1. Confidential closed session materials shall be kept in binders numbered from 

one to nine and assigned to the Mayor (#9) and each Councilmember (#1 to #8 

by district).  The binders will contain confidential closed session materials related 

to Labor Negotiations, Litigation, and Real Estate matters. 

 
ii)2. The binders will be maintained by City staff and retained in the Office of the 

City Attorney in a secure manner. City staff will bring the binders to each closed 

session for their use by the Mayor and Councilmembers. At other times, the 

binders will be available to the Mayor and Councilmembers during regular 

business hours for review in the City Attorney’s Office.  The binders may not be 

removed from the City Attorney’s Office or the location of any closed session 

meeting by the Mayor or Councilmembers.  City staff will collect the binders  at 

the end of each closed session meeting and return them to the City Attorney’s 

Office.   

 
iii)3. Removal of confidential materials from a binder is prohibited. 

 
iv)4. Duplication of the contents of a binder by any means is prohibited. 

 
v)5. Confidential materials shall be retained in the binders for at least two years.   

 
vi)6. This policy does not prohibit the distribution of materials by staff to the Mayor 

and Councilmembers in advance of a closed session or otherwise as needed, 

but such materials shall also be included in the binders unless it is impracticable 

to do so. 

 

 

G. Regulations Governing City Council Policy Committees 

1A. Legislative Item Process 

All agenda items begin with submission to the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules 

Committee.  

 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline numbered + Level: 1
+ Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left
+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Tab after:  0" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline numbered + Level: 1
+ Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left
+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Tab after:  0" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline numbered + Level: 1
+ Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left
+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Tab after:  0" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline numbered + Level: 1
+ Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left
+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Tab after:  0" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline numbered + Level: 1
+ Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left
+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Tab after:  0" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Outline numbered + Level: 1
+ Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left
+ Aligned at:  0.25" + Tab after:  0" + Indent at:  0.5"

Commented [NML40]: Regulations from the Policy 
Committee resolution are inserted in red text; changes to the 
resolution language are in track changes 

211



III. AGENDA 

21 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

Full Council Track 

Items under this category are exempt from Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee 

discretion to refer them to a Ppolicy Ccommittee. Items in this category may be submitted 

for the agenda of any scheduled regular meeting pursuant to established deadlines (same 

as existing deadlines). Types of Full Council Track items are listed below. 

 

4.a. Items submitted by the City Manager and City Auditor  

5.b. Items submitted by Boards and Commissions 

6.c. Resolutions on Legislation and Electoral Issues relating to Outside 

Agencies/Jurisdictions 

7.d. Position Letters and/or Resolutions of Support/Opposition   

8.e. Donations from the Mayor and Councilmember District Office Budgets 

9.f. Referrals to the Budget Process 

10.g. Proclamations 

11.h. Sponsorship of Events 

12.i. Information Reports 

13.j. Presentations from Outside Agencies and Organizations 

k. Ceremonial Items 

14.l. Committee and Regional Body Appointments 

 

Notwithstanding the exemption stated above, the Agenda Committee, at its discretion, may 

route a Full Council Track item submitted by a Councilmember to a policy committee if the 

item has 1) a significant lack of background or supporting information, or 2) significant 

grammatical or readability issues. 

 

The Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee has discretion to determine if an item 

submitted by the Mayor or a Councilmember falls under a Full Council Track exception or if 

it will be processed as a Policy Committee Track item.  If an item submitted by the Mayor 

or a Councilmember has 1) a significant lack of background or supporting information, or 

2) significant grammatical or readability issues the Agenda & Rules committee may refer 

the item to a Policy Committee. 

 

 

Policy Committee Track 

Items submitted by the Mayor or Councilmembers with moderate to significant 

administrative, operational, budgetary, resource, or programmatic impacts will go first to 

the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee on a draft City Council agenda(on a 

list).   

 

The Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee must refer an item to a Ppolicy 

Ccommittee at the first meeting that the item appears before the Agenda 

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25"
+ Indent at:  0.5"

Commented [NML41]: Clarification 

Commented [NML42]: Standard administrative item 

Commented [NML43]: Change made at September 16, 
2019 Agenda & Rules Committee; integrated into next 
paragraph 

Commented [NML44]: SUPP 1 – this sentence is 
unneccesary given the current authority of the Agenda & 
Rules Committee to refer any item to a policy committee 

Commented [NML45]: Clarification 

212



III. AGENDA 

22 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee. The Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules 

Committee may only assign the item to a single Ppolicy Ccommittee. 

 

For a Policy Committee Track item, the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee, at 

its discretion, may either route item directly to 1) the agenda currently under consideration, 

2) one of the next three full Council Agendas (based on completeness of the item, lack of 

potential controversy, minimal impacts, etc.), or 3) to a Ppolicy Ccommittee. 

 

Time Critical Track 

A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor and 
that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which 
a report prepared by the Mayor or Councilmembercouncil member is received by the City 
Clerk after established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & 
Rules Committee’s published agenda. 
 

The Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee retains final discretion to determine 

the time critical nature of an item.  

a) Time Critical items submitted on the Full Council Track deadlines, that would 

otherwise be assigned to the Policy Committee Track, may bypass Ppolicy 

Ccommittee review if determined to be time critical. If such an item is deemed not 

to be time critical, it maywill be referred to a Policy Committee. 

b) Time Critical items on the Full Council Track or Policy Committee Track that are 

submitted at a meeting of the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee may 

go directly on a council agenda if determined to be time critical. 

 

B2. Council Referrals to Committees 

The full Council may refer any agenda item to a Ppolicy Ccommittee by majority vote. 

 

3. Participation Rules for Policy Committees Pursuant to the Brown Act 

 

a. The quorum of a three-member Ppolicy Ccommittee is always two members. A 

majority vote of the committee (two ‘yes’ votes) is required to pass a motion. 

 

b. Two Policy Committee members may not discuss any item that has been 

referred to the Policy Committee outside of an open and noticed meeting. 

 

c. Notwithstanding paragraph (b) above, two members of a Policy Committee may 

co-authorbe listed as Authors or Co-Sponsors on an item provided that one of 

the aAuthors or Co-Sponsors will not serve as a committee member for 

consideration of the item, and shall not participate in the committee’s discussion 

of, or action on the item. For purposes of the item, the appointed alternate, who 

also can not be an Author or Co-Sponsor, will serve as a committee member in 

place of the non-participating co-authorAuthor or Co-Sponsor.   

Commented [NML46]: New requiremetns due to re-
evaluation of Brown Act applicability to policy committees 

213



III. AGENDA 

23 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

 

d. All three members of a Policy Committee may not be co-authorsAuthors or Co-

Sponsors of an item that will be heard by the committee. 

 

e. Only one co-aAuthor or Co-Sponsor who is not a member of the Policy 

Committee may attend the committee meeting to participate in discussion of the 

item. 

 

f. If two or more non-committee members are present for any item or meeting, 

then all non-committee members may act only as observers and may not 

participate in discussion. If an Aauthor who is not a member of the committee is 

present to participate in the discussion of their item, no other non-committee 

member Councilmembers, nor the Mayor, may attend as observers. 

 

g. An item may be considered by only one Policy Committee before it goes to the 

full Council. 

 

C4. Functions of the Committees 

Committees shall have the following qualities/components: 

a. All committees are Brown Act bodies with noticed public meetings and public 

comment.  Regular meeting agendas will be posted at least 72 hours in advance of 

the meeting.  

b. Minutes shall be available online. 

c. Committees shall adopt regular meeting schedules, generally meeting once or twice 

per month; special meetings may be called when necessary, in accordance with the 

Brown Act. 

d. Generally, meetings will be held at 2180 Milvia Street in publicly accessible meeting 

rooms that can accommodate the committee members, public attendees, and staff. 

e. Members are recommended by the Mayor and approved by the full Council no later 

than January 31 of each year. Members continue to serve until successors are 

appointed and approved. 

f. Chairs are elected by the Committee at the first regular meeting of the Committee 

after the annual approval of Committee members by the City Council.  In the 

absence of the Chair, the committee member with the longest tenure on the Council 

will preside.   

f.g. The Chair, or a quorum of the Committee may call a meeting or cancel a meeting of 

the Policy Committee. 

g.h. Committees will review items for completeness in accordance with Section 

III.B.2 of the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order and alignment with 

Strategic Plan goals.  

Commented [NML47]: SUPP 1 – added for clarification 

Commented [NML48]: SUPP 1 – added for clarification 

Commented [NML49]: Clarification of authority; reflects 
Charter 

214



III. AGENDA 

24 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

i. Reports leaving a Ppolicy Ccommittee must adequately include budget implications, 

administrative feasibility, basic legal concerns, and staff resource demands in order 

to allow for informed consideration by the full Council. 

h.j. Per Brown Act regulations, any such revised or supplemental materials must be 

direct revisions or supplements to the item that was published in the agenda packet. 

 

Items referred to a Ppolicy Ccommittee from the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules 

Committee or from the City Council must be agendized for a committee meeting within 60 

days of the referral date.  

 

Within 120 days of the referral date, the committee must vote to either (1) accept the 

Primary Aauthor’s request that the item remain in committee until a date certain (more than 

one extension may be requested by the Primary aAuthor); or (2) send the item to the 

Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee to be placed on a Council Agenda with a 

Committee recommendation consisting of one of the four options listed below. 

 

1. Positive Recommendation (recommending Council pass the item as proposed),  

2. Qualified Positive Recommendation (recommending Council pass the item with 

some changes),  

3. Qualified Negative Recommendation (recommending Council reject the item unless 

certain changes are made) or  

4. Negative Recommendation (recommending the item not be approved). 

  

The Policy Committee’s will include their recommendation will be included in a 

newseparate section of the report template for that purpose. 

 

A Policy Committee may not refer an item under its consideration to a city board or 

commission. 

 

The original Council authorPrimary Author of an item referred to a Policy Committee is 

responsible for revisions and resubmission of the item back to the full Council. Items 

originating from the City Manager are revised and submitted by the appropriate city staff.  

Items from Commissions are revised and resubmitted by the members of the Policy 

Committee.  Items and Recommendations originating from the Policy Committee are 

submitted to the agenda process City Clerk by the members of the committee. 

 

A policy committee may refer an item to another policy committee for review. The total time 

for review by all policy committees is limited to the initial 120-day deadline. 

 

If a Ppolicy Ccommittee does not take final action by the 120-day deadline, the item is 

returned to the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee and appears on the next 

available Council agenda. The Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee may leave 

Commented [NML50]: Added for transparency and to 
avoid violations arising from  submission of materials only 
tangentially related to the agendized items 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Commented [NML51]: SUPP 1 – added for clarification 

Commented [NML52]: Clarification of authority. 
Commissions are advisory to the Full Council 

Commented [NML53]: Clarification of responsibility for 
shepherding items through process 

Commented [NML54]: SUPP 1 – added for clarification  

Commented [NML55]: Inconsistent with Brown Act – 
review by two committees would result in an illegal serial 
meeting 

215



III. AGENDA 

25 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

the item on the agenda under consideration or place it on the next Council agenda.  Items 

appearing on a City Council agenda due to lack of action by a Policy Committee may not 

be referred to a Policy Committee and must remain on the full Council agenda for 

consideration. 

 

Policy Committees may add discussion topics that are within their purview to their agenda 

with the concurrence of a majority of the Committee. These items are not subject to the 

120-day deadline for action.  Non-legislative or discussion items may be added to the 

Policy Committee agenda by members of the Committee with the concurrence of a quorum 

of the Committee.  

 

Once the item is voted out of a Ppolicy Ccommittee, the final item will be resubmitted to 

the agenda process by the Primary aAuthor, and it will return to the Agenda 

CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee on the next available agenda.  The Agenda 

CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee may leave the item on the agenda under 

consideration or place it on the following Council agenda. Only items that receive a 

Positive Recommendation can be placed on the Consent Calendar. 

 

The lead Primary author Author may request expedited committee review for items 

referred to a committee. Criteria for expedited review is generally to meet a deadline for 

action (e.g. grant deadline, specific event date, etc.). If the committee agrees to the 

request, the deadline for final committee action is 45 days from the date the committee 

approves expedited review.item first appeared on the committee agenda. 

 

5D. Number and Make-up of Committees 

Six committees are authorized, each comprised of three Ccouncilmembers, with a fourth 

Councilmember appointed as an alternate. Each Councilmember and the Mayor will serve 

on two committees. The Mayor shall be a member of the Agenda and Rules Committee. 

The committees are as follows: 

 

1. Agenda and Rules Committee 

2. Budget and Finance Committee 

3. Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment, and Sustainability 

4. Health, Life Enrichment, Equity, and Community 

5. Land Use, Housing, and Economic Development 

6. Public Safety 

 

The Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee shall establish the Ppolicy 

Ccommittee topic groupings, and may adjust said groupings periodically thereafter in order 

to evenly distribute expected workloads of various committees. 

 

Commented [NML56]: Closes “endless loop” loophole 

Commented [NML57]: SUPP 1 – This paragraph was re-
worded for clarity 

Commented [NML58]: Clarification 

Formatted: Highlight

Commented [NML59]: This will allow two members of a 
policy committee to co-author an item.  The Alternate will 
substitute for one of the co-authors while the item is heard by 
the policy committee. 
 
SUPP 1 – comma added after Councilmembers 

216



III. AGENDA 

26 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

All standing Policy Committees of the City Council are considered “legislative bodies” 

under the Brown Act and must conduct all business in accordance with the Brown Act. 

 

6E. Role of City Staff at Committee Meetings 

Committees will be staffed by appropriate City Departments and personnel.  As part of the 
committee process, staff will undertake a high-level, preliminary analysis of potential legal 
issues, costs, timelines, and staffing demands associated with the item.  Staff analysis at 
the Policy Committee level is limited to the points above as the recommendation, program, 
or project has not yet been approved to proceed by the full Council. 

Commented [NML60]: Clarification  

217



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

27 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

A. Comments from the Public 

Public comment will be taken in the following order: 

 An initial ten-minute period of public comment on non-agenda items, after the 
commencement of the meeting and immediately after Ceremonial Matters and 
City Manager Comments.  

 Public comment on the Consent and Information Calendars. 

 Public comment on action items, appeals and/ or public hearings as they are 
taken up under procedures set forth in the sections governing each below. 

 Public comment on non-agenda items from any speakers who did not speak 
during the first round of non-agenda public comment at the beginning of the 
meeting.   

Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one 
speaker shall have more than four minutes.  A speaker wishing to yield their time 
shall standidentify themselves, shall be recognized by the chair, and announce 
publicly their intention to yield their time.  Disabled persons shall have priority seating 
in the front row of the public seating area. 

A member of the public may only speak once at public comment on any single item, 
unless called upon by the Mayor or a Councilmember to answer a specific inquiry. 

7.1. Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items. 

The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” 
or “Information” to the “Consent Calendar,” or move “Consent Calendar” items to 
“Action.” Items that remain on the “Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion 
as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted upon at the Council 
meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent.” 

The Council will then take public comment on any items that are either on the 
amended Consent Calendar or the Information Calendar. A speaker may only 
speak once during the period for public comment on Consent Calendar and 
Information items. No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar 
once public comment has commenced. 

At any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and 
Consent items, the Mayor or any Councilmember may move any Information or 
Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will vote on the items 
remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.  

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information 
Calendar, persons who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public 
comment period may speak again at the time the matter is taken up during the 
Action Calendar. 

218



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

28 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

2. Public Comment on Action Items. 

After the initial ten minutes of public comment on non-agenda items and public 
comment and action on consent items, the public may comment on each 
remaining item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the 
podium to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in 
speaking at that time. 

If ten or fewer persons are interested in speaking, each speaker may speak for 
two minutes.  If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the 
Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per 
speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however 
no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. 

This procedure also applies to public hearings except those types of public 
hearings specifically provided for in this section, below. 

3. Appeals Appearing on Action Calendar. 
With the exception of appeals from decisions of the Zoning Adjustments Board 
and Landmarks Preservation Commission, appeals from decisions of City 
commissions appear on the “Action” section of the Council Agenda.  Council 
determines whether to affirm the action of the commission, set a public hearing, 
or remand the matter to the commission.  Appeals of proposed special 
assessment liens shall also appear on the “Action” section of the Council Agenda.  
Appeals from decisions of the Zoning Adjustments Board and Landmarks 
Preservation Commission are automatically set for public hearing and appear on 
the “Public Hearings” section of the Council Agenda. 

Time shall be provided for public comment for persons representing both sides of 
the action/appeal and each side will be allocated seven minutes to present their 
comments on the appeal.  Where the appellant is not the applicant, the appellants 
of a single appeal collectively shall have seven minutes to comment and the 
applicant shall have seven minutes to comment.  If there are multiple appeals 
filed, each appellant or group of appellants shall have seven minutes to comment. 
Where the appellant is the applicant, the applicant/appellant shall have seven 
minutes to comment and the persons supporting the action of the board or 
commission on appeal shall have seven minutes to comment.  In the case of an 
appeal of proposed special assessment lien, the appellant shall have seven 
minutes to comment. 

After the conclusion of the seven-minute comment periods, members of the public 
may comment on the appeal. Comments from members of the public regarding 
appeals shall be limited to one minute per speaker.  Any person that addressed 
the Council during one of the seven-minute periods may not speak again during 
the public comment period on the appeal.  Speakers may yield their time to one 
other speaker, however, no speaker shall have more than two minutes.  Each side 
shall be informed of this public comment procedure at the time the Clerk notifies 
the parties of the date the appeal will appear on the Council agenda. 

Commented [NML61]: SUPP 1 – added for clarification 

Commented [NML62]: Reflects existing due process 
standards 

219



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

29 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

4. Public Comment on Non Agenda Matters. 

Immediately following Ceremonial Matters and the City Manager Comments and 
prior to the Consent Calendar, persons will be selected by lottery to address 
matters not on the Council agenda.  If five or fewer persons submit speaker cards 
for the lottery, each person selected will be allotted two minutes each.  If more 
than five persons submit speaker cards for the lottery, up to ten persons will be 
selected to address matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected 
will be allotted one minute each. Persons wishing to address the Council on 
matters not on the Council agenda during the initial ten-minute period for such 
comment, must submit a speaker card to the City Clerk in person at the meeting 
location and prior to commencement of that meeting.

The remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda 
items will be heard at the end of the agenda. Speaker cards are not required for 
this second round of public comment on non-agenda matters. 

Persons submitting speaker cards are not required to list their actual name, 
however they must list some identifying information or alternate name in order to 
be called to speak. 

For the second round of public comment on non-agenda matters, the Presiding 
Officer retains the authority to limit the number of speakers by subject. The 
Presiding Officer will generally request that persons wishing to speak, line up at 
the podium to be recognized to determine the number of persons interested in 
speaking at that time. Each speaker will be entitled to speak for two minutes each 
unless the Presiding Officer determines that one-minute is appropriate given the 
number of speakers. 

According to the current Rules and ProceduresPursuant to this document, no 
Council meeting shall continue past 11:00 p.m. unless a two-thirds majority of the 
Council votes to extend the meeting to discuss specified items.  If any agendized 
business remains unfinished at 11:00 p.m. or the expiration of any extension after 
11:00 p.m., it will be referred to the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules 
Committee for scheduling pursuant to Chapter II, Section F.  In that event, the 
meeting shall be automatically extended for up to fifteen (15) minutes for public 
comment on non-agenda items. 

5. Ralph M. Brown Act Pertaining to Public Comments. 

The “Brown Act” prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on an issue 
raised during Public Comment, unless it is specifically listed on the agenda.  
However, the Council may refer a matter to the City Manager. 

B. Consent Calendar 

There shall be a Consent Calendar on all regular meeting agendas on which shall be 
included those matters which the Mayor, Ccouncilmembers, boards, commissions, 
City Auditor and City Manager deem to be of such nature that no debate or inquiry 
will be necessary at the Council meetings.  Ordinances for second reading may be 
included in the Consent Calendar. 

220



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

30 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

It is the policy of the Council that the Mayor or Ccouncilmembers wishing to ask 
questions concerning Consent Calendar items should ask questions of the contact 
person identified prior to the Council meeting so that the need for discussion of 
consent calendar items can be minimized.  

Consent Calendar items may be moved to the Action Calendar by the Council.  Action 
items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 

C. Information Reports Called Up for Discussion 

Reports for Information designated for discussion at the request of the Mayor or any 
Councilmembercouncil member shall be added to the appropriate section of the 
Reports for Action Calendar and may be acted upon at that meeting or carried over 
as pending business until discussed or withdrawn.  The agenda will indicate that at 
the request of Mayor or any Councilmembercouncil member a Report for Information 
may be acted upon by the Council. 

D. Written Communications 

LettersWritten communications from the public will not appear on the Council agenda 
as individual matters for discussion but will be distributed as part of the Council 
agenda packet with a cover sheet identifying the author and subject matter and will 
be listed under "Communications."   

All such communications must have been received by the City Clerk no later than 
5:00 p.m. fifteen days prior to the meeting in order to be included on the agenda. 

In instances where an individual forwards more than three pages of email messages 
not related to actionable items on the Council agenda to the Council to be reproduced 
in the "Communications" section of the Council packet, the City Clerk will not 
reproduce the entire email(s) but instead refer the public to the City's website or a 
hard copy of the email(s) on file in the City Clerk Department.  

All communications shall be simply deemed received without any formal action by the 
Council.  The Mayor or Aa Councilmembercouncil member may refer a 
communication to staff the City Manager for action, if appropriate, or prepare a 
consent or action item for placement on a future agenda. 

Communications related to an item on the agenda that are received after 5:00 p.m. 
fifteen days before the meeting are published as provided for in Chapter III.C.4. 

E. Public Hearings for Land Use, Zoning, Landmarks, and Public Nuisance  
Matters 

The City Council, in setting the time and place for a public hearing, may limit the 
amount of time to be devoted to public presentations.  Staff shall introduce the public 
hearing item and present their comments. 

Following any staff presentation, each member of the City Council shall verbally 
disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the hearing.  Members shall 
also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement of the 
hearing.  Such reports shall include a brief statement describing the name, date, 
place, and content of the contact.  Written reports shall be available for public review 

Commented [NML63]: SUPP 1 – Clarification and updating 
of language 

Commented [NML64]: Clarification per OGO 

221



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

31 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

in the office of the City Clerk prior to the meeting and placed in a file available for 
public viewing at the meeting. 

This is followed by five-minute presentations each by the appellant and applicant.  
Where the appellant is not the applicant, the appellants of a single appeal collectively 
shall have five minutes to comment and the applicant shall have five minutes to 
comment.  If there are multiple appeals filed, each appellant or group of appellants 
shall have five minutes to comment. Where the appellant is the applicant, the 
applicant/appellant shall have five minutes to comment and the persons supporting 
the action of the board or commission on appeal shall have five minutes to comment.  
In the case of a public nuisance determination, the representative(s) of the subject 
property shall have five minutes to present. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the podium 
to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in speaking at 
that time. 

If ten or fewer persons are interested in speaking, each speaker may speak for two 
minutes.  If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding 
Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Any 
person that addressed the Council during one of the five-minute periods may not 
speak again during the public comment period on the appeal. Speakers are permitted 
to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more 
than four minutes.  The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons 
representing both sides of an issue allocate a block of time to each side to present 
their issue.   

F. Work Sessions 

The City Council may schedule a matter for general Council discussion and direction 
to staff.  Official/formal action on a work session item will be scheduled on a 
subsequent agenda under the Action portion of the Council agenda. 

In general, public comment at Council work sessions will be heard after the staff 
presentation, for a limited amount of time to be determined by the Presiding Officer. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the podium 
to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in speaking at 
that time.  If ten or fewer persons are interested in speaking, each speaker may speak 
for two minutes.  If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the 
Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per 
speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no 
one speaker shall have more than four minutes. 

After Council discussion, if time permits, the Presiding Officer may allow additional 
public comment.  During this time, each speaker will receive one minute.  Persons 
who spoke during the prior public comment time may be permitted to speak again. 

G. Public Discussions 

Commented [NML65]: Same as above 

Commented [NML66]: Current practice.  Matches existing 
language for appeals above. 

Commented [NML67]: Unnecessary.  A “public discussion” 
must still occur at a noticed meeting which is regulated by the 
Brown Act, OGO, and this document. 

222



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

32 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

The City Council may, from time to time, schedule a matter for public discussion and 
may limit the amount of time to be devoted to said discussions.  At the time the public 
discussion is scheduled, the City Council may seek comment from others if they so 
determine. 

H. Protocol 

People addressing the Council may first give their name in an audible tone of voice 
for the record.  All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body and not to 
any member thereof.  No one other than the Council and the person having the floor 
shall be permitted to enter into any discussion, either directly or through a member of 
the Council, without the permission of the Presiding Officer.  No question shall be 
asked of a Councilmembercouncil member except through the Presiding Officer. 

223



V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

33 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

A. Persons Authorized to Sit at Tables 

No person, except City officials, their representatives and representatives of boards 
and commissions shall be permitted to sit at the tables in the front of the Council 
Chambers without the express consent of the Council. 

B. Decorum 

No person shall disrupt the orderly conduct of the Council meeting.  Prohibited 
disruptive behavior includes but is not limited to shouting, making disruptive noises, 
such as boos or hisses, creating or participating in a physical disturbance, speaking 
out of turn or in violation of applicable rules, preventing or attempting to prevent others 
who have the floor from speaking, preventing others from observing the meeting, 
entering into or remaining in an area of the meeting room that is not open to the 
public, or approaching the Council Dais without consent.  Any written communications 
addressed to the Council shall be delivered to the City Clerk for distribution to the 
Council. message to or contact with any member of the Council while the Council is 
in session shall be through the City Clerk. 

C. Enforcement of Decorum 

When the public demonstrates a lack of order and decorum, the presiding officer shall 
call for order and inform the person(s) that the conduct is violating the Rules of Order 
and Procedure and provide a warning to the person(s) to cease the disruptive 
behavior.  Should the person(s) fail to cease and desist the disruptive conduct, the 
presiding officer may call a five (5) minute recess to allow the disruptions to cease. 

If the meeting cannot be continued due to continued disruptive conduct, the presiding 
officer may have any law enforcement officer on duty remove or place any person 
who violates the order and decorum of the meeting under arrest and cause that 
person to be prosecuted under the provisions of applicable law. 

D. Precedence of Motions 

When a question or motion is before the Council, no motion shall be entertained 
except: 

4.1. To adjourn, 

5.2. To fix the hour of adjournment, 

6.3. To lay on the table, 

7.4. For the previous question, 

8.5. To postpone to a certain day, 

9.6. To refer, 

10.7. To amend, 

11.8. To substitute, and 

Commented [NML68]: Clarification that Clerk forwards 
written communications only, not verbal messages 

Commented [NML69]: SUPP 1 - clarification 

224



V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

34 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

12.9. To postpone indefinitely. 

These motions shall have precedence in order indicated.  Any such motion, except a 
motion to adjourn, amend, or substitute, shall be put to a vote without debate. 

E. Roberts Rules of Order 

Roberts Rules of Order have been adopted by the City Council and apply in all cases 
except the precedence of motions in Section V.D shall supercedesupersede. 

F. Rules of Debate 

1. Presiding Officer May Debate. 

The presiding officer may debate from the chair; subject only to such limitations 
of debate as are by these rules imposed on all members, and shall not be deprived 
of any of the rights and privileges as a member of the Council by reason of that 
person acting as the presiding officer. 

2. Getting the Floor - Improper References to be avoided. 
Members desiring to speak shall address the Chair, and upon recognition by the 
presiding officer, shall confine themself to the question under debate. 

3. Interruptions. 
A member, once recognized, shall not be interrupted when speaking unless it is 
to call a member to order, or as herein otherwise provided.  If a member, while 
speaking, were called to order, that member shall cease speaking until the 
question of order is determined, and, if in order, the member shall be permitted to 
proceed. 

4. Privilege of Closing Debate. 

The Mayor or Councilmembercouncil member moving the adoption of an 
ordinance or resolution shall have the privilege of closing the debate.  When a 
motion to call a question is passed, the Mayor or Councilmembercouncil member 
moving adoption of an ordinance, resolution or other action shall have three 
minutes to conclude the debate. 

5. Motion to Reconsider. 

A motion to reconsider any action taken by the Council may be made only during 
the same session on the day such action is taken.  It may be made either 
immediately during the same session, or at a recessed or adjourned session 
thereof.  Such motion must be made and seconded by a member one ofon the 
prevailing sides, and may be made at any time and have precedence over all other 
motions or while a member has the floor; it shall be debatable.  Nothing herein 
shall be construed to prevent any member of the Council from making or remaking 
the same or other motion at a subsequent meeting of the Council. 

Commented [NML70]: Motion to adjourn is not debatable 
pursuant to Roberts Rules 

Commented [NML71]: Must happen at the same meeting, 
not just the same day. 

Commented [NML72]: Inconsistent with Roberts Rules.  
Requiring a seconder to be on the prevailing side could 
infringe on a single member’s right to reconsider their vote. 

225



V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

35 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

6. Repeal or Amendment of Action Requiring a Vote of Two-Thirds of Council, 
or Greater. 

Any ordinance or resolution which is passed and which, as part of its terms, 
requires a vote of two-thirds of the Council or more in order to pass a motion 
pursuant to such an ordinance or resolution, shall require the vote of the same 
percent of the Council to repeal or amend the ordinance or resolution.

226



V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

36 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

G. Debate Limited 

1. Except as provided in Section V.F.b hereof, cConsideration of each matter coming 
before the Council shall be limited to 20 minutes from the time the matter is first 
taken up, at the end of which period consideration of such matter shall terminate 
and the matter shall be dropped to the foot of the agenda, immediately ahead of 
Good of the City Information Reports; provided that either of the following two not 
debatable motions shall be in order: 

a) A motion to extend consideration which, if passed, shall commence a new 
twenty-minute period for consideration; or 

b) If there are one or more motions on the floor, the a motion for the  previous 
question, which, if passed by a 2/3 vote, shall require an immediate vote 
on pending motions. 

2. The time limit set forth in subparagraph a.1 hereof shall not be applicable to any 
public hearing, public discussion, Council discussion or other especially set matter 
for which a period of time has been specified (in which case such specially set 
time shall be the limit for consideration) or which by applicable law (e.g. hearings 
of appeals, etc.), the matter must proceed to its conclusion. 

3. In the interest of expediting the business of the City, failure by the Chair or any 
Councilmembercouncil member to call attention to the expiration of the time 
allowed for consideration of a matter, by point of order or otherwise, shall 
constitute unanimous consent to the continuation of consideration of the matter 
beyond the allowed time; provided, however, that the Chair or any 
Councilmembercouncil member may at any time thereafter call attention to the 
expiration of the time allowed, in which case the Council shall proceed to the next 
item of business, unless one of the motions referred to in subparagraph Section 
a.1D hereof is made and is passed. 

H. Motion to Lay on Table 

A motion to lay on the table shall preclude all amendments or debate of the subject 
under consideration.  If the motion shall prevail, the consideration of the subject may 
be resumed only upon a motion of a member voting with the majority and with consent 
of two-thirds of the members present. 

I. Division of Question 

If the question contains two or more propositions, which can be divided, the presiding 
officer may, and upon request of a member shall, divide the same. 

J. Addressing the Council 

Any person desiring to address the Council shall first secure the permission of the 
presiding officer to do so.  Under the following headings of business, unless the 
presiding officer rules otherwise, any qualified and interested person shall have the 
right to address the Council in accordance with the following conditions and upon 
obtaining recognition by the presiding officer: 

1. Written Communications. 

Commented [NML73]: SUPP 1 – changes to b) added for 
clarification 

Commented [NML74]: Exactly restated later in same 
paragraph 

Commented [NML75]: Not sure what could be meant by 
“qualified” 

227



V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

37 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

Interested parties or their authorized representatives may address the Council by 
in the form of written communications in regard to matters of concern to them by 
submitting their written communications at the meeting, or prior to the meeting 
pursuant to the deadlines in Chapter III.C.4.  

Communications pertaining to an item on the agenda which are received by the 
City Clerk after the deadline for inclusion in the Council Agenda packet and 
through 5:00 p.m. seven calendar days prior to the meeting shall be compiled into 
a supplemental communications packet.  The supplemental communications 
packet shall be made available to the City Council, public and members of the 
press no later than five days prior to the meeting. 

Communications received by the City Clerk after the aforementioned deadline and 
by noon on the day of a Council meeting shall be duplicated by the City Clerk and 
submitted to the City Council at the meeting if related to an item which is on the 
agenda for that meeting.  Communications submitted at the Council meeting will 
be included in the public viewing binder and in the Clerk Department the day 
following the meeting.  

2. Public Hearings. 
Interested persons or their authorized representatives may address the Council 
by reading protests, petitions, or communications relating to matters then under 
consideration. 

3. Public Comment. 
Interested persons may address the Council on any issue concerning City 
business during the period assigned to Public Comment. 

K. Addressing the Council After Motion Made 

When a motion is pending before the Council, no person other than the Mayor or a 
Councilmembercouncil member shall address the Council without first securing the 
permission of the presiding officer or Council to do so.

Commented [NML76]: Described elsewhere and 
unneccesary here. 

228



VI. FACILITIES 

38 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

VI. FACILITIES 

A. Council Chamber Capacity 

Council Chamber aAttendance at council meetings shall be limited to the posted 
seating capacity of the meeting locationthereof.  Entrance to the City Hallmeeting 
location will be appropriately regulated by the City Manager on occasions when the 
Council Chamber capacity is likely to be exceeded.  While the Council is in session, 
members of the public shall not remain standing in the Council Chambermeeting 
room except to address the Council, and sitting on the floor shall not be permitted.  
The Council proceedings may be conveyed by loudspeaker to those who have been 
unable to enter the Council Chambers. 

B. Alternate Facilities for Council Meetings 

The City Council shall approve in advance a proposal that a Council meeting be held 
at a facility other than the City Council ChambersSchool District Board Room. 

If the City Manager has reason to anticipate that the attendance for a meeting will be 
substantially greater than the capacity of the City Council ChambersBoard Room and 
insufficient time exists to secure the approval of the City Council to hold the meeting 
at an alternate facility, the City Manager shall make arrangements for the use of a 
suitable alternate facility to which such meeting may be recessed and moved, if  the 
City Council authorizes the action. 

If a suitable alternate facility is not available, the City Council may reschedule the 
matter to a date when a suitable alternate facility will be available. 

Alternate facilities are to be selected from those facilities previously approved by the 
City Council as suitable for meetings away from the City Council ChambersBoard 
Room. 

C. Signs, Objects, and Symbolic Materials 

Objects and symbolic materials such as signs which do not have sticks or poles 
attached or otherwise create any fire or safety hazards will be allowed within the 
Council Chambermeeting location during Council meetings. 

D. Fire Safety 

Exits shall not be obstructed in any manner. Obstructions, including storage, shall not 
be placed in aisles or other exit ways. Hand carried items must be stored so that such 
items do not inhibit passage in aisles or other exit ways. Attendees are strictly 
prohibited from sitting in aisles and/ or exit ways. Exit ways shall not be used in any 
way that will present a hazardous condition. 

E. Overcrowding 

Admittance of persons beyond the approved capacity of a place of assembly is 
prohibited. When the Council Chambersmeeting location has have reached the 
posted maximum capacity, additional attendees shall be directed to the designated 
overflow area. 

 

Commented [NML77]: Updated to reflect new locations of 
meetings and to not be as specific with regards to meeting 
locations 

229



APPENDIX A. POLICY FOR NAMING AND RENAMING PUBLIC FACILITIES 

39 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

APPENDIX A. POLICY FOR NAMING AND RENAMING PUBLIC 
FACILITIES 

Purpose  
To establish a uniform policy regarding the naming and renaming of existing and future 
parks, streets, pathways and other public facilities. 

 
Objective 
B.A. To ensure that naming public facilities (such as parks, streets, recreation facilities, 

pathways, open spaces, public building, bridges or other structures) will enhance the 
values and heritage of the City of Berkeley and will be compatible with community 
interest.  

 
Section 1 – Lead Commission  
The City Council designates the following commissions as the ‘Lead Commissions’ in 
overseeing, evaluating, and ultimately advising the Council in any naming or renaming of a 
public facility.  The lead commission shall receive and coordinate comment and input from 
other Commissions and the public as appropriate.  
 
Board of Library Trustees 
 
Parks and Recreation Commission –Parks, recreation centers, camps, plazas and public 
open spaces  
 
Public Works Commission –Public buildings (other than recreation centers), streets and 
bridges or other structures in the public thoroughfare.  
 
Waterfront Commission –Public facilities within the area of the City known as the Waterfront, 
as described in BMC 3.36.060.B.  

 
Section 2 – General Policy  
A. Newly acquired or developed public facilities shall be named immediately after 

acquisition or development to ensure appropriate public identity.  
B. No public facility may be named for a living person, but this policy can be overridden with 

a 2/3 vote of the City Council. 
C. Public facilities that are renamed must follow the same criteria for naming new facilities.  

In addition, the historical significance and geographical reference of the established 
name should be considered when weighing and evaluating any name change.  

D. The City encourages the recognition of individuals for their service to the community in 
ways that include the naming of activities such as athletic events, cultural presentations, 
or annual festivals, which do not involve the naming or renaming of public facilities.   

E. Unless restricted by covenant, facilities named after an individual should not necessarily 
be considered a perpetual name.  

 
Section 3 – Criteria for Naming of Public Facilities  
When considering the naming of a new public facility or an unnamed portion or feature within 
an already named public facility (such as a room within the facility or a feature within an 
established park), or, the renaming of an existing public facility the following criteria shall be 
applied: 

230



APPENDIX A. POLICY FOR NAMING AND RENAMING PUBLIC FACILITIES 

40 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

 
A. Public Facilities are generally easier to identify by reference to adjacent street names, 

distinct geographic or environmental features, or primary use activity.  Therefore, the 
preferred practice is to give City-owned property a name of historical or geographical 
significance and to retain these names.  

B. No public facility may be named for a living person, but this policy can be overridden 
with a 2/3 vote of the City Council.  

C. The naming of a public facility or any parts thereof in recognition of an individual 
posthumously may only be considered if the individual had a positive effect on the 
community and has been deceased for more than 1 year.  

D. When a public facility provides a specific programmatic activity, it is preferred that the 
activity (e.g. skateboard park, baseball diamond) be included in the name of the park 
or facility.  

E. When public parks are located adjacent to elementary schools, a name that is the 
same as the adjacent school shall be considered.  

F. When considering the renaming of an existing public facility, in addition to applying 
criteria A-E above, proper weight should be given to the fact that: a name lends a site 
or property authenticity and heritage; existing names are presumed to have historic 
significance; and historic names give a community a sense of place and identity, 
continuing through time, and increases the sense of neighborhood and belonging.  

 
Section 4 –Naming Standards Involving a Major Contribution  
When a person, group or organization requests the naming or renaming of a publ ic facility, 
all of the following conditions shall be met: 
A. An honoree will have made a major contribution towards the acquisition and/or 

development costs of a public facility or a major contribution to the City.  
B. The honoree has a record of outstanding service to their community  
C. Conditions of any donation that specifies that name of a public facility, as part of an 

agreement or deed, must be approved by the City Council, after review by and upon 
recommendation of the City Manager.  

 
Section 5 –Procedures for Naming or Renaming of Public Facilities 
A. Any person or organization may make a written application to the City Manager 

requesting that a public facility or portion thereof, be named or renamed.  
1. Recommendations may also come directly of the City Boards or Commissions, 

the City Council, or City Staff. 
B. The City Manager shall refer the application to the appropriate lead commission as 

defined in Section 1 of the City’s policy on naming of public facilities, for that 
commission’s review, facilitation, and recommendation of disposition.  

1. The application shall contain the name or names of the persons or organization 
making the application and the reason for the requested naming or renaming.  

C. The lead commission shall review and consider the application, using the policies and 
criteria articulated to the City Policy on Naming and Renaming to make a 
recommendation to Council.  

1. All recommendations or suggestion will be given the same consideration without 
regard to the source of the nomination  

 
D. The lead commission shall hold a public hearing and notify the general public of any 

discussions regarding naming or renaming of a public facility.  

231



APPENDIX A. POLICY FOR NAMING AND RENAMING PUBLIC FACILITIES 

41 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

1. Commission action will be taking at the meeting following any public hearing on 
the naming or renaming.  

E. The commission’s recommendation shall be forwarded to Council for final consideration. 

 

The City of Berkeley Policy for Naming and Renaming Public Facilities was adopted by the 
Berkeley City Council at the regular meeting of January 31, 2012. 

232



APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

42 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEMS 

 
These guidelines are derived from the requirements for Agenda items listed in the 
Berkeley City Council Rules of Procedure and Order, Chapter III, Sections B(1) and 
(2), reproduced below.  In addition, Chapter III Section C(1)(a) of the Rules of 
Procedure and Order allows the Agenda CommitteeAgenda & Rules Committee to 
request that the Primary Authorauthor of an item provide “additional analysis” if the 
item as submitted evidences a “significant lack of background or supporting 
information” or “significant grammatical or readability issues.” 
 
These guidelines provide a more detailed and comprehensive overview of elements 
of a complete Council item. While not all elements would be applicable to every type 
of Agenda item, they are intended to prompt Aauthors to consider presenting items 
with as much relevant information and analysis as possible.   
 
Chapter III, Sections (B)(1) and (2) of Council Rules of Procedure and Order: 
 
3.2. Agenda items shall contain all relevant documentation, including the 

following as Applicable: 

a. A descriptive title that adequately informs the public of the subject matter and 

general nature of the item or report and action requested; 

b. Whether the matter is to be presented on the Consent Calendar or the Action 

Calendar or as a Report for Information; 

c. Recommendation of the City Manager, if applicable (these provisions shall 

not apply to Mayor and Council items.); 

d. Fiscal impacts of the recommendation; 

e. A description of the current situation and its effects; 

f. Background information as needed; 

g. Rationale for recommendation; 

h. Alternative actions considered; 

i. For awards of contracts; the abstract of bids and the Affirmative Action 

Program of the low bidder in those cases where such is required (these 

provisions shall not apply to Mayor and Council items.); 

j. Person or persons to contact for further information, with telephone number. 

If the author Primary Author of any report believes additional background 

information, beyond the basic report, is necessary to Council understanding 

of the subject, a separate compilation of such background information may 

be developed and copies will be available for Council and for public review in 

the City Clerk Department, and the City Clerk shall provide limited distribution 

of such background information depending upon quantity of pages to be 

duplicated. In such case the agenda item distributed with the packet shall so 

indicate. 

 

233



APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

43 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

Guidelines for City Council Items: 
 

1. Title 

2. Consent/Action/Information Calendar 

3. Recommendation 

4. Summary Statement/Current situation and its effects 

5. Background 

6. Review of Existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws 

7. Actions/Alternatives Considered 

8. Consultation/Outreach Overview and Results 

9. Rationale for Recommendation 

10. Implementation, Administration and Enforcement 

11. Environmental Sustainability 

12. Fiscal Impacts 

13. Outcomes and Evaluation 

14. Contact Information 

15. Attachments/Supporting Materials 

___________________________________________________ 
 

1. Title 

A descriptive title that adequately informs the public of the subject matter and 
general nature of the item or report and action requested. 
 

2. Consent/Action/Information Calendar 

Whether the matter is to be presented on the Consent Calendar or the Action 
Calendar or as a Report for Information. 
 

3. Recommendation 

Clear, succinct statement of action(s) to be taken.  Recommendations can be 
further detailed within the item, by specific reference.   
 
Common action options include: 

● Adopt first reading of ordinance  

● Adopt a resolution 

● Referral to the City Manager (City Manager decides if it is a short term 

referral or is placed on the RRV ranking list) 

● Direction to the City Manager (City Manager is directed to execute the 

recommendation right away, it is not placed on any referral list) 

● Referral to a Commission or to a Standing or Ad Hoc Council Committee 

● Referral to the budget process 

● Send letter of support 

● Accept, Approve, Modify or Reject a recommendation from a Commission or 

Committee 

● Designate members of the Council to perform some action 

234



APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

44 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

 

4. Summary Statement/ “Current situation and its effects” 

A short resume of the circumstances that give rise to the need for the 
recommended action(s).   

● Briefly state the opportunity/problem/concern that has been identified, and 

the proposed solution.  

● Example (fictional):  

Winter rains are lasting longer than expected.  Berkeley’s winter shelters are 

poised to close in three weeks, but forecasts suggest rain for another two 

months.  If they do not remain open until the end of the rainy season, 

hundreds of people will be left in the rain 24/7.  Therefore, this item seeks 

authorization to keep Berkeley’s winter shelters open until the end of April, 

and refers to the Budget Process $40,000 to cover costs of an additional two 

months of shelter operations. 

 
5. Background 

A full discussion of the history, circumstances and concerns to be addressed by the 
item.   

● For the above fictional example, Background would include information and 

data about the number and needs of homeless individuals in Berkeley, the 

number and availability of permanent shelter beds that meet their needs, the 

number of winter shelter beds that would be lost with closure, the impacts of 

such closure on this population, the weather forecasts, etc. 

 
6. Review of Existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws 

Review, identify and discuss relevant/applicable Plans, Programs, Policies and 
Laws, and how the proposed actions conform with, compliment, are supported by, 
differ from or run contrary to them.  What gaps were found that need to be filled?  
What existing policies, programs, plans and laws need to be 
changed/supplemented/improved/repealed?  What is missing altogether that needs 
to be addressed? 

 
Review of all pertinent/applicable sections of:  

● The City Charter 

● Berkeley Municipal Code 

● Administrative Regulations 

● Council Resolutions 

● Staff training manuals 

Review of all applicable City Plans: 
● The General Plan 

● Area Plans  

● The Climate Action Plan 

● Resilience Plan 

● Equity Plan 

235



APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

45 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted November 

12January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

● Capital Improvements Plan 

● Zero Waste Plan 

● Bike Plan 

● Pedestrian Plan 

● Other relevant precedents and plans 

  Review of the City’s Strategic Plan 
Review of similar legislation previously introduced/passed by Council 
Review of County, State and Federal laws/policies/programs/plans, if 
applicable 
 

7. Actions/Alternatives Considered 

● What solutions/measures have other jurisdictions adopted that serve as 

models/cautionary tales? 

● What solutions/measures are recommended by advocates, experts, 

organizations? 

● What is the range of actions considered, and what are some of their major 

pros and cons? 

● Why were other solutions not as feasible/advisable? 

 
8. Consultation/Outreach Overview and Results 

● Review/list external and internal stakeholders that were consulted 

○ External: constituents, communities, neighborhood organizations, 

businesses and not for profits, advocates, people with lived 

experience, faith organizations, industry groups, people/groups that 

might have concerns about the item, etc. 

○ Internal: staff who would implement policies, the City Manager and/or 

deputy CM, Department Heads, City Attorney, Clerk, etc. 

● What reports, articles, books, websites and other materials were consulted?   

● What was learned from these sources?   

● What changes or approaches did they advocate for that were accepted or 

rejected? 

 
9. Rationale for Recommendation 

A clear and concise statement as to whether the item proposes actions that:  
● Conform to, clarify or extend existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws 

● Change/Amend existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws in minor ways 

● Change/Amend existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws in major ways 

● Create an exception to existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws 

● Reverse/go contrary to or against existing Plans, Programs, Policies and 

Laws 

 
Argument/summary of argument in support of recommended actions. The argument 
likely has already been made via the information and analysis already presented, 

236



APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

46 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted January 29, 2019 

City of Berkeley 

but should be presented/restated/summarized. Plus, further elaboration of terms for 
recommendations, if any.   
 

10. Implementation, Administration and Enforcement 

Discuss how the recommended action(s) would be implemented, administered and 
enforced. What staffing (internal or via contractors/consultants) and 
materials/facilities are likely required for implementation? 
 

11. Environmental Sustainability 

Discuss the impacts of the recommended action(s), if any, on the environment and 
the recommendation’s positive and/or negative implications with respect to the 
City’s Climate Action, Resilience, and other sustainability goals. 
 

12. Fiscal Impacts 

Review the recommended action’s potential to generate funds or savings for the 
City in the short and long-term, as well as the potential direct and indirect costs.   
 

13. Outcomes and Evaluation 

State the specific outcomes expected, if any (i.e., “it is expected that 100 homeless 
people will be referred to housing every year”) and what reporting or evaluation is 
recommended. 
 

14. Contact Information 

 

15. Attachments/Supporting Materials 

 

237



238



239

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
10



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



Cheryl Davila
Councilmember 
District 2 CONSENT CALENDAR

December 10, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Councilmember Cheryl Davila

Subject: Updating Berkeley Telecom Ordinances and BMC codes

RECOMMENDATION
Direct the City Manager to adopt a resolution to include the attached sample language and 
contained hyperlinked references to update the City’s Telecom Ordinances and BMC 
codes. 

BACKGROUND
For several months now, the community has been concerned about the potential 
installation of 5G technology and small cells throughout the city. The technology has not 
been thoroughly tested concerning radiation.

Some City of Berkeley communities bear the brunt of health-related impacts caused by 
industrial and other activities. The California Environmental Protection Agency has identified 
various census tracts within the City as disadvantaged communities disproportionately 
burdened by and vulnerable to multiple sources of pollution.

It is important now more than ever, to update the City’s Telecom Ordinances to protect the 
health and safety of our residents that cover the following areas:

1. FCC CLAUSE: Include a clause voiding relevant sections of the ordinance, or requiring 
modification, in the event of a regulatory change or overturning of the FCC Order. (see report by 
Next Century Cities)  Laws, permits, and re-certifications need to be CONDITIONAL, so that 
they may be revoked or modified if out of compliance or if/when federal law is modified. (Fairfax, 
Sonoma City) Also include a SEVERABILITY clause.

2. PERMITS  
2.a. Conditional Use Permits: Maintain that each wireless facility requires a Conditional Use 
Permit (Planning Dept, ZAB, or Public Works) followed by an encroachment permit
2.b. Significant Gap in coverage: Require that a significant gap in coverage be proven by 
applicant before approval of a wireless antenna and confirmed by an independent engineer.* 
(Calabasas, Old Palos Verdes)
Least Intrusive Methods:  Require the least intrusive methods to fill any gaps for small cells 
and other wireless facilities.  A justification study which includes the rationale for selecting the 
proposed use; a detailed explanation of the coverage gap that the proposed use would serve; 
and how the proposed use is the least intrusive means for the applicant to provide service. Said 
study shall include all existing structures and/or alternative sites evaluated for potential 
installation of the proposed facility and why said alternatives are not a viable option. (Old Palos 
Verdes) An independent* engineer shall confirm, or not.

Page 1 of 11

251

https://nextcenturycities.org/wp-content/uploads/Guide-to-FCC-Small-Cell-Order.pdf
https://nextcenturycities.org/wp-content/uploads/Guide-to-FCC-Small-Cell-Order.pdf
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=


2.c. Radio-frequency Data Report: Require a thorough radio-frequency (RF) data report as 
part of the permit submittal for consultants. For all applications, require both an RF Compliance 
Report signed by a registered, independent professional engineer, and a supporting RF Data 
Request Form. (Calabasas, Palos Verdes, Suisun City, Sonoma City)  The independent* 
engineer will be hired by the City of Berkeley and billed to the applicant.
2.d. Mock-up, Construction Drawings, Site Survey, Photo Simulations: Require full-size 
mock-up of proposed Small Cell Facilities (SCF) and other pertinent information in order to 
adequately consider potential impacts. (Larkspur, Calabasas, Palos Verdes.  Also see Boulder, 
CO Report) Require Balloon Tests. (Town of Hempstead NY 2013) 
2.e. Public notification: Telecom related Planning Commission, Public Works, and Zoning 
Adjustment Board hearings shall be publicized in the most widely read local newspapers and 
local online news sources* and on the City website no less than 30 days prior to the hearing or 
meeting.  No less than 30 days prior, a U.S. 1st class mail shall be sent to all addresses within 
3,000 feet of the proposed facilities.  The outside of the envelope shall be printed with “Urgent 
Notice of Public Hearing.”  Due to the “shot clock”, City requires applicants to hold a publicly 
noticed meeting two weeks prior to submitting an application within the affected neighborhood.  
Applicants mail all affected residents and businesses date, time, and location of hearings at 
least two weeks prior.  The applicant pays associated costs including mailings and meeting 
location rent.
Community Meeting:  Applicant is required to [publicize in local newspapers and local online 
news sources* and] hold a community meeting at least two weeks prior to the hearing on the 
use permit. (San Anselmo, Palos Verdes)  Applicants shall mail all affected residents and 
businesses date, time, and location of hearings at least two weeks prior, 1st class etc. [as in 
2.e].
 2.f. Notification:  Notify property owners, residents, tenants, business owners, and workers 
within 3000 feet of a proposed wireless installation within one week of application submittal and 
again within one week of permit approval. 1st class etc. [as in 2.e].
2.g. Independent Expert* The City shall retain an independent, qualified consultant to review 
any application for a permit for a wireless telecommunications facility. The review is intended to 
be a review of technical aspects of the proposed wireless telecommunications facility and shall 
address any or all of the following: xxxx (Old Palos Verdes)  Paid by applicant (San Anselmo) 
2.h. Trees: No facility shall be permitted to be installed in the drip line of any tree in the right-of-
way.  (Old Palos Verdes, 15’ in Los Altos)  (See Berkeley’s Heritage Tree ordinance.)
2.i. Transfer of Permit: The permittee shall not transfer the permit to any person prior to the 
completion of the construction of the facility covered by the permit, unless and until the 
transferee of the permit has submitted the security instrument required by section 
12.18.080(B)(5). (Palos Verdes)
2.j. General Liability Insurance: To protect the City, the permittee shall obtain, pay for and 
maintain, in full force and effect until the facility approved by the permit is removed in its entirety 
from the public right-of-way, an insurance policy or policies of commercial general liability 
insurance, with minimum limits of two million dollars for each occurrence and four million dollars 
in the aggregate, that fully protects the City from claims and suits for bodily injury and property 
damage. The insurance must name the City and its elected and appointed council members, 
boards, commissions, officers, officials, agents, consultants, employees and volunteers as 
additional named insureds, be issued by an insurer admitted in the State of California with a 
rating of at least a A:VII in the latest edition of A.M. Best’s Insurance Guide, and include an 
endorsement providing that the policies cannot be canceled or reduced except with 30 days 
prior written notice to the city, except for cancellation due to nonpayment of premium…. (Old 
Palos Verdes, Fairfax, Newark.  San Anselmo has an indemnification clause.)
2.k. Attorneys’ Fees: The Permittee is required to pay any/all costs of legal action.  (Suisun 
City)
2.l. Speculative Equipment: Pre-approving wireless equipment or other alleged improvements 
that the applicant does not presently intend to install, but may wish to install at an undetermined 
future time, does not serve the public interest. The City shall not pre-approve telecom 
equipment or wireless facilities. (Fairfax, Old Palos Verdes, Sebastopol)

Page 2 of 11

252

https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/boulder-colorado-small-cell-ordinance-legal-opinion-policy-report-.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/boulder-colorado-small-cell-ordinance-legal-opinion-policy-report-.pdf
https://ecode360.com/15516264
https://www.townofsananselmo.org/DocumentCenter/View/23883/Wireless-Policy-in-effect-September-26-2018
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.townofsananselmo.org/DocumentCenter/View/23883/Wireless-Policy-in-effect-September-26-2018
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.losaltosca.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/page/48421/resolution_no._2019-35.pdf
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
http://www.newark.org/home/showdocument?id=4629
https://www.townofsananselmo.org/DocumentCenter/View/23883/Wireless-Policy-in-effect-September-26-2018
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us/getattachment/4371a3fe-b28f-4e19-a4b2-bedd0073ab92/Ordinance-Number-11-23-TELECOMMUNICATIONS-FACILITIES-AND-MINOR-ANTENNAS-Appvd-5-7-2019.pdf.aspx?lang=en-US&ext=.pdf


2.m. Citizens may appeal decisions made. (San Anselmo)

3. ACCESS Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): All facilities shall be in compliance with 
the ADA. (New Palos Verdes, Fairfax, Sebastopol, Mill Valley, Sonoma City, Suisun City) 
Electromagnetic Sensitivity (EMS) is a disabling characteristic, recognized by the Federal 
Access Board since 2002. The main treatment for this condition is avoidance of exposure to 
wireless radiation. Under the 1990 Americans with Disabilities Act, people who suffer from 
exposure to Electromagnetic Fields (EMF) are part of a protected disabled class under Title 42 
U.S. Code § 12101 et seq. (Heed Berkeley’s pioneering disability rights laws and Berkeley’s 
Precautionary Principle ordinance NO. 6,911-N.S "to promote the health, safety, and general 
welfare of the community.")
 
4. SETBACKS:
4.a. Prohibited Zones for Small Cells: Prohibits small cell telecommunication facilities in 
residential zones and multi-family zoning districts (Calabasas, Mill Valley, Los Altos, Sonoma 
City)
4.b. Preferred or Disfavored Locations: In addition to residential areas, designate areas 
where cell towers are disfavored and not permitted, i.e. near schools, residential areas, city 
buildings, sensitive habitats, on ridge lines, public parks, Historic Overlay Districts,  in open 
spaces or where they are favored i.e. commercial zoning areas, industrial zoning areas. 
(Calabasas, Sebastopol, Boulder Report)
4.c. Disfavored Location: Small cell installations are not permitted in close proximity to 
residences, particularly near sleeping and living areas. Viable and defendable setbacks will vary 
based on zoning. (ART ordinance)  1500 foot minimum setback from residences that are not in 
residential districts!
4.d. 1500 Foot Setback from other small cell installations:  Locate small cell installations no 
less than 1500 feet away from the Permittee or any Lessee’s nearest other small cell 
installation.  (Calabasas, Petaluma, Fairfax, Mill Valley,  Suisun City, Palos Verdes, Sebastopol 
San Ramon, Sonoma City,-Boulder Report)
4.e. 1500 Foot Minimum Setback from any educational facility, child/elder/healthcare facility, 
or park. (ART Ordinance)  The California Supreme Court ruled on April 4, 2019 that San 
Francisco may regulate based on "negative health consequences, or safety concerns that may 
come from telecommunication deployment.” (Sebastopol forbids potential threat to public health, 
migratory birds, or endangered species, also in combination with other facilities.  Refer to 
Berkeley’s Precautionary Principle Ordinance)
4.f. 500 Foot Minimum Setback from any business/workplace (Petaluma, Suisun City)
 
5. LOCATION PREFERENCE:
5.a. Order of preference: The order of preference for the location of small cell installations in 
the City, from most preferred to least preferred, is: (1) Industrial zone (2) Commercial zone (3) 
Mixed commercial and residential zone (4) Residential zone (ART Ordinance, New Palos 
Verdes) [Residential zone ban]
5.b. Fall Zone: The proposed small cell installation shall have an adequate fall zone to minimize 
the possibility of damage or injury resulting from pole collapse or failure, ice fall or debris fall, 
and to avoid or minimize all other impacts upon adjoining property
5.c. Private Property: If a facility (such as a street light pole, street signal pole, utility pole, utility 
cabinet, vault, or cable conduit) will be located on or in the property of someone other than the 
owner of the facility, the applicant shall provide a duly executed and notarized authorization 
from the property owner(s) authorizing the placement of the facility on or in the property owner’s 
property. (Palos Verdes) [Many Berkeleyans do not want wireless antennas allowed on private 
property.  If a permit is considered for private property, not just the property owners but all those 
who spend time or own/rent property within 1500 feet must be notified immediately of how they 
may weigh in, and be informed of the decision immediately with possibility of appeal if a permit 
is granted.]

Page 3 of 11

253

https://www.townofsananselmo.org/DocumentCenter/View/23883/Wireless-Policy-in-effect-September-26-2018
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/13741/RPV%E2%80%94ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-April-2-2019
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
https://www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us/getattachment/4371a3fe-b28f-4e19-a4b2-bedd0073ab92/Ordinance-Number-11-23-TELECOMMUNICATIONS-FACILITIES-AND-MINOR-ANTENNAS-Appvd-5-7-2019.pdf.aspx?lang=en-US&ext=.pdf
http://cityofmillvalley.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1290&meta_id=59943
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://www.access-board.gov/research/completed-research/indoor-environmental-quality/introduction
https://www.access-board.gov/research/completed-research/indoor-environmental-quality/introduction
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2010-title42/pdf/USCODE-2010-title42-chap126-sec12102.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2010-title42/pdf/USCODE-2010-title42-chap126-sec12102.pdf
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
http://cityofmillvalley.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1290&meta_id=59943
https://www.losaltosca.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/page/48421/resolution_no._2019-35.pdf
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us/getattachment/4371a3fe-b28f-4e19-a4b2-bedd0073ab92/Ordinance-Number-11-23-TELECOMMUNICATIONS-FACILITIES-AND-MINOR-ANTENNAS-Appvd-5-7-2019.pdf.aspx?lang=en-US&ext=.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/boulder-colorado-small-cell-ordinance-legal-opinion-policy-report-.pdf
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://www.petaluma360.com/news/8567587-181/petaluma-sets-cell-phone-tower
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
http://cityofmillvalley.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1290&meta_id=59943
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us/getattachment/4371a3fe-b28f-4e19-a4b2-bedd0073ab92/Ordinance-Number-11-23-TELECOMMUNICATIONS-FACILITIES-AND-MINOR-ANTENNAS-Appvd-5-7-2019.pdf.aspx?lang=en-US&ext=.pdf
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/boulder-colorado-small-cell-ordinance-legal-opinion-policy-report-.pdf
https://scientists4wiredtech.com/2019-ca-supreme-court-decision-t-mobile-v-san-francisco/
https://scientists4wiredtech.com/2019-ca-supreme-court-decision-t-mobile-v-san-francisco/
https://www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us/getattachment/4371a3fe-b28f-4e19-a4b2-bedd0073ab92/Ordinance-Number-11-23-TELECOMMUNICATIONS-FACILITIES-AND-MINOR-ANTENNAS-Appvd-5-7-2019.pdf.aspx?lang=en-US&ext=.pdf
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/model-ordinance-americans-for-responsible-technology-2019.pdf
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/13741/RPV%E2%80%94ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-April-2-2019
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/13741/RPV%E2%80%94ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-April-2-2019


5.d. Endangerment, interference: No person shall install, use or maintain any facility which in 
whole or in part rests upon, in or over any public right-of-way, when such installation, use or 
maintenance endangers or is reasonably likely to endanger the safety of persons or property, or 
when such site or location is used for public utility purposes, public transportation purposes or 
other governmental use, or when such facility unreasonably interferes with or unreasonably 
impedes the flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic including any legally parked or stopped 
vehicle, ingress into or egress from any residence or place of business, the use of poles, posts, 
traffic signs or signals, hydrants, mailboxes, permitted sidewalk dining, permitted street furniture 
or other objects permitted at or near said location.
 
6. TESTING:
6.a. Random Testing for RF Compliance: The City shall employ a qualified, independent * RF 
engineer to conduct an annual random and unannounced test of the Permittee’s small cell and 
other wireless installations located within the City to certify their compliance with all Federal 
Communications Commission (FCC) RF emission limits. The reasonable cost of such tests shall 
be paid by the Permittee. (Fairfax, (ART, Old Berkeley.  Suisun City requires annual inspections 
and testing.)
6.b. RF/EMF Testing: Berkeley’s current law states that the City Manager “may” require 
independent testing of telecom equipment.  Change “may” to “shall” and delete the word 
“Manager” so that, if s/he does not find time to hire an independent expert, other City staff or a 
Council Committee may do so.  The law needs to require independent testing of all equipment, 
unannounced in advance, twice annually, with permittees required to reimburse the City for 
costs and to pay a deposit in advance.  Dates, addresses, and results of testing shall be posted 
on the City website and published in local media. **  [Montgomery County Maryland studied RF 
radiation levels from small cells and found that FCC exposure  levels were exceeded within 11 
feet.]
6.c. Violation of Compliance Notification: In the event that such independent tests reveal that 
any small cell installation(s) owned or operated by Permittee or its Lessees, singularly or in the 
aggregate, is emitting RF radiation in excess of FCC exposure standards as they pertain to the 
general public, the City shall notify the Permittee and all residents living within 1500 feet of the 
installation(s) of the violation(s), and the Permittee shall have 48 hours to bring the 
installation(s) into compliance. Failure to bring the installation(s) into compliance shall result in 
the forfeiture of all or part of the Compliance Bond, and the City shall have the right to require 
the removal of such installation(s), as the City in its sole discretion may determine is in the 
public interest. (ART)
6.d. Non-acceptance of Applications: Where such annual recertification has not been properly 
or timely submitted, or equipment no longer in use has not been removed within the required 
30-day period, no further applications for wireless installations will be accepted by the City until 
such time as the annual re-certification has been submitted and all fees and fines paid. (ART)

7. RIGHT TO KNOW: The City shall inform the affected public via website, local news 
publications **, and US 1st class mail (with topic prominently announced in red on outside of 
envelope) of Master Licensing Agreement between the City and telecom, Design Standards for 
Small Cells or other wireless equipment, other telecom agreements, and notification within 2 
business days of receiving permit applications, calendaring related hearings/meetings, and 
approving permits.  Notice shall include location and date of expected installations, description 
of the appeals process, and dates of installations.  A map featuring all telecom equipment shall 
be on the City website and available to residents who request it at 2180 Milvia St.  
Applicants/Permittees, who are profiting from using Berkeley’s public right of way, will reimburse 
City for the reasonable cost of mailings, Town Halls, and staff to handle telecom applications, 
public notification, inspections, recertifications, etc.
 
8. RECERTIFICATION:
8.a. Annual Recertification: Each year, commencing on the first anniversary of the issuance of 
the permit, the Permittee shall submit to the City an affidavit which shall list all active small cell 

Page 4 of 11

254

https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/model-ordinance-americans-for-responsible-technology-2019.pdf
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
http://smallcellsinmontgomerycounty.blogspot.com/2018/10/montgomery-county-radiation.html
http://smallcellsinmontgomerycounty.blogspot.com/2018/10/montgomery-county-radiation.html
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/model-ordinance-americans-for-responsible-technology-2019.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/model-ordinance-americans-for-responsible-technology-2019.pdf


wireless installations it owns within the City by location, certifying that (1) each active small cell 
installation is covered by liability insurance in the amount of $2,000,000 per installation, naming 
the City as an additional insured; and (2) each active installation has been inspected for safety 
and found to be in sound working condition and in compliance with all federal safety regulations 
concerning RF exposure limits. (ART)  Any installation that is out of compliance will be promptly 
removed; the permit for that installation will be terminated, with all associated expenses paid by 
the applicant.
8.b. Recertification Fees: Recertification fees will be calculated each year by the City.  They 
will be based on the anticipated costs of City for meeting the compliance requirements put in 
place by this ordinance. The total costs will be divided by the number of permits and assigned to 
the permit-holders as part of the recertification process
8.c. Noise Restrictions (Sonoma City): Each wireless telecommunications facility shall be 
operated in such a manner so as not to cause any disruption to the community's peaceful 
enjoyment of the city.
o Non-polluting backup generators shall only be operated during periods of power 
outages, and shall not be tested on weekends, holidays, or between the hours of 5:00 p.m. and 
9:00 a.m.
o At no time shall any facility be permitted to exceed 45 DBA and the noise levels 
specified in Municipal Code XXX.  (Los Altos)
·         8.d. Noise Complaints: If a nearby property owner registers a noise complaint, the City 
shall forward the same to the permittee. Said complaint shall be reviewed and evaluated by the 
applicant. The permittee shall have 10 business days to file a written response regarding the 
complaint which shall include any applicable remedial measures. If the City determines the 
complaint is valid and the applicant has not taken steps to minimize the noise, the City may hire 
a consultant to study, examine and evaluate the noise complaint and the permittee shall pay the 
fee. The matter shall be reviewed by City staff. If sound proofing or other sound attenuation 
measures are required to bring the project into compliance with the Code, the City may impose 
conditions on the project to achieve said objective.  (Old Palos Verdes, Calabasas)  

9.a. AESTHETICS and UNDERGROUNDING:  At every site where transmitting antennas are to 
be placed, all ancillary equipment shall be placed in an underground chamber beneath the 
street constructed by the Permittee. (Calabasas, Mill Valley, Petaluma) The chamber shall 
include battery power sufficient to provide a minimum of 72 hours of electricity to the ancillary 
equipment. ***
·         Permittee is responsible for placing on the pole two signs with blinking lights, with design 
approved by City, each in the opposite direction, to inform people walking on the sidewalk, what 
is installed on the pole.  Should a sign be damaged, Permittee shall replace it within 5 business 
days. (Town of Hempstead NY required a 4 foot warning sign on each pole.)
 
9.b. Aesthetic Requirements: According to the Baller Stokes & Lide law firm, some of the 
aesthetic considerations that local governments may consider include: ****
o Size of antennas, equipment boxes, and cabling;
o Painting of attachments to match mounting structures;
o Consistency with the character of historic neighborhoods;
o Aesthetic standards for residential neighborhoods, including “any minimum setback from 
dwellings, parks, or playgrounds and minimum setback from dwellings, parks, or playgrounds; 
maximum structure heights; or limitations on the use of small, decorative structures as mounting 
locations.” (Boulder Report)
 
“Independent” means:  The RF engineering company has never provided services to a 
telecom corporation, and the company’s employee who tests exposure levels has also never 
provided services to a telecom corporation. 
 

Page 5 of 11

255

https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/model-ordinance-americans-for-responsible-technology-2019.pdf
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://www.losaltosca.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/page/48421/resolution_no._2019-35.pdf
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
http://cityofmillvalley.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1290&meta_id=59943
https://www.petaluma360.com/news/8567587-181/petaluma-sets-cell-phone-tower
https://ecode360.com/15516264
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/boulder-colorado-small-cell-ordinance-legal-opinion-policy-report-.pdf


Right to Know - Publish on City website, in online local news: Berkeley Daily Planet, 
Berkeleyside, and local newspapers: Berkeley Voice, Berkeley Times (2019.  Update as 
needed)
 
*** Undergrounding - A single shielded multi-wire cable from the underground chamber shall 
be used to transmit radiation to the antennae for the purpose of transmitting data.  If the pole is 
of hollow metal, the cable shall be inside the pole; if the pole is solid wood, the cable can be 
attached to the pole.  Installation shall include its own analogue electricity meter and Permittee 
shall pay the electrical utility a monthly charge for the amount of electricity used.

Except during construction, or essential maintenance, automobiles and trucks, of an allowed 
weight, shall be allowed to park at the site of the underground chamber.  If maintenance is 
required within the underground chamber the Permittees shall place a notice on the parked car 
or truck, to be moved within 24 hours.  If no vehicle is parked on top of the underground 
chamber the Permitted shall place a No Parking sign for up to 24 hours.
 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
It is imperative to protect the most vulnerable and all our citizens from these hazards. .

CONTACT PERSON
Cheryl Davila, 
Councilmember, District 2
510.981.7120
cdavila@cityofberkeley.info

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution

RESOLUTION NO. XXXX

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BERKELEY SUPPORTING 
AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY’S TELECOM ORDINANCES

WHEREAS, communities in the City of Berkeley are disadvantaged and disproportionately bear 
the brunt of health-related impacts caused by industrial and other activities. The California 
Environmental Protection Agency has identified various census tracts within the City of 
Richmond as disadvantaged communities disproportionately burdened by and vulnerable to 
multiple sources of pollution

Now, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley support 
amendments to the City Telecom Ordinances to protect the health and safety of our residents.

Page 6 of 11

256

mailto:cdavila@cityofberkeley.info


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council directed the City Attorney to prepare any draft 
ordinances using the attached sample language and hyperlink references to update the City’s 
Telecom Ordinances:

1. FCC CLAUSE: Include a clause voiding relevant sections of the ordinance, or requiring 
modification, in the event of a regulatory change or overturning of the FCC Order. (see report by 
Next Century Cities)  Laws, permits, and re-certifications need to be CONDITIONAL, so that 
they may be revoked or modified if out of compliance or if/when federal law is modified. (Fairfax, 
Sonoma City) Also include a SEVERABILITY clause.

2. PERMITS  
2.a. Conditional Use Permits: Maintain that each wireless facility requires a Conditional Use 
Permit (Planning Dept, ZAB, or Public Works) followed by an encroachment permit
2.b. Significant Gap in coverage: Require that a significant gap in coverage be proven by 
applicant before approval of a wireless antenna and confirmed by an independent engineer.* 
(Calabasas, Old Palos Verdes)
Least Intrusive Methods:  Require the least intrusive methods to fill any gaps for small cells 
and other wireless facilities.  A justification study which includes the rationale for selecting the 
proposed use; a detailed explanation of the coverage gap that the proposed use would serve; 
and how the proposed use is the least intrusive means for the applicant to provide service. Said 
study shall include all existing structures and/or alternative sites evaluated for potential 
installation of the proposed facility and why said alternatives are not a viable option. (Old Palos 
Verdes) An independent* engineer shall confirm, or not.
2.c. Radio-frequency Data Report: Require a thorough radio-frequency (RF) data report as 
part of the permit submittal for consultants. For all applications, require both an RF Compliance 
Report signed by a registered, independent professional engineer, and a supporting RF Data 
Request Form. (Calabasas, Palos Verdes, Suisun City, Sonoma City)  The independent* 
engineer will be hired by the City of Berkeley and billed to the applicant.
2.d. Mock-up, Construction Drawings, Site Survey, Photo Simulations: Require full-size 
mock-up of proposed Small Cell Facilities (SCF) and other pertinent information in order to 
adequately consider potential impacts. (Larkspur, Calabasas, Palos Verdes.  Also see Boulder, 
CO Report) Require Balloon Tests. (Town of Hempstead NY 2013) 
2.e. Public notification: Telecom related Planning Commission, Public Works, and Zoning 
Adjustment Board hearings shall be publicized in the most widely read local newspapers and 
local online news sources* and on the City website no less than 30 days prior to the hearing or 
meeting.  No less than 30 days prior, a U.S. 1st class mail shall be sent to all addresses within 
3,000 feet of the proposed facilities.  The outside of the envelope shall be printed with “Urgent 
Notice of Public Hearing.”  Due to the “shot clock”, City requires applicants to hold a publicly 
noticed meeting two weeks prior to submitting an application within the affected neighborhood.  
Applicants mail all affected residents and businesses date, time, and location of hearings at 
least two weeks prior.  The applicant pays associated costs including mailings and meeting 
location rent.
Community Meeting:  Applicant is required to [publicize in local newspapers and local online 
news sources* and] hold a community meeting at least two weeks prior to the hearing on the 
use permit. (San Anselmo, Palos Verdes)  Applicants shall mail all affected residents and 
businesses date, time, and location of hearings at least two weeks prior, 1st class etc. [as in 
2.e].
 2.f. Notification:  Notify property owners, residents, tenants, business owners, and workers 
within 3000 feet of a proposed wireless installation within one week of application submittal and 
again within one week of permit approval. 1st class etc. [as in 2.e].
2.g. Independent Expert* The City shall retain an independent, qualified consultant to review 
any application for a permit for a wireless telecommunications facility. The review is intended to 
be a review of technical aspects of the proposed wireless telecommunications facility and shall 
address any or all of the following: xxxx (Old Palos Verdes)  Paid by applicant (San Anselmo) 

Page 7 of 11

257

https://nextcenturycities.org/wp-content/uploads/Guide-to-FCC-Small-Cell-Order.pdf
https://nextcenturycities.org/wp-content/uploads/Guide-to-FCC-Small-Cell-Order.pdf
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/boulder-colorado-small-cell-ordinance-legal-opinion-policy-report-.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/boulder-colorado-small-cell-ordinance-legal-opinion-policy-report-.pdf
https://ecode360.com/15516264
https://www.townofsananselmo.org/DocumentCenter/View/23883/Wireless-Policy-in-effect-September-26-2018
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.townofsananselmo.org/DocumentCenter/View/23883/Wireless-Policy-in-effect-September-26-2018


2.h. Trees: No facility shall be permitted to be installed in the drip line of any tree in the right-of-
way.  (Old Palos Verdes, 15’ in Los Altos)  (See Berkeley’s Heritage Tree ordinance.)
2.i. Transfer of Permit: The permittee shall not transfer the permit to any person prior to the 
completion of the construction of the facility covered by the permit, unless and until the 
transferee of the permit has submitted the security instrument required by section 
12.18.080(B)(5). (Palos Verdes)
2.j. General Liability Insurance: To protect the City, the permittee shall obtain, pay for and 
maintain, in full force and effect until the facility approved by the permit is removed in its entirety 
from the public right-of-way, an insurance policy or policies of commercial general liability 
insurance, with minimum limits of two million dollars for each occurrence and four million dollars 
in the aggregate, that fully protects the City from claims and suits for bodily injury and property 
damage. The insurance must name the City and its elected and appointed council members, 
boards, commissions, officers, officials, agents, consultants, employees and volunteers as 
additional named insureds, be issued by an insurer admitted in the State of California with a 
rating of at least a A:VII in the latest edition of A.M. Best’s Insurance Guide, and include an 
endorsement providing that the policies cannot be canceled or reduced except with 30 days 
prior written notice to the city, except for cancellation due to nonpayment of premium…. (Old 
Palos Verdes, Fairfax, Newark.  San Anselmo has an indemnification clause.)
2.k. Attorneys’ Fees: The Permittee is required to pay any/all costs of legal action.  (Suisun 
City)
2.l. Speculative Equipment: Pre-approving wireless equipment or other alleged improvements 
that the applicant does not presently intend to install, but may wish to install at an undetermined 
future time, does not serve the public interest. The City shall not pre-approve telecom 
equipment or wireless facilities. (Fairfax, Old Palos Verdes, Sebastopol)
2.m. Citizens may appeal decisions made. (San Anselmo)

3. ACCESS Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): All facilities shall be in compliance with 
the ADA. (New Palos Verdes, Fairfax, Sebastopol, Mill Valley, Sonoma City, Suisun City) 
Electromagnetic Sensitivity (EMS) is a disabling characteristic, recognized by the Federal 
Access Board since 2002. The main treatment for this condition is avoidance of exposure to 
wireless radiation. Under the 1990 Americans with Disabilities Act, people who suffer from 
exposure to Electromagnetic Fields (EMF) are part of a protected disabled class under Title 42 
U.S. Code § 12101 et seq. (Heed Berkeley’s pioneering disability rights laws and Berkeley’s 
Precautionary Principle ordinance NO. 6,911-N.S "to promote the health, safety, and general 
welfare of the community.")
 
4. SETBACKS:
4.a. Prohibited Zones for Small Cells: Prohibits small cell telecommunication facilities in 
residential zones and multi-family zoning districts (Calabasas, Mill Valley, Los Altos, Sonoma 
City, Elk Grove Ca)
4.b. Preferred or Disfavored Locations: In addition to residential areas, designate areas 
where cell towers are disfavored and not permitted, i.e. near schools, residential areas, city 
buildings, sensitive habitats, on ridge lines, public parks, Historic Overlay Districts,  in open 
spaces or where they are favored i.e. commercial zoning areas, industrial zoning areas. 
(Calabasas, Sebastopol, Boulder Report)
4.c. Disfavored Location: Small cell installations are not permitted in close proximity to 
residences, particularly near sleeping and living areas. Viable and defendable setbacks will vary 
based on zoning. (ART ordinance)  1500 foot minimum setback from residences that are not in 
residential districts!
4.d. 1500 Foot Setback from other small cell installations:  Locate small cell installations no 
less than 1500 feet away from the Permittee or any Lessee’s nearest other small cell 
installation.  (Calabasas, Petaluma, Fairfax, Mill Valley,  Suisun City, Palos Verdes, Sebastopol 
San Ramon, Sonoma City,-Boulder Report)
4.e. 1500 Foot Minimum Setback from any educational facility, child/elder/healthcare facility, 
or park. (ART Ordinance)  The California Supreme Court ruled on April 4, 2019 that San 

Page 8 of 11

258

https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.losaltosca.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/page/48421/resolution_no._2019-35.pdf
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
http://www.newark.org/home/showdocument?id=4629
https://www.townofsananselmo.org/DocumentCenter/View/23883/Wireless-Policy-in-effect-September-26-2018
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us/getattachment/4371a3fe-b28f-4e19-a4b2-bedd0073ab92/Ordinance-Number-11-23-TELECOMMUNICATIONS-FACILITIES-AND-MINOR-ANTENNAS-Appvd-5-7-2019.pdf.aspx?lang=en-US&ext=.pdf
https://www.townofsananselmo.org/DocumentCenter/View/23883/Wireless-Policy-in-effect-September-26-2018
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/13741/RPV%E2%80%94ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-April-2-2019
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
https://www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us/getattachment/4371a3fe-b28f-4e19-a4b2-bedd0073ab92/Ordinance-Number-11-23-TELECOMMUNICATIONS-FACILITIES-AND-MINOR-ANTENNAS-Appvd-5-7-2019.pdf.aspx?lang=en-US&ext=.pdf
http://cityofmillvalley.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1290&meta_id=59943
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://www.access-board.gov/research/completed-research/indoor-environmental-quality/introduction
https://www.access-board.gov/research/completed-research/indoor-environmental-quality/introduction
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2010-title42/pdf/USCODE-2010-title42-chap126-sec12102.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/USCODE-2010-title42/pdf/USCODE-2010-title42-chap126-sec12102.pdf
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
http://cityofmillvalley.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1290&meta_id=59943
https://www.losaltosca.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/page/48421/resolution_no._2019-35.pdf
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us/getattachment/4371a3fe-b28f-4e19-a4b2-bedd0073ab92/Ordinance-Number-11-23-TELECOMMUNICATIONS-FACILITIES-AND-MINOR-ANTENNAS-Appvd-5-7-2019.pdf.aspx?lang=en-US&ext=.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/boulder-colorado-small-cell-ordinance-legal-opinion-policy-report-.pdf
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://www.petaluma360.com/news/8567587-181/petaluma-sets-cell-phone-tower
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
http://cityofmillvalley.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1290&meta_id=59943
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us/getattachment/4371a3fe-b28f-4e19-a4b2-bedd0073ab92/Ordinance-Number-11-23-TELECOMMUNICATIONS-FACILITIES-AND-MINOR-ANTENNAS-Appvd-5-7-2019.pdf.aspx?lang=en-US&ext=.pdf
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/boulder-colorado-small-cell-ordinance-legal-opinion-policy-report-.pdf
https://scientists4wiredtech.com/2019-ca-supreme-court-decision-t-mobile-v-san-francisco/


Francisco may regulate based on "negative health consequences, or safety concerns that may 
come from telecommunication deployment.” (Sebastopol forbids potential threat to public health, 
migratory birds, or endangered species, also in combination with other facilities.  Refer to 
Berkeley’s Precautionary Principle Ordinance)
4.f. 500 Foot Minimum Setback from any business/workplace (Petaluma, Suisun City)
 
5. LOCATION PREFERENCE:
5.a. Order of preference: The order of preference for the location of small cell installations in 
the City, from most preferred to least preferred, is: (1) Industrial zone (2) Commercial zone (3) 
Mixed commercial and residential zone (4) Residential zone (ART Ordinance, New Palos 
Verdes) [Residential zone ban]
5.b. Fall Zone: The proposed small cell installation shall have an adequate fall zone to minimize 
the possibility of damage or injury resulting from pole collapse or failure, ice fall or debris fall, 
and to avoid or minimize all other impacts upon adjoining property
5.c. Private Property: If a facility (such as a street light pole, street signal pole, utility pole, utility 
cabinet, vault, or cable conduit) will be located on or in the property of someone other than the 
owner of the facility, the applicant shall provide a duly executed and notarized authorization 
from the property owner(s) authorizing the placement of the facility on or in the property owner’s 
property. (Palos Verdes) [Many Berkeleyans do not want wireless antennas allowed on private 
property.  If a permit is considered for private property, not just the property owners but all those 
who spend time or own/rent property within 1500 feet must be notified immediately of how they 
may weigh in, and be informed of the decision immediately with possibility of appeal if a permit 
is granted.]
5.d. Endangerment, interference: No person shall install, use or maintain any facility which in 
whole or in part rests upon, in or over any public right-of-way, when such installation, use or 
maintenance endangers or is reasonably likely to endanger the safety of persons or property, or 
when such site or location is used for public utility purposes, public transportation purposes or 
other governmental use, or when such facility unreasonably interferes with or unreasonably 
impedes the flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic including any legally parked or stopped 
vehicle, ingress into or egress from any residence or place of business, the use of poles, posts, 
traffic signs or signals, hydrants, mailboxes, permitted sidewalk dining, permitted street furniture 
or other objects permitted at or near said location.
 
6. TESTING:
6.a. Random Testing for RF Compliance: The City shall employ a qualified, independent * RF 
engineer to conduct an annual random and unannounced test of the Permittee’s small cell and 
other wireless installations located within the City to certify their compliance with all Federal 
Communications Commission (FCC) RF emission limits. The reasonable cost of such tests shall 
be paid by the Permittee. (Fairfax, (ART, Old Berkeley.  Suisun City requires annual inspections 
and testing.)
6.b. RF/EMF Testing: Berkeley’s current law states that the City Manager “may” require 
independent testing of telecom equipment.  Change “may” to “shall” and delete the word 
“Manager” so that, if s/he does not find time to hire an independent expert, other City staff or a 
Council Committee may do so.  The law needs to require independent testing of all equipment, 
unannounced in advance, twice annually, with permittees required to reimburse the City for 
costs and to pay a deposit in advance.  Dates, addresses, and results of testing shall be posted 
on the City website and published in local media. **  [Montgomery County Maryland studied RF 
radiation levels from small cells and found that FCC exposure  levels were exceeded within 11 
feet.]
6.c. Violation of Compliance Notification: In the event that such independent tests reveal that 
any small cell installation(s) owned or operated by Permittee or its Lessees, singularly or in the 
aggregate, is emitting RF radiation in excess of FCC exposure standards as they pertain to the 
general public, the City shall notify the Permittee and all residents living within 1500 feet of the 
installation(s) of the violation(s), and the Permittee shall have 48 hours to bring the 
installation(s) into compliance. Failure to bring the installation(s) into compliance shall result in 

Page 9 of 11

259

https://scientists4wiredtech.com/2019-ca-supreme-court-decision-t-mobile-v-san-francisco/
https://www.ci.sebastopol.ca.us/getattachment/4371a3fe-b28f-4e19-a4b2-bedd0073ab92/Ordinance-Number-11-23-TELECOMMUNICATIONS-FACILITIES-AND-MINOR-ANTENNAS-Appvd-5-7-2019.pdf.aspx?lang=en-US&ext=.pdf
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/model-ordinance-americans-for-responsible-technology-2019.pdf
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/13741/RPV%E2%80%94ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-April-2-2019
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/13741/RPV%E2%80%94ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-April-2-2019
https://storage.googleapis.com/proudcity/fairfaxca/uploads/2018/10/Ord-819-URGENCYsmall-cell.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/model-ordinance-americans-for-responsible-technology-2019.pdf
https://www.suisun.com/small-cells/
http://smallcellsinmontgomerycounty.blogspot.com/2018/10/montgomery-county-radiation.html
http://smallcellsinmontgomerycounty.blogspot.com/2018/10/montgomery-county-radiation.html


the forfeiture of all or part of the Compliance Bond, and the City shall have the right to require 
the removal of such installation(s), as the City in its sole discretion may determine is in the 
public interest. (ART)
6.d. Non-acceptance of Applications: Where such annual recertification has not been properly 
or timely submitted, or equipment no longer in use has not been removed within the required 
30-day period, no further applications for wireless installations will be accepted by the City until 
such time as the annual re-certification has been submitted and all fees and fines paid. (ART)
7. RIGHT TO KNOW: The City shall inform the affected public via website, local news 
publications **, and US 1st class mail (with topic prominently announced in red on outside of 
envelope) of Master Licensing Agreement between the City and telecom, Design Standards for 
Small Cells or other wireless equipment, other telecom agreements, and notification within 2 
business days of receiving permit applications, calendaring related hearings/meetings, and 
approving permits.  Notice shall include location and date of expected installations, description 
of the appeals process, and dates of installations.  A map featuring all telecom equipment shall 
be on the City website and available to residents who request it at 2180 Milvia St.  
Applicants/Permittees, who are profiting from using Berkeley’s public right of way, will reimburse 
City for the reasonable cost of mailings, Town Halls, and staff to handle telecom applications, 
public notification, inspections, recertifications, etc.
 
8. RECERTIFICATION:
8.a. Annual Recertification: Each year, commencing on the first anniversary of the issuance of 
the permit, the Permittee shall submit to the City an affidavit which shall list all active small cell 
wireless installations it owns within the City by location, certifying that (1) each active small cell 
installation is covered by liability insurance in the amount of $2,000,000 per installation, naming 
the City as an additional insured; and (2) each active installation has been inspected for safety 
and found to be in sound working condition and in compliance with all federal safety regulations 
concerning RF exposure limits. (ART)  Any installation that is out of compliance will be promptly 
removed; the permit for that installation will be terminated, with all associated expenses paid by 
the applicant.
8.b. Recertification Fees: Recertification fees will be calculated each year by the City.  They 
will be based on the anticipated costs of City for meeting the compliance requirements put in 
place by this ordinance. The total costs will be divided by the number of permits and assigned to 
the permit-holders as part of the recertification process
8.c. Noise Restrictions (Sonoma City): Each wireless telecommunications facility shall be 
operated in such a manner so as not to cause any disruption to the community's peaceful 
enjoyment of the city.
o Non-polluting backup generators shall only be operated during periods of power 
outages, and shall not be tested on weekends, holidays, or between the hours of 5:00 p.m. and 
9:00 a.m.
o At no time shall any facility be permitted to exceed 45 DBA and the noise levels 
specified in Municipal Code XXX.  (Los Altos)
·         8.d. Noise Complaints: If a nearby property owner registers a noise complaint, the City 
shall forward the same to the permittee. Said complaint shall be reviewed and evaluated by the 
applicant. The permittee shall have 10 business days to file a written response regarding the 
complaint which shall include any applicable remedial measures. If the City determines the 
complaint is valid and the applicant has not taken steps to minimize the noise, the City may hire 
a consultant to study, examine and evaluate the noise complaint and the permittee shall pay the 
fee. The matter shall be reviewed by City staff. If sound proofing or other sound attenuation 
measures are required to bring the project into compliance with the Code, the City may impose 
conditions on the project to achieve said objective.  (Old Palos Verdes, Calabasas)  
9.a. AESTHETICS and UNDERGROUNDING:  At every site where transmitting antennas are to 
be placed, all ancillary equipment shall be placed in an underground chamber beneath the 
street constructed by the Permittee. (Calabasas, Mill Valley, Petaluma) The chamber shall 
include battery power sufficient to provide a minimum of 72 hours of electricity to the ancillary 
equipment. ***

Page 10 of 11

260

https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/model-ordinance-americans-for-responsible-technology-2019.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/model-ordinance-americans-for-responsible-technology-2019.pdf
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/model-ordinance-americans-for-responsible-technology-2019.pdf
https://sonomacity.civicweb.net/document/17797
https://www.losaltosca.gov/sites/default/files/fileattachments/city_council/page/48421/resolution_no._2019-35.pdf
https://www.rpvca.gov/DocumentCenter/View/7952/RPV---ROW-Wireless-Telecommunications-Urgency-Ordinance-January-19-2016-PDF?bidId=
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
https://www.cityofcalabasas.com/pdf/wireless/Wireless_Facility_Ordinance-w_CC_Changes052312.pdf
http://cityofmillvalley.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=2&clip_id=1290&meta_id=59943
https://www.petaluma360.com/news/8567587-181/petaluma-sets-cell-phone-tower


·         Permittee is responsible for placing on the pole two signs with blinking lights, with design 
approved by City, each in the opposite direction, to inform people walking on the sidewalk, what 
is installed on the pole.  Should a sign be damaged, Permittee shall replace it within 5 business 
days. (Town of Hempstead NY required a 4 foot warning sign on each pole.)
 
9.b. Aesthetic Requirements: According to the Baller Stokes & Lide law firm, some of the 
aesthetic considerations that local governments may consider include: ****
o Size of antennas, equipment boxes, and cabling;
o Painting of attachments to match mounting structures;
o Consistency with the character of historic neighborhoods;
o Aesthetic standards for residential neighborhoods, including “any minimum setback from 
dwellings, parks, or playgrounds and minimum setback from dwellings, parks, or playgrounds; 
maximum structure heights; or limitations on the use of small, decorative structures as mounting 
locations.” (Boulder Report)
 
“Independent” means:  The RF engineering company has never provided services to a 
telecom corporation, and the company’s employee who tests exposure levels has also never 
provided services to a telecom corporation. 
 
Right to Know - Publish on City website, in online local news: Berkeley Daily Planet, 
Berkeleyside, and local newspapers: Berkeley Voice, Berkeley Times (2019.  Update as 
needed)
 
*** Undergrounding - A single shielded multi-wire cable from the underground chamber shall 
be used to transmit radiation to the antennae for the purpose of transmitting data.  If the pole is 
of hollow metal, the cable shall be inside the pole; if the pole is solid wood, the cable can be 
attached to the pole.  Installation shall include its own analogue electricity meter and Permittee 
shall pay the electrical utility a monthly charge for the amount of electricity used.
  Except during construction, or essential maintenance, automobiles and trucks, of an 
allowed weight, shall be allowed to park at the site of the underground chamber.  If maintenance 
is required within the underground chamber the Permittees shall place a notice on the parked 
car or truck, to be moved within 24 hours.  If no vehicle is parked on top of the underground 
chamber the Permitted shall place a No Parking sign for up to 24 hours.
 
**** WiRED deleted four of the points that were either not approved or not understood.
Various cities' wireless facilities ordinances are hyperlinked in the Key Points. 
Scroll down ~20 pages to find them:  https://mdsafetech.org/cell-tower-and-city-ordinances/
N.B. More cities than those listed have adopted these points. 
 
 
 
 

Page 11 of 11

261

https://ecode360.com/15516264
https://mdsafetech.files.wordpress.com/2019/07/boulder-colorado-small-cell-ordinance-legal-opinion-policy-report-.pdf
https://mdsafetech.org/cell-tower-and-city-ordinances/
https://mdsafetech.org/cell-tower-and-city-ordinances/


262



2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7170 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● E-Mail: 
RRobinson@cityofberkeley.info

CONSENT CALENDAR
December 10, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmembers Rigel Robinson and Sophie Hahn

Subject: Referral: Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the Zero Waste Commission to develop a plan, in consultation with the public 
and key stakeholders, to achieve timely compliance with Senate Bill 1383 (Lara, 2016) 
including:

1. An ordinance making composting compulsory for all businesses and residences 
in the City of Berkeley. The Commission should also consider the inclusion of 
compulsory recycling.

2. An edible food recovery program for all Tier 1 and 2 commercial edible food 
generators.

CURRENT SITUATION
Recycling and composting in Berkeley is currently governed by the 2012 Alameda 
County mandatory recycling ordinance, of which the City of Berkeley is a covered 
jurisdiction. Under the ordinance, all businesses must have recycling service and 
businesses that generate 20 or more gallons of organics must have composting service. 
All multi-family properties (5+ units) are required to provide composting and recycling 
service. Businesses and property owners are also required to inform their tenants, 
employees, and contractors of proper composting and recycling technique at least once 
a year, and provide tenants with additional reminders during move-in and move-out.1 

The ordinance is enforced through surprise routine inspections. If a business or multi-
family property is issued two official violation notices, they may receive an 
administrative citation. While citations and fines are issued for non-compliance, multi-
family property owners and managers are not liable for tenants who improperly sort their 
waste.2

BACKGROUND
In 2009, San Francisco successfully implemented compulsory composting for all 
businesses and residences, allowing them to achieve an 80 percent landfill diversion 
rate in 2012 that remains the highest in the country.3 This successful policy laid the 

1 http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/ordinance-overview/
2 http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/my-recycling-rules/
3 https://www.epa.gov/transforming-waste-tool/zero-waste-case-study-san-francisco

Page 1 of 27

263

http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/ordinance-overview/
http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/my-recycling-rules/
https://www.epa.gov/transforming-waste-tool/zero-waste-case-study-san-francisco
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
11



Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery CONSENT CALENDAR December 10, 2019

groundwork for the State of California and other cities across the nation to follow suit 
and introduce legislation to increase composting rates.

California Senate Bill 1383 was introduced by Senator Ricardo Lara and signed into law 
by Governor Jerry Brown in 2016. The legislation establishes a target of a 50 percent 
reduction in statewide organic waste disposal by 2020 and a 75 percent reduction by 
2025, in addition to a 20 percent increase in edible food recovery by 2025.4 SB 1383 
imposes two main requirements onto local jurisdictions: the provision of organic waste 
collection services to all residents and businesses, and the development of an edible 
food recovery program for all Tier 1 and 2 commercial edible food generators.5

As defined in SB 1383, Tier 1 commercial edible food generators are 1) supermarkets, 
2) grocery stores with a total facility size equal to or greater than 7,500 square feet, 3) 
food service distributors, and 4) wholesale food markets. Tier 2 commercial edible food 
generators are 1) restaurants with 250 or more seats or a total facility size equal to or 
greater than 5,000 square feet, 2) hotels with an onsite food facility and 200 or more 
rooms, 3) health facilities with an onsite food facility and 100 or more beds, 4) large 
venues, 5) large events, 6) state agencies with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or 
total cafeteria size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet, and 7) local education 
agency facilities with an onsite food facility.6

California’s climate change initiatives are primarily governed by AB 32 (2006), Executive 
Order B-30-15 (2015), and Executive Order S-3-05 (2005), which establish targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions. The state’s current goals are to reduce emissions 
to 1990 levels by 2020, 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030, and 80 percent below 
1990 levels by 2050.7 

Improving landfill diversion rates is an important part of the solution. Organic waste that 
is improperly disposed of produces methane, a greenhouse gas which has 28 to 36 
times the Global Warming Potential (GWP) of carbon dioxide over a 100-year period.8 
By diverting organic waste from the landfill, SB 1383 will reduce at least 4 million metric 
tons of statewide greenhouse gas emissions annually by 2030. 

CalRecycle conducted an informal rulemaking process for SB 1383 from February 2017 
to December 2018, and is expected to conclude the year-long formal rulemaking 
process by the end of 2019.9 The City of Berkeley’s Zero Waste Department submitted 
two rounds of formal comments on the draft regulations in July and October 2019. 

Pursuant to the new regulations, local jurisdictions must have their composting and 
edible food recovery programs in place by January 1, 2022, when CalRecycle is 
authorized to begin enforcement actions. The enforcement mechanism is similar to the 

4 https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160SB1383
5 https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/organics/slcp/education
6 http://ncrarecycles.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/SB1383_Final-May-Draft-Edible-Regs-Only.pdf
7 https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/cc/cc.htm
8 https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/understanding-global-warming-potentials
9 https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/laws/rulemaking/slcp

Page 2 of 27

264

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160SB1383
https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/organics/slcp/education
http://ncrarecycles.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/SB1383_Final-May-Draft-Edible-Regs-Only.pdf
https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/cc/cc.htm
https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/understanding-global-warming-potentials
https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/laws/rulemaking/slcp


Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery CONSENT CALENDAR December 10, 2019

enforcement of other solid waste and recycling regulations, in which cities and counties 
can be issued a violation and be subject to enforcement for failure to comply with any 
individual aspect of the regulation. CalRecycle has discretion to determine the level of 
penalty necessary to remedy a violation. 

In order to achieve compliance with state law by 2022, it is imperative that the City of 
Berkeley begin planning as soon as possible. According to CalRecycle’s SB 1383 guide 
for local governments, City Councils and Boards of Supervisors across California must 
“adopt an ordinance or similarly enforceable mechanism that is consistent with these 
regulatory requirements prior to 2022...planning in 2019 will be critical to meet the 
deadline.” 

Implementing the compulsory composting component of SB 1383 will require the City to 
adopt an ordinance that builds on the existing Alameda County ordinance, adding 
composting requirements for residences with 1-4 units and businesses that generate 
fewer than 20 gallons of organic waste. The edible food recovery program component 
necessitates work to ensure that our existing food recovery organizations have enough 
capacity to meet statewide goals, including the consideration of providing additional 
funding for this purpose. 

With the opening of a new warehouse in September 2019, Berkeley Food Network is 
working to establish a food sourcing and distribution hub which will include a food 
recovery program that reduces the amount of edible food sent to landfill. As BFN is 
already a valuable partner to the City and is in the process of forming partnerships with 
food recovery organizations, the Commission should explore ways the City can partner 
with them to meet SB 1383 requirements and further support them in their work.10

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Staff time and an undetermined amount of funding, contingent on the Commission’s 
recommendations, to bring the City into compliance with state law.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
This proposal aligns with the City of Berkeley’s Climate Action Plan, which calls for a 
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by 80 percent below 2000 levels by 2050. As a 
means to achieve this goal, Chapter 5 of the Plan recommends measures to “enhance 
recycling, composting, and source reduction services for residential and non-residential 
buildings.”11 

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Rigel Robinson, (510) 981-7170

10 https://berkeleyfoodnetwork.org/about/our-work/
11 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-
_Energy_and_Sustainable_Development/BCAP%20Exec%20Summary4.9.09.pdf

Page 3 of 27

265

https://berkeleyfoodnetwork.org/about/our-work/
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_Energy_and_Sustainable_Development/BCAP%20Exec%20Summary4.9.09.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_Energy_and_Sustainable_Development/BCAP%20Exec%20Summary4.9.09.pdf


Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery CONSENT CALENDAR December 10, 2019

Attachments:
1: CalRecycle Education and Outreach Resources: An Overview of SB 1383’s Organic 
Waste Reduction Requirements
2: San Francisco Mandatory Recycling and Composting Ordinance
https://sfenvironment.org/sites/default/files/policy/sfe_zw_sf_mandatory_recycling_com
posting_ord_100-09.pdf
3: Recycling Rules Alameda County 
http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/enforcement-overview/ 

Page 4 of 27

266

https://sfenvironment.org/sites/default/files/policy/sfe_zw_sf_mandatory_recycling_composting_ord_100-09.pdf
https://sfenvironment.org/sites/default/files/policy/sfe_zw_sf_mandatory_recycling_composting_ord_100-09.pdf
http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/enforcement-overview/


Note to presenter:  This slide presentation was developed for local jurisdiction staff by CalRecycle 
staff to educate city council members city board members, city and county staff, decision-makers, and 
other impacted colleagues. The slides include suggested talking points. We have also provided a 
handful of slides with artwork, images, and icons that you can use to build new content if needed. 
Please view this presentation in slideshow mode before presenting to familiarize yourself with the 
animations. If you have any questions, you can contact Christina Files in the CalRecycle Office of 
Public Affairs: christina.files@calrecycle.ca.gov.

Presentation Introduction
• SB 1383 (Lara, Chapter 395, Statutes of 2016) is the most significant waste reduction mandate to 

be adopted in California in the last 30 years.
• SB 1383 requires the state to reduce organic waste [food waste, green waste, paper products, 

etc.] disposal by 75% by 2025.  In other words, the state must reduce organic waste disposal by 
more than 20 million tons annually by 2025.

• The law also requires the state to increase edible food recovery by 20 percent by 2025.
• This has significant policy and legal implications for the state and local governments.

1. SB 1383 establishes a statewide target and not a jurisdiction organic waste recycling target. 
2. Given that it is a statewide target and there are not jurisdiction targets, the regulation requires 

a more prescriptive approach (this is different than AB 939).  
A. CalRecycle must adopt regulations that impose requirements necessary to achieve the 

statewide targets.  
B. This makes the regulation more similar to other environmental quality regulations where 

regulated entities, i.e., jurisdictions, are required to implement specific actions, rather 
than achieve unique targets. 

Page 5 of 27

267

mailto:christina.files@calrecycle.ca.gov


a. For example AB 32 established GHG reduction targets for the state, and the 
implementing Cap-and-Trade regulations require businesses to take specific 
actions. 

i. The individual businesses are not required to achieve a specific target. 
ii. They are required to take actions prescribed by the date. 

Overview of Presentation
• Background and Context of SB 1383: Why California passed this law
• SB 1383 Requirements: A big picture look at the law’s requirements and objectives
• Jurisdiction Responsibilities: What SB 1383 requires of local governments

• Provide organic waste collection to all residents and businesses
• Establish an edible food recovery program that recovers edible food from the 

waste stream
• Conduct outreach and education to all affected parties, including generators, 

haulers, facilities, edible food recovery organizations, and city/county 
departments

• Capacity Planning: Evaluating your jurisdiction’s readiness to implement SB 1383
• Procure recycled organic waste products like compost, mulch, and renewable 

natural gas (RNG)
• Inspect and enforce compliance with SB 1383
• Maintain accurate and timely records of SB 1383 compliance

• CalRecycle Oversight Responsibilities 
• SB 1383 Key Implementation Dates
• SB 1383 Key Jurisdiction Dates

Additional Resources
• CalRecycle’s Short-Lived Climate Pollutants (SLCP): Organic Waste Methane 

Emissions Reductions webpage has more information: 
https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Climate/SLCP/

• CalRecycle’s SB 1383 Rulemaking webpage as more information about the status of 
1383 regulations: https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/laws/rulemaking/slcp

Page 6 of 27

268



• When we are talking about organic waste for the purposes of SB 1383 we are talking about 
green waste, wood waste, food waste, but also fibers, such as paper and cardboard.

• Organic waste comprises two-thirds of our waste stream. 
• Food waste alone is the largest waste stream in California.

• According to CalRecycle’s last waste characterization study in 2014, food waste 
comprised 18 percent of what we disposed.

• SB 1383 also requires California to recover 20 percent of currently disposed edible food. 
• We currently don’t know how much of the food waste stream is edible. 
• CalRecycle is conducting a new waste characterization study in 2018/19 that is taking a 

closer look at our food waste stream.
• The results of this study will help determine how much edible food waste is landfilled on 

average throughout the state. 
• Here’s what we do know: 

• 1 in 5 children go hungry every night in California – redirecting perfectly edible food that 
is currently being disposed to feed those in need can help alleviate this.

• For every 2 ½ tons of food rescued, that’s the equivalent of taking 1 car off the road for 
a year. (https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator)

Page 7 of 27

269



• Landfilling organic waste leads to the anaerobic breakdown of that material, which creates 
methane. 

• Landfills are responsible for 21% of the state’s methane emissions. Landfills are the third 
largest producer of methane.

• Methane is 72 times more potent than Carbon Dioxide (C02) over a 20-year horizon.
• Climate change may seem like a distant problem, but there are other more localized 

environmental impacts associated with landfill disposal of organic waste that have immediate 
negative impacts on our community now. 

• Landfilling organic waste is a significant source of local air quality pollutants (NOX and 
PM2.5). 

• These pollutants have an immediate negative impact on the air our community and it 
can cause respiratory issues and hospitalizations.  

• Diverting organic waste to recycling can significantly reduce these local air quality 
emissions and the associated negative impacts.

We are starting to see the effects of climate change in cities and counties throughout California.
• Longer droughts and warmer temperatures are drying our forest and contributing to the 

ever increasing number of wildfires in CA (which also impact air quality).
• Cyclical droughts
• Bigger storms
• Coastal erosion due to rising sea levels

• We should not underestimate the cost of these climate change impacts. 
• The state and communities are spending billions fighting wildfires, removing debris and 

rebuilding homes. 
• That means we are paying for the effects of climate change today. 

Page 8 of 27

270



• The financial and public health impacts are here and we need to take action to 
mitigate climate change now

• That is why the state enacted SB 1383, which is designed to reduce the global warming 
gasses like methane, which are the most potent and are “short-lived”

• Reducing this gas now, through actions like organic waste recycling will significantly reduce 
emissions, and will reduce the impacts of climate change in our life time. 

Overview of SB 1383:
• SB 1383 establishes aggressive organic waste reduction targets. 
• SB 1383 also builds upon Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling law.  Our jurisdiction 

has been implementing this law since 2016. 
• SB 1383 requires Californians to reduce organic waste disposal by 50% by 2020 and 75% by 

2025. 
• These targets use the 2014 Waste Characterization Study measurements when 23 

million tons of organic waste were disposed. 
• These disposal reductions will reduce at least 4 million metric tons of greenhouse gas 

emissions annually by 2030. 
• Additionally as a part of the disposal reduction targets the Legislature directed CalRecycle to 

increase edible food recovery by 20 percent by 2025. 
• The food recovery goal is unique. 

Page 9 of 27

271



Highlighted here on the slide are the key dates for SB 1383 implementation and milestones.  
1. This law, the targets, and the requirements for CalRecycle to adopt regulations were adopted 

in September 2016
2. CalRecycle conducted two years of informal hearings with local governments and stakeholders 

to develop regulatory concepts. 
Formal Rulemaking

1. CalRecycle started the formal regulation rulemaking January 18, 2019, this is expected to 
conclude by the end of 2019.

Regulations Take Effect 
1. The regulations will become enforceable in 2022.

a. Jurisdictions must have their programs in place on January 1, 2022.
Jurisdictions Must Initiate Enforcement

1. In 2024 Jurisdictions will be required to take enforcement against noncompliant entities.
2. Finally, in 2025 the state must achieve the 75 percent reduction and 20 food recovery targets.
3. To meet the deadline of January 1, 2022, CalRecycle expects that jurisdictions will be 

planning and making programmatic and budgetary decisions regarding the 
requirements in advance of the deadline.  

4. CalRecycle can begin enforcement actions on jurisdictions and other entities starting on Jan. 
1, 2022. 

5. The enforcement process on jurisdictions is different than under AB 939:
a. Like many solid waste and recycling regulations, a regulated entity (such as a city or 

county) can be issued a violation and be subject to enforcement for failure to comply 
with any individual aspect of the regulation. This is different from the unique AB 939 
enforcement structure where a jurisdiction’s overall efforts to achieve specific target are 
reviewed in arrears

Page 10 of 27

272



b. Like most regulatory enforcement programs, the enforcing agency (CalRecycle) will 
have discretion to determine the level of penalty necessary to remedy any given 
violation. E.g. A reporting violation may be considered less severe than a failure to 
provide collection services to all generators.

c. CalRecycle will consider certain mitigating factors which are specifically enumerated in 
the regulation. This is not the same as good faith effort but includes similar 
considerations. The specific nuances regarding requirements for state and local 
enforcement will be discussed in the later slides. 

• These timelines mean that we need to start planning now.

 

1. To meet the deadline of January 1, 2022, CalRecycle expects that jurisdictions will be 
planning and making programmatic and budgetary decisions regarding the 
requirements in advance of the deadline.

a. CalRecycle can begin enforcement actions on jurisdictions and other entities starting on 
Jan. 1, 2022. 

2. This slide outlines the major programmatic activities for jurisdictions and the following slides 
will cover more details.

3. In 2024 Jurisdictions will be required to take enforcement against noncompliant entities.
a. There are additional details in the draft regulations regarding the enforcement 

requirements  
4. CalRecycle has some funding through competitive grant programs, as well as a loan program, 

for establishing the infrastructure for recycling organic waste and recovering edible food.  
However, for the programmatic activities, such as enforcement, inspections, education, 
collection we will need to plan for budgetary changes to address these.

Page 11 of 27

273



a. In early 2020 CalRecycle will have a number of tools that we can begin utilizing, such as 
a model enforcement ordinance, franchise agreement models, and education materials.  
Using the 2018 and 2020 Statewide Waste Characterization Studies, jurisdictions will 
have data needed to conduct some of the capacity planning requirements.

b. Although the regulations are not finalized the major components are not expected to 
change.

c. We need to start planning now to have the programmatic and budgetary changes in 
place by January 1, 2022.

Jurisdictions will be required to adequately resource these programs:
1. Provide organic waste collection services to all residents and businesses.

A. This means for all organic waste, including green waste, wood waste, food waste, 
manure, fibers, etc. 

B. Containers have prescribed colors (any shade of grey or black for trash, green for 
organic waste and blue containers for traditional recyclables)

C. There are container labeling and contamination monitoring requirements
D. We need to assess our current collection programs and determine what may need to 

be, expanded, or changed
2. Establish edible food recovery program for all Tier 1 and 2 commercial edible food 

generators
A. This means ensuring that there are edible food recovery organizations that have 

enough capacity
B. This may entail providing funding to ensure there is adequate capacity and collection 

services
3. Conduct education and outreach to all generators

Page 12 of 27

274



A. This will require education to be provided to all generators, and when applicable 
education may need to be provided in Spanish and other languages.

4. Our jurisdiction will be required to procure certain levels of compost, renewable gas 
used for transportation fuels, electricity, heating applications, or pipeline injection, or 
electricity from biomass conversion produced from organic waste. 

5. Plan and secure access for recycling and edible food recovery capacity.
6. We will be required to monitor compliance and conduct enforcement 

A. Monitoring and education must begin in 2022
B. Enforcement actions must start Jan 1, 2024

7. We will need to adopt an ordinance, or similarly enforceable mechanism that is 
consistent with these regulatory requirements prior to 2022.

8. Planning in 2019 will be critical to meet the deadline.
 

1. Jurisdictions should start planning now to get ready for SB 1383 implementation. 
2. This law extends beyond directing waste management and recycling operations and 

staff. 
a. Each department will need to understand how SB 1383 impacts their work. 
b. Recordkeeping and reporting requirements extend to all of these departments, 

and jurisdiction leaders will play a vital role in ensuring compliance with SB 1383. 
• City Councils and Boards of Supervisors will need to pass local enforcement ordinances to 

require all residents and businesses to subscribe to these services.
• City Managers and Chief Administrative Officers will be involved in capacity planning, 

directing procurement of recycled organic products like compost and renewable natural gas, 
and establishing edible food recovery programs. 

Page 13 of 27

275



• Finance and Legal staff will be involved in local enforcement ordinances, new collection fees, 
and ensuring programs are adequately resourced.

• Purchasing staff will be central to procuring recycled organic products, including paper. 
• Procure does not necessarily mean purchase, but this department is likely aware of 

current compost, mulch, RNG, and paper product purchases for the jurisdiction.
• Public Works staff are involved with hauler agreements, local waste management processing 

facilities, and organic waste recycling facilities (like compost and anaerobic digestion facilities). 
They may also be involved in civil engineering activities where compost may be utilized (as in 
erosion control along city streets and embankments).

• Public Parks staff may be involved with assessing the need for local compost application to 
parks and city landscaped areas. 

• Environmental Health staff may be tasked with enforcement duties, including inspecting 
commercial food generators for compliance with edible food recovery requirements.

• Public Transportation and Fleet departments could be involved in procuring renewable 
natural gas for city and county owned vehicles. 

(Note to presenter: You might customize this slide to reflect the collection system for residential and 
commercial recycling programs.  Remember this law/regulation is about all organic waste so that 
means the fibers, foodwaste, greenwaste, manure, etc.)

• The most basic element of the regulation is that jurisdictions are required to provide an 
organic waste collection service to each of their residents and businesses. 

• The regulations also require all residents and businesses to use an organic waste 
recycling service that meets the regulatory requirements.  

• Jurisdictions must have enforceable requirements on its haulers that collect organic waste in 
the jurisdiction, and also for commercial and residential generators and self-haulers.

Page 14 of 27

276



• There is a lot of detail regarding the types of allowable collection programs (several pages of 
regulatory text dedicated just to this).  These are the high level requirements. 

• Each resident and business, must subscribe to an organic waste collection service 
that either “source-separates” the waste (e.g. separate bins), or transports all 
unsegregated waste to a facility that recovers 75 percent of the organic content 
collected from the system. 

• The regulations allow for a menu of collection options.
• A one-can system – you’ll be responsible for ensuring that all contents are 

transported to a facility that recovers 75% of organic content
• A two-can system – at least one of the containers (whichever includes organic 

waste and garbage) must be transported to a facility that recovers 75% of 
organic content

• A three-can system – organic waste is required to be source separated (paper in 
blue, food and yard in green).   No recovery rate

• The three-can option also allows additional separation at the hauler/generators 
discretion… For example some jursidictions provided separate containers for 
yard (green) and food (brown) waste so they can be managed separately

• The same rules will apply to entities not subject to local control, and CalRecycle will oversee 
State Agencies, UCs, CSUs, Community Colleges, K-12 schools and other entities not subject 
to local oversight.  

(Note to presenter: You may want to customize the speaking points depending on how much your 
community is already doing to implement edible food recovery programs)
SB 1383 requires that we strengthen our existing infrastructure for edible food recovery and food 
distribution. 

Page 15 of 27

277



Jurisdictions – are responsible to implement Edible Food Recovery Programs in their communities. 
Even in communities where existing infrastructure already exists, there are new recordkeeping and 
inspection tasks that will need to be implemented. 

• Assess Capacity of Existing Food Recovery 
• Establish Food Recovery Program (And Expand Existing Infrastructure if necessary)
• Inspect Commercial Generators for Compliance
• Education and Outreach

Jurisdictions should get a head start on 1383 implementation by assessing the infrastructure 
that currently exists within your community. Jurisdictions need to assess the following:

• How many commercial generators do you have? How much edible food could they donate? 
• How many food recovery organizations exist, and what is their capacity to receive this 

available food?
• What gaps do we have in our current infrastructure and what do we need to do to close them?
• How can we fund the expansion of edible food recovery organizations? (Grants, partnerships, 

sponsorships, etc.)
• What partnerships currently exist and what new partnerships need to be established?

 CalRecycle will be developing some tools to assist jurisdictions with this assessment.

Jurisdictions must conduct education and outreach to:
1. All businesses and residents regarding collection service requirements, contamination 

standards, self-haul requirements, and overall compliance with 1383
2. Commercial edible food generators regarding edible food donation requirements, and 

available edible food recovery organizations
Educational material must be linguistically accessible to our non-English speaking residents.  

Page 16 of 27

278



• Each jurisdiction will have a minimum procurement target that is linked to its population. 
CalRecycle will notify jurisdictions of their target Prior to January 1, 2022

• The jurisdiction can decide what mix of compost, mulch, biomass derived electricity, or 
renewable gas they want to use to meet their target.

• CalRecycle will provide a calculator with the conversion factors for compost/renewable 
gas/electricity from biomass conversion made from organic waste for a jurisdiction to 
use to calculate progress towards meeting their target. 

• Procurement doesn’t necessarily mean purchase. 
• A jurisdiction that produces its own compost, mulch, renewable gas, or electricity from 

biomass conversion can use that toward the procurement target. Same goes for the 
jurisdiction’s direct service providers (for example, its haulers).

• A jurisdiction can use compost or mulch for erosion control, soil amendment, soil 
cover, parks/open spaces, giveaways.

• A jurisdiction can use renewable gas to fuel their fleets, or a jurisdiction’s waste 
hauler could use renewable gas to fuel their trucks. Renewable gas can be used 
for transportation fuels, electricity, or heating applications.

•SB 1383 also requires that jurisdictions procure recycled-content paper when it is 
available at the same price or less then virgin material.

•Finally procured paper products must meet FTC recyclability guidelines (essentially products 
we purchase must be recyclable).

Page 17 of 27

279



 
(Note to presenter: If your Jurisdiction already enforces CalGreen and MWELO, then you would 
address that this would not be a new requirement, or this slide could be eliminated.)

Jurisdictions will have to adopt and ordinance or other enforceable requirement that requires 
compliance with CalGreen and Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance requirements (California 
Code of Regulations Title 24, Part 11):

•Providing readily accessible areas for recycling containers in commercial and multi-family units
•Recycling organic waste commingled with C&D debris, to meet CalGreen 65% requirement for 

C&D recycling in both residential and non-residential projects
•Require new construction and landscaping projects to meet Water Efficient Landscape 

requirements for compost and mulch application. 

Page 18 of 27

280



 

(Note to presenter: You might customize this slide if you have already secured adequate capacity for 
your organic recyclables.)
In California today we have about 180 compost facilities with 34 of them accepting food waste. 

•We have 14 AD facilities accepting solid waste. 
•There is also a significant number of Waste Water Treatment Plants that could be leveraged to 

use for co-digestion of food waste.  
•It will take a significant number of new facilities to recycle an additional 20-25 million tons of 

organic waste annually. CalRecycle estimates we will need 50-100 new or expanded 
facilities (depending on the size of each new facility this number could fluctuate).

Page 19 of 27

281



Key Points:
1. Each jurisdiction must plan for adequate capacity for recycling organic waste and for 

edible food recovery
A. For edible food recovery capacity each jurisdiction must plan to recover 20 

percent of the edible food for human consumption, must identify Tier 1 and 2 
commercial edible food generators, and funding for edible food recovery 
infrastructure

2. Each county will lead this effort by coordinating with the cities in the county to estimate 
existing, new and/or expanded capacity.

3. Counties and cities must demonstrate that they have access to recycling capacity through 
existing contracts, franchise agreements, or other documented arrangements.

4. There are requirements for each jurisdiction to consult with specified entities to determine 
organic waste recycling capacity, such as the Local Enforcement Agency, Local Task 
Force, owners/operators of facilities, community composting operations, and from citizens, 
such as disadvantaged communities, i.e., to discuss the benefits and impacts associated 
with expansions/new facilities.

5. For edible food recovery the county and city must contact edible food recovery 
organizations that serve the jurisdiction to determine how much existing, new and/or 
planned capacity if available.

6. If capacity cannot be guaranteed, then each jurisdiction within the county that lacks 
capacity must submit an implementation schedule to CalRecycle that includes specified 
timelines and milestones, including funding for the necessary recycling or edible food 
recovery facilities.

7. The County must collect data from the cities on a specified schedule and report to 
CalRecycle.  Cities are required to provide the required data to the County within 120 days.

Page 20 of 27

282



A. Start year for planning and reporting is 2022 – that report must cover 
2022-2025. 

B. Subsequent reports will be due every 5 years, and will plan for a 10-year 
horizon

• By January 1, 2022, Jurisdictions are required to have:
• An enforcement mechanism or ordinance in place, yet they are not required to enforce 

until 2024.
• Between Jan 2022 and Dec 2023, jurisdictions need to:

• Identify businesses in violation and provide educational material to those generators 
• The focus during the first 2 years is on educating generators.  
• The goal is to make sure every generator has an opportunity to comply 

before mandatory jurisdiction enforcement comes into effect in 2024.  
• The regulations allow 2 years for education and compliance.

• After January 2024, jurisdictions shall take progressive enforcement against organic waste 
generators that are not in compliance.  

• The progressive approach allows for notification to the generator and provides ample 
time for the generator to comply before penalties are required to be issued by the 
jurisdiction.  

• CalRecycle sets a maximum timeframe that a jurisdiction has to issue a Notice of 
Violation and issue penalties to a generator.  

• The jurisdiction has the flexibility to develop its own enforcement process within these 
parameters.  

• When a Jurisdiction determines a violation occurred the jurisdiction is required to, 
at a minimum:

Page 21 of 27

283



• Issue a Notice of Violation within 60 days of determining a violation. 
• If the generator still has not complied within 150 days from the issuance of 

the Notice of Violation, then the jurisdiction is responsible to issue 
penalties

• The 150 days, between the Notice and Violation and the penalty 
phase, allows the jurisdiction to use other methods to achieve 
compliance prior to being required to issue penalties.  Therefore, 
only the most recalcitrant violators will need to be fined.  

• The regulations allow a generator to be out of compliance for a total 
210 days, before penalties must be issued.

• The regulations set a minimum penalty amount of at least $50 for the first offense 
within one year and can go up to $500 a day for multiple offenses occurring 
within one year.  

• An early robust education program will minimize the amount of future enforcement 
action needed

(Note to Presenter: If needed, customize the next couple of slides to fit the type of collection service 
that your City has/will have for residential and commercial.  You may have residential on 3-container, 
multifamily on single or 2-container and businesses having all three depending on the business.)

• If a Jurisdiction is using a 3- or 2-bin organic waste collection service they are required to do:
• Annual compliance review of commercial businesses just as we should be doing 

now with AB 1826 Mandatory Commercial Recycling
• Commercial businesses that generate 2 CY or more per week of solid waste 

(trash, recycling, organics), 

Page 22 of 27

284



• Note: commercial businesses include multi-family dwellings of five units or 
more

• This can be a desk audit to review reports from our haulers to verify that service 
is provided or that they are complying through self-hauling or backhauling

• 2- or 3-Collection Service: 
• Route reviews: We are supposed to conduct route reviews of commercial 

businesses and residential areas.  The route reviews check for: 
• Verifying subscription (validating the desk review)

• This entails seeing that the business has the appropriate 
external containers.

• If a business does not use the hauler’s service, then 
verifying the business is self-hauling would be necessary.  
As noted earlier this is same type of action that AB 1826 
already requires

• Note: This random inspection of routes does not require 
going inside a business to verify that the business has 
appropriate containers/labels inside of the business.

• Monitoring for contamination on
• Randomly selected containers, and ensuring all collection routes 

are reviewed annually and that contamination is being monitored in 
the collection containers and education is provided if there is an 
issue

OR
• A jurisdiction has the option of conducting waste composition 

studies every six months to identify if there are prohibited container 
contaminants. If there is more than 25 percent prohibited container 
contaminants, then additional education must be provided 

• The Route Reviews can be done by our hauler(s)
• Single Unsegregated Collection Service: Same as the 2- or 3-bin service except:

• We will need to verify with our hauler(s) that the contents are transported 
to a high diversion organic waste processing facility and that the facility is 
meeting the requirements of the organic content recovery rate

• Note: The department will be identifying in the future what facilities 
are high diversion organic waste processing facilities as the 
facilities will be reporting to CalRecycle.

• There are no route reviews required

Page 23 of 27

285



(Note to Presenter:  If your jurisdiction is already implementing an edible food recovery program and 
conducting inspections, such as through the Health Department you will want to revise the talking 
points.)
Edible Food Recovery Program

• These types of inspections will be new for our jurisdiction.
• We will need to plan resources to conduct these inspections.

• We might consider partnering with Health Inspectors that are 
already visiting food generators.

• Inspections on Tier One edible food generators in 2022 and Tier Two in 2024
• Verify they have arrangements with a food recovery organization
• Verify that the food generators are not intentionally spoiling food 

that can be recovered

Page 24 of 27

286



•Our jurisdiction will have to maintain all information in an Implementation Record.
• Many sections require a minimum level of recordkeeping such as “ordinances, 

contracts, and franchise agreements”.
• This graphic is a snapshot of items to be kept in the Implementation Record.
• CalRecycle staff may review the implementation record as part of an audit of 

our program.
• The Implementation Record needs to be stored in one central location

• It can be kept as a physical or electronic record
• It needs to be accessible to CalRecycle staff within ten business days
• It needs to be retained for five years

Page 25 of 27

287



Enforcement – CalRecycle will authorize low population and rural area waivers.  In the case of 
entities such as public universities, which may be exempt from local solid waste oversight, 
CalRecycle will be directly responsible for ensuring compliance. This will be monitored through 
CalRecycle’s existing state agency monitoring process. 
CalRecycle will be evaluating a Jurisdiction’s Compliance. 

For example:
• Verifying that all organic waste generators have service
• Jurisdictions are providing education
• Issuing Notices of Violation within the correct timeline

SB 1383 is a Statewide target and not a jurisdiction organic waste diversion target.  Unlike with 
AB 939 where there was a specified target for each jurisdiction, SB 1383 prohibits a jurisdiction 
target.  Due to this structure:

• The regulations require a more prescriptive approach, and establishes state 
minimum standards.

• Jurisdictions will have to demonstrate compliance with each of the prescriptive 
standards rather than the determination of a Good Faith Effort, which uses 
a suite of indicators to determine if a jurisdiction is actively trying to implement  
programs and achieve targets

Under the SB 1383 regulations if CalRecycle determines a jurisdiction is violating one or more of 
the requirements, 

• A jurisdiction will be noticed and will have 90 days to correct.  
• Most violations should be able to be corrected in this timeframe.  For cases 

where the jurisdiction may need a little additional time, the timeframe can be 
expanded to 180 days  

Page 26 of 27

288



• For violations that are due to barriers outside the jurisdictions control 
and which may take more time to correct, the regulations allow for the 
jurisdiction to be placed on a Corrective Action Plan (CAP), allowing up to 24 
months to comply.  In these cases, it must be apparent that the jurisdiction has 
taken substantial effort to comply but cannot due to extenuating circumstances 
(such as a lack of capacity, disaster).

• An initial corrective action plan issued due to inadequate capacity of organic 
waste recovery facilities may be extended for a period of up to 12 months if the 
jurisdiction meets the requirements and timelines of its CAP and has 
demonstrated substantial effort to CalRecycle.

The Corrective Action Plan [or CAP] is modeled off of the Notice and Order Process that is used for 
noncompliance at solid waste facilities, where a number of steps or milestones must be taken by the 
solid waste facility operator prior to being able to fully comply.

Regarding eligibility for a CAP failure of a governing body to adopt and ordinance, or adequately 
fund/resource a program IS NOT considered substantial effort or an Extenuating Circumstance and 
will not allow a violation to be subject to a Corrective Action Plan.

(Note to presenter:  If you have been participating in the regulatory workshops you might customize 
this slide.  If you haven’t been participating you might consider using this slide to discuss next steps 
with your elected officials and executive management.)
Jurisdictions are encouraged to participate in the 1383 regulatory process.

Page 27 of 27

289



290


	02-10 Agenda - Agenda Committee
	01-27 Minutes - Agenda Committee
	Draft 02-25 Agenda - Council
	Draft Item 09 Resolution Condemn the Federal
	Draft Item 10 LifeLong Medical Care’s March 7, 2020
	Draft Item 11 Luna Dance Institute March 7, 2020
	Draft Item 12 Support for S.2012 (Feinstein)
	Draft Item 13 Support for SB-431, SB-801
	Draft Item 20 Ronald V. Dellums Fair Chance
	Draft Item 21 Referral to Schedule a Special
	Draft Item 22 Referral Street Lighting Near
	Draft Item 24 Report on Regional Leadership
	Item 05 Upcoming Workshops
	Item 06 Council Referrals
	Item 07 Land Use Calendar
	Item 08 Amendments to the Berkeley
	Item 09 Discussion of Potential Revisions
	Item 10 Updating Berkeley Telecom
	Item 11 Referral Compulsory Composting



